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growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards pr0v1ded
pursuant to SectionA 13(a)A of the Exchange Act.A &—»Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in RuleA 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). YesA 4~ NoA 4™’a€<As
of NovemberA 11, 2024 there were 6,287,205 shares of the reglstranta€ ™s common stock outstandlng a€<a€<a€<a€< Table of ContentsCYCLACEL

Financial Condition and Results of OperatlonsZZItemA 3 Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk31ItemA 4.Controls and ProceduresBlParm II.LAAAAAAOther
Informationa€<ItemA 1.Legal Proceedings32ItemA 1A.Risk Factors32ItemA 2.Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds33ItemA 3.Defaults Upon Senior

Securities33ItemA 4.Mine Safety Disclosures33ItemA 5.0ther Information33ItemA 6.Exhibits334€<4€<a€<a€<«SIGNATURE PAGE&€<344€<A€<4€<2 Table of ContentsPARTA I. FINANCIAL
INFORMATIONItemA 1. Financial StatementsCYCLACEL PHARMACEUTICALS,A INC.CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS(In $000s, except share, per share, and liquidation preference
amounts)(Unaudited)a€<a€a€<a€<a€«a€<a€a€<A SeptemberA 30,A 4€<DecemberA 31,A 4€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023ASSETSA€<4€<A€<a€a€«Current assets:A 4€<A A A a€<A A Cash and cash
equivalentsa€<$ 2,9824€<$ 3,378Prepaid expenses and other current assetsa€«A 1,9314€<A 4,066Total current assetsa€<A 4,9134€<A 7,444Property and equipment, netd€<A 4a€<A 9Right-of-
use lease assetda€<«a€« 51a€<«@€< 93Non-current depositsa€«a€« 413a€<a€« 1,259Total assetsa€<$ 5,381a€<$ 8,805LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS&E™ EQUITY

(DEFICIT)a€<A A A a€<A A A Current liabilities:a€<A A A 4€<A A A Accounts payabled€<$ 4,126a€<$ 3,543Accrued and other current liabilitiesa€<A 2,225&€<A 4,618Total current liabilitiesa€<A
6,3514€<A 8,161Lease liabilitya€<«a€< A€”a€<a€<« 37Total liabilitiesa€<A 6,3514€<A 8,1984€<A€ A€ A€ <A€<A€<A€Stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit):A€<A€<A€<a€<a€a€<Preferred stock, $0.001 par
value; 5,000,000 shares authorized at SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and DecemberA 31,A 2023;é€<A a€<a€<a€<a€6% Convertible Exchangeable preferred stock; 335,273 shares issued and outstanding
at SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and DecemberA 31,A 2023. Aggregate preference in liquidation ofa€%o $4,157,385 as of SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and DecemberA 31,A 2023 4€<A a€”a€<A
4€”SeriesA A convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 264 shares issued and outstanding at SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and DecemberA 31,A 2023 4€<A 4€”a€<A a€”SeriesA B convertible
preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 0 shares issued and outstanding at SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and 119,000 shares issued and outstanding at DecemberA 31,A 20234€<A a€”a€<A a€”Common
stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized at SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and DecemberA 31,A 2023; 2,152,202 shares issued and outstanding at SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and 1,058,892
shares issued and outstanding at DecemberA 31,A 2023a€<A 2a€<A 1Additional paid-in capitala€<A 436,503a€<A 429,796Accumulated other comprehensive lossa€<A (1,033)a€<A
(908)Accumulated deficita€<A (436,442)a€<A (428,282)Total stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit)a€<«A (970)a€<A 607Total liabilities and stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit)a€<$ 5,3814€<$
8,805a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.3 Table of ContentsCYCLACEL PHARMACEUTICALS,A INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS(In $000s, except share and per share amounts)(Unaudited)a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <a€<a€<A Three Months Ended A Nine Months Ended

a€<a€<SeptemberA 30,A 4€<SeptemberA 30,A 4€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Revenues:a€<a€<a€<a€<A A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ Clinical trial supplyd€<$ 104€<$ 16a€<a€<
434€<a€< 389Revenuesa€«$ 10a€<$ 16a€<$ 434€<$ 389A€<AE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEOperating expenses:a€A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A A 4€<A A A Research and developmenta€<A
9504€<A 5,236a€<A 5,775a€<A 15,637General and administrativea€<A 1,237a€<A 1,625a€<A 4,4444€<A 4,845Total operatlng expgqsqsa&A 2,187a€<A 6,8614€<A 10,219a€<A

20, 4820perat1ng lossa€<A (2,177)a€<A (6 845)a€<A (10 176)a€<A (20,093)Other (expense) income: a6AAAaEAAAEAAAGEAAA Foreign exchange gains (losses)a€<A 2a€<A 104a€A
6a€<A (58)Interest (expense) incomea€<A 8a€<A 50a€<A (18)a€«A 2430ther income (expense), neta€«A a€"a€<«A (9)a€<A 52a€<A 50Total other (expense) income, neta€«A 10a€<A 145a€<A
404€<A 235Loss before taxesa€<A (2,167)a€<A (6,700)a€<A (10,136)a€<A (19,858)Income tax benefita€<A 210a€<A 6684€<A 1,9764€<A 2,574Net lossa€<A (1,957)a€<A (6,032)a€A
(8,160)a€<A (17,284)Dividend on convertible exchangeable preferred sharesa€<A 4€"a€<A (50)a€<A a€”4€<A (151)Net loss applicable to common shareholdersa€<$ (1,957)a€<$ (6,082)a€<$
(8,160)a€<$ (17,435)Basic and diluted earnings per common share: 4€<A A A a€<A A A a€A A A a€A A A Net loss per share 4€“ basic and diluted (common shareholders)a€<$ (0.18)a€<$
(0.48)a€<$ (2.04)a€<$ (1.39)Net loss per share a€“ basic and diluted (redeemable common shareholders)a€<$ a€”a€«$ (0.48)a€«$ a€”a€<$ (1.39)a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.a€<4 Table of ContentsCYCLACEL PHARMACEUTICALS,A INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS(In $000s)
(Unaud1ted)a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<A Three Months Ended A Nine Months Ended

a€<a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<AAAA2024AAAA2023AAAA?2024A A A A 2023Net lossa€<$ (1,957)a€<$ (6,032)a€<$ (8 160)a€<$ (17 284)Translation adJustmenta€<A
(14,586)a€<A 8,5714€<A (12,967)a€<A (2,050)Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on intercompany loansa€<A 14,4683€<A (8,642)a€<A 12,842a€<A 2,198Comprehensive lossa€«$
(2,075)a€<$ (6,103)a€<$ (8,285)a€<$ (17,136)a€«The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.a€<a€<5 Table of Contentsa€<CYCLACEL
PHARMACEUTICALS,A INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY (DEFICIT)(In $000s, except share amounts)
(Unaudlted)a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<A Accumulateda€<a€<a€<a€<«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«ac«a€«a€«ac<éa
inA ComprehensiveA AccumulatedA Stockholdersa€™&€<A A A A SharesA A A A AmountA A A A SharesA A A A AmountA A A A CapitalA A A A LossA A A A DeficitA A A A Equity
(Deficit)Balances at DecemberA 31,A 2022a€« 573,2824€<$ 4€”A 628,1394€<$ 1a€<$ 422,9814€<$ (1, 316)a€<$ (405, 727)a€<$

15,9394€ <A€ <A€ A€ <AL <AE <AL <AL AE AL AE AL AE A€ AE A€ AE AL AEAEAEAE«AE<Stock-based compensationA A€”a€<A A€”A A€”AE<A 4€”a€<A 4014€<A a4€”a€«A 4€”4€«A 401Preferred stock
dividendsA a€”a€<A 4€”A a€”a€«A a€”a€A (50)a€<A a4€”a€A a€”a€A (50)Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loansA A€”a€<A a€”A a€”a€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€«A 5,263a€<A
4€”4€<A 5,263Translation adJustmentA 4€7a€<A 4€”A A€”a€<A A€7a€<A A€”4€<A (5,171)a€<A a€”a€<A (5,171)Loss for the perlodA a4€7a€<A 4€”A A€"aE<A A€”"aE<A A€”7aE<A a€"aEA
(5,804)é€<A (5,804)Balances at March 31,A 2023A 573,282a€<$ a€”A 628,1394€<$ 14€<$ 423,3324€<$ (1,224)a€<$ (411,531)a€<$

10,57 84€ <€ A€ <AEAEAEAEAEAE AL AE AL AE AE AE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEIssue of common stock on At Market issuance sales agreement, net of expensesA &4€”&4€<A 4€”A 53,213a€<A
a€”a€<A 1,105a€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€<A 1,105Stock-based compensationA a€”a€<A a€”A a€”a€«A a€”a€«A 359a€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€«A 359Preferred stock dividendsA a€”a€<A a€”A a€”a€A
4€7a€<A (50)a€<A 4€”a€<A 4€”a€<A (50)Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loansA a€”a€<A 4€”A &€”a€<A 4€”a€<A a€”a€<A 5,577a€<A a€”a€«A 5,577Translation adjustmentA
a€”a€<A a€”A a€”a€A a€”a€A a€”a€<A (5,450)a€<A a€”a€<A (5,450)Loss for the periodA a€”a€<A a€”A a€”a€<A a€”a€«A a€”a€A a€”a€<A (5,448)a€«A (5,448)Balances at June

30,A 2023A 573,282a€<$ 4€”A 681,3528€<$ 14€<$ 424,7464€<$ (1,097)a€<$ (416,979)4€<$ 6,6712€ A€ A€ A€ AE AE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE A€ Reclassification of
redeemable common stockA a€”a€<A a€”A 154,593a€<«A a€”a€<«A 3,389a€«A A€”a€«A a€”a€«A 3,389Stock-based compensationA A€”a€«A A€”A 6,909a€<A a€”a€<A 390a€«A a€”a€A
4€”4€<A 390Preferred stock dividendsa€« 4€”4€<A 4€”A 4€”a€<A A€"a€A (50)a€<A 4€74€<A a€”aEA (50)Unreahzed forelgn exchange on intercompany loansa€« a€” "A4€<A 4€"A a€7a€A
a€”a€<A a€”a€<A (8, 642)a€<A 4€”a€<A (8,642)Translation adjustmentA &4€”a4€<A 4€”A a€”a€<A a€”a€<A a€”a€<A 8,5714€«A 4€”4€<A 8,571Loss for the periodA a€”a€<A 4€”A a€”a€A
4€7a€<A a€”aE<A A€”a€<A (6,032)a€<A (6,032)Balances at September 30,A 2023A 573,2824€<$ 4€”A 842,8544€<$ 14€<$ 428,4758€<$ (1,168)a€<$ (423,011)a€<$

4,2978€<a€ A€ A€ <€ <AE€ <AL A€ A€ AL <AL <AL AL AL AL AL <AL AL AL AL AL AL <AL AE AL AL AL AL <AL AL AL AL AL AL <AL (AE AL AL AL AL AL AL AL AL At At AL AL AL AL At«At AL Ak aEaE<at«at@at«
at DecemberA 31,A 20234€< 454, 537a€<$ 4€”A 1,058, 892a€<$ 1a€<$ 429, 796a€<$ (908)a€<$ (428, 282)a€«$ 607Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants
in underwritten offering 4€< 4€” "a€<A 4€”A 219,7004€<A a€”a€A (80)a€<A 4€”a€<A a€”a€A (80)Series B Preferred stock conversionsa€«< (119,000)4€<a€< 4€"a€<« 39,6674€<a€« 4€"4€ A€«
4€"a€<A A€”3E<A AE€”AE<AE< 4€”Stock-based compensationA 4€”a€<A 4€”A &4€”&4€<A 4€”a€<A 203a€<A 4€”a€<A 4€"a€<A 203Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loansA &€”&€<A
a€”A a€”aE<A a€”aEA a€”a€«A (2,130)a€<A a€”a€<A (2,130)Translation adjustmentA A€”a€<A A€”A &4€”4€<A &4€”4€<A 4€”a€<A 2,1404€<A a€”a€<A 2,140Loss for the periodA &€”a€<A
a€”A a€7a€A a€7A€A A€”A€A A€A€A (2,946)a€<A (2,946)Balances at March 31,A 2024A 335,537a4€<$ 4€”A 1,318,2598€<$ 1a€<$ 429,919a€<$ (898)a€<$ (431,228)a€<$

(2,206)a€<a€ A€ <A€<A€ A€ AE<AE A€ A€ Q€A <AE A€ AL AL <At af«a€at«a€«a€«a€dssue of common stock and pre-funded warrants in Securities Purchase Agreement In Private Placement, net of
expenses a€< 4€”a€<A &4€”A 486,945a€<A 1a€<A 6,289a€<A A€”aE€<A a€”a€<A 6,290Stock-based compensationA A€”4€<A 4€”A 4€”a€<A &4€”a€<A 189a€«A 4€”a€«A 4€”a€<A 189Unrealized
foreign exchange on intercompany loansA A€”a€<A 4€”A &4€”4€<A 4€”a€<A a€”a€<A 5044€<A a€”3€<A 504Translation adjustmentA &4€”a4€<A 4€”A A€”a€<A A€”AE€A A€”AE<A (521)a€A
a4€”a€<A (521)Loss for the periodA 4€”a€<A 4€”A A€”a€«A a€"a€«A a€”a€«A a€”a€<«A (3,257)a€<A (3,257)Balances at June 30,A 2024A 335,537a€<$ 4€”A 1,805,2044€<$ 24€<$ 436,3974€<$
(915)a€<$ (434,485)a€<$ 99IAE AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEExpenses related to Securities Purchase Agreement In Private Placementa€« 4€”a€<A
a€"A a€”a€A 4€”4€A (1)a€A 4€"a€A a€”a€«A (1)Exercise of pre-funded warrantsA 4€”4€<A 4€”A 347,000a€<A 4€a€<A a€"a€A a€"a€A 4€"4€«A a€”Stock-based compensationa€«
4€7a€<A a€”A A€”AE<A a€”a€<A 1074€<A a€”a€<A 4€”a€«A 107Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loansA A€”4€<A 4€”A &4€”4€<A 4€"4€<A 4€"a€<A 14,4683€<A A€”aE€A
14,468Translation adjustmentA a€”a€<A a€”A a4€”a€<A 4€”a€<A a€”a€<A (14,586)a€«A a€”a€<«A (14,586)Loss for the periodA a€”a€<A a€”A a€”a€<A A€”a€<A 4€”A€A a4€”a€A
(1,957)a€<A (1,957)Balances at September 30,A 2024A 335,5374€<$ 4€”A 2,152,2044€<$ 24€<$ 436,5038€<$ (1,033)4€<$ (436,442)a€<$ (970)a€<4€<The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.a€<«a€<6 Table of ContentsCYCLACEL PHARMACEUTICALS, A INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS(In $000s)
(Unaudited)a€<a€<a€«a€«a€<a€<«a€<a€<«a€«Nine Months Ended a€<a€<SeptemberA 30,A 46<AAAA2024AAAA 20230perating activities: 4€<a€<A A 4€<4€<A A Net lossa€«$ (8,160)a€<$
(17,284)Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:a€<a€<A A a€<4€<A A Depreciationa€<a€« 5a€<«a€« 23Stock-based compensationa€«a€« 499a€<4€« 1,151Changes
in lease liabilitya€<a€< (37)a€<a€« (55)Changes in operating assets and liabilities:a€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<a€<Prepaid expenses and other assetsa€<a€« 3,129a€<a€« 3,364Accounts payable, accrued and
other current liabilitiesa€<a€« (2,070)a€<«a€<« 599Net cash used in operating activitiesa€«a€« (6,634)a€<a€« (12,202)Investing activities: :4€<a€<A A 4€<A€<A A Purchase of property, plant and
equipmenta€«a€« 4€”4€<4€« (6)Net cash used in investing activitiesa€<a€« 4€”a€<a€« (6)Financing activities:a€<4€<A A 4€<a€<A A Proceeds from issuing common stock and pre-funded warrants,
neta€<a€« 6,2094€<4€« a€”Payment of preferred stock dividenda€<a€« a€”a€<a€« (151)Net cash provided by (used) in financing activitiesa€<«a€< 6,209a€<a€< (151)a€<«a€a€<a€<«a€«a€<a€<Effect of
exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalentsa€<a€« 294€<a€« (42)Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsa€<«a€« (396)a€<a€« (12,401)Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of perioda€«a€« 3,378a€<4€« 18,345Cash and cash equivalents, end of perioda€«$ 2,982a€<$ 5,944Supplemental cash flow information:a€<a€<A A 4€<4€<A A Cash received during the period
for:a€<A€<A A 4€<a€<A A Interesta€«$ 594€<$ 243Research & development tax creditsa€<$ 3,7154€<$ 4,8464€ A€ <4€<A€<a€<a€<a€<«Cash paid during the period for:a€<A€<A€<A€<A€<AETaxesa€«$
24€<$ 28€<A€<A€ A€ A€ A€A€Non cash financing activities:A€<a€<A A 4€<a€<A A Accrual of preferred stock dividendsa€«$ 4€”4€<$ 50a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.4€<7 Table of ContentsCYCLACEL PHARMACEUTICALS,A INC.NOTESA TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS1.AAAAAAA A A A A Company OverviewNature of OperationsCyclacel Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (4€ceCyclacela€ or the &4€ceCompanya€)A is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical
company developing innovative cancer medicines based on cell cycle, transcriptional regulation, epigenetics and mitosis control biology. Cyclacel is a pioneer company in the field of cancer cell
cycle biology with a vision to improve patient healthcare by translating insights in cancer biology into medicines that can overcome resistance and ultimately increase a patienta€™s overall
survival.Through September 30, 2024, substantially all efforts of the Company to date have been devoted to performing research and development, conducting clinical trials, developing and
acquiring intellectual property, raising capital and recruiting and training personnel.4€<2.AAAAAA A A A A A A Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesBasis of PresentationThe
consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024, the consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, and stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit) for the three and nine months ended



September 30, 2024 and 2023 and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, and all related disclosures contained in the
accompanying notes, are unaudited. The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 is derived from the audited consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 4€0ceSECAa€) on March 21, 2024. The consolidated financial statements are
presented on the basis of accounting principles that are generally accepted in the United States (4€eGAAPA€) for interim financial information and in accordance with the rules and regulations
of the SEC. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for a complete set of financial
statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30,
2024, and the results of operations, comprehensive loss, and changes in stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, and cash flows for the nine
months ended September 30, 2024, have been made. The interim results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for
the year ending December 31, 2024 or for any other reporting period. The consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements
and the accompanying notes for the year ended December 31, 2023 that are included in the Companya€™s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 21, 2024.Going
ConcernPursuant to the requirements of Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 205-40, Presentation of Financial Statements-Going Concern, management is required at each reporting period
to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about an entitya€™s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the financial statements are issued. This evaluation initially does not take into consideration the potential mitigating effect of managementa€™s plans that have not been fully
implemented as of the date the financial statements are issued. When substantial doubt exists under this methodology, management evaluates whether the mitigating effects of its plans
sufficiently alleviate the substantial doubt about the Companya€™s ability to continue as a going concern. The mitigating effect of managementa€™ s plans, however, is only considered if both
(1) it is probable that the plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued, and (2) it is probable that the plans, when implemented,
will mitigate the relevant conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entityd€™s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that these financial 8 Table of
Contentsstatements are issued. In performing its analysis, management excluded certain elements of its operating plan that cannot be considered probable. Under ASC 205-40, the future
receipts of potential funding from future equity or debt issuances or by entering into partnership agreements cannot be considered probable at this time because these plans are not entirely
within the Companya€™ s control nor have they been approved by the Board of Directors as of the date of these consolidated financial statements. Based on the Companya€™ s current operating
plan, it is anticipated thatA cash and cash equivalents of $3.0 million as of September 30, 2024,A will allow it to meet its liquidity requirements into the fourth quarter of 2024. The
Companya€™s history of losses, negative cash flows from operations, liquidity resources currently on hand, and its dependence on the ability to obtain additional financing to fund its operations
after the current resources are exhausted, about which there can be no certainty, have resulted in the assessment that there is substantial doubt about the Companya€™s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the issuance date of these financial statements. While the Company has plans in place to mitigate this risk, which primarily consist of
raising additional capital through equity financing or by entering into a strategic transaction, there is no guarantee that it will be successful in these mitigation efforts. In the event that we are
not able to secure funding, we may be forced to curtail operations, delay or stop ongoing development activities, cease operations altogether, and/or file for bankruptcy.a€<On August 26, 2024,
the Listing Qualifications Staff (the 4€ceStaffa€) of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (d€ceNasdaqa€) determined that the Company was not in compliance with the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1)
(the a€ceEquity Rulea€) because the Company reported stockholdersa€™ equity of less than $2.5 million as of June 30, 2024. The notice from the Staff further stated that unless the Company
timely requested a hearing before a Nasdaq Hearings Panel (the &€cePanela€), the Companya€™s securities would be subject to delisting. As of September 30, 2024, the Company has a
stockholders equity deficit of approximately $0.97 million which is not in compliance with the Equity Rule. On October 15, 2024, the Company met with the Panel regarding the Companya€™ s
potential delisting from Nasdaq as a result of its violation of the Equity Rule. On October 22, 2024, the Company received the Panela€™ s decision which granted the Company until December
24, 2024 to regain compliance with the Equity Rule and all applicable criteria for continued listing on Nasdag. If the Company is unable to regain compliance with the listing standards of the
Nasdaq Capital Market by December 24, 2024, the Companya€ ™ s securities may be delisted from Nasdaq.The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, which contemplates realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. Recently Issued Accounting PronouncementsThe FASB has issued ASU
2023-07, a€ceSegment Reporting (Topic 280)a€. This standard will require all public entities 4€“ even those like the Company that have a single reportable segment 4€“ to disclose additional
information about the title and position of the Chief Operating Decision Maker (2€ceCODMa€), the measure or measures of segment profit and loss used by the CODM in assessing segment
performance and deciding how to allocate resources, an explanation of how the CODM uses the reported measure(s) in assessing segment performance, significant segment expenses that are
regularly provided to the CODM, and a reconciliation of segment profit and loss to the closest consolidated totals prepared under United States GAAP. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 are
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. ASU 2023-07 will not change the way in which
reportable segments are determined. However, the Company is currently evaluating the effects of ASU 2023-07 on its financial statement presentation and disclosures.The FASB has issued ASU
2023-09, a€eIncome Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosuresa€. This standard will require all entities to include specified captions when reconciling the statutory income
tax rate to the effective tax rate, on both a percentage and absolute dollar basis. ASU 2023-09 will also require entities to disclose the amount of income taxes paid (net of refunds received)
disaggregated by federal (national), state, and foreign for each annual reporting period, with separate disclosure of individual jurisdictions for which tax payments to, or receipts from, exceed a
defined threshold. The guidance in ASU 2023-09 becomes effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company does not anticipate that ASU 2023-09 will require
significant adjustments to the presentation of that information.9 Table of ContentsFair Value of Financial InstrumentsFinancial instruments consist of cash equivalents, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their respective fair values due to the nature of the accounts and their short
maturities.Comprehensive Income (Loss)All components of comprehensive income (loss), including net income (loss), are reported in the financial statements in the period in which they are
recognized. Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net income (loss)
and other comprehensive income (loss), including foreign currency translation adjustments, are reported, net of any related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income (loss). No taxes were
recorded on items of other comprehensive income (loss). There were no reclassifications out of other comprehensive income (loss) during the three and nineA months ended September 30, 2024
and 2023.Foreign Currency and Currency TranslationTransactions that are denominated in a foreign currency are remeasured into the functional currency at the current exchange rate on the
date of the transaction. Any foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured at current exchange rates, with gains or losses recognized as foreign
exchange (losses) gains in the statement of operations. This accounting policy is also applied to foreign currency denominated intercompany payables or receivables for which settlement is
planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future.a€<The assets and liabilities of the Companya€™ s international subsidiary are translated from its functional currency into United States dollars
at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Average rates of exchange during the period are used to translate the statement of operations, while historical rates of exchange are used
to translate any equity transactions. Translation adjustments arising on consolidation due to differences between average rates and balance sheet rates, as well as unrealized foreign exchange
gains or losses arising from translation of intercompany loans for whichsettlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future and that are of a long-term-investment nature, are
recorded in other comprehensive loss. LeasesThe Company accounts for lease contracts in accordance with ASC 842. As of September 30, 2024, the Companya€™ s outstanding leases are
classified as operating leases.The Company recognizes an asset for the right to use an underlying leased asset for the lease term and records lease liabilities based on the present value of the
Companya€™s obligation to make lease payments under the lease. As the Companya€™ s leases do not indicate an implicit rate, the Company uses a best estimate of its incremental borrowing
rate to discount the future lease payments. The Company estimates its incremental borrowing rate based on observable information about risk-free interest rates that are the same tenure as the
lease term, adjusted for various factors, including the effects of assumed collateral, the nature of how the loan is repaid (e.g., amortizing versus bullet), and the Company&€™s credit risk.The
Company evaluates lessee-controlled options included in its lease agreements to extend or terminate the lease. The Company will reflect the effects of exercising those options in the lease term
when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option. In assessing whether it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise an option, the Company considers factors
such as:d—The lease payments due in any optional period;a—Penalties for failure to exercise (or not exercise) the option;a—Market factors, such as the availability of similar assets and current
rental rates for such assets;a—The nature of the underlying leased asset and its importance to the Companya€™s operations; and10 Table of Contentsa—The remaining useful lives of any
related leasehold improvements.Lease expense for operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments, if any, are recognized in the period when
the obligation to make those payments is incurred. Lease incentives received prior to lease commencement are recorded as a reduction in the right-of-use asset. Fixed lease incentives received
after lease commencement reduce both the lease liability and the right-of-use asset.The Company has elected an accounting policy to account for the lease and non-lease components as a single
lease component.Revenue RecognitionWhen the Company enters into contracts with customers, the Company recognizes revenue using the five step-model provided in ASC 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (4€ceASC 606a€):(1)identify the contract with a customer;(2)identify the performance obligations in the contract;(3)determine the transaction price;(4)allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and(5)recognize revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.The transaction price includes fixed
payments and an estimate of variable consideration, including milestone payments. The Company determines the variable consideration to be included in the transaction price by estimating the
most likely amount that will be received and then applies a constraint to reduce the consideration to the amount which is probable of being received. When applying the constraint, the Company
considers:a—Whether achievement of a development milestone is highly susceptible to factors outside the entitya€™s influence, such as milestones involving the judgment or actions of third
parties, including regulatory bodies;d—Whether the uncertainty about the achievement of the milestone is not expected to be resolved for a long period of time;a—Whether the Company can
reasonably predict that a milestone will be achieved based on previous experience; anda—The complexity and inherent uncertainty underlying the achievement of the milestone.The transaction
price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the relative selling price of each performance obligation. The best estimate of the selling price is determined after considering all
reasonably available information, including market data and conditions, entity-specific factors such as the cost structure of the deliverable and internal profit and pricing objectives.The revenue
allocated to each performance obligation is recognized as or when the Company satisfies the performance obligation.The Company recognizes a contract asset, when the value of satisfied (or
part satisfied) performance obligations is in excess of the payment due to the Company, and deferred revenue when the amount of unconditional consideration is in excess of the value of
satisfied (or part satisfied) performance obligations. Once a right to receive consideration is unconditional, that amount is presented as a receivable.Grant revenue received from organizations
that are not the Companya€™s customers, such as charitable foundations or government agencies, is presented as a reduction against the related research and development expenses.11 Table
of Contents3.AAAAAAAAA A A RevenueThe Company recognized $10,000 and $43,000 of revenue for the threeA and nine months ended September 30, 2024 respectively. This revenue is
related to recovery of clinical manufacturing costs associated with an investigator sponsored study managed by Cedars-Sinai Medical Center. Revenues recognized for the threeA and nine
months ended September 30, 2023 were $16,000 and $389,000 respectively.4. AAAAA A AA A A A Net Loss per Common ShareThe Company calculates net loss per common share in
accordance with ASC 260 a€ceEarnings Per Sharea€ (4€0eASC 260&€). Basic and diluted net loss per common share was determined by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by
the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. The following potentially dilutive securities have not been included in the computation of diluted net
loss per share for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, as the result would be anti-

dilutive:2€<A€<A€AE<AEAEQ@EA SeptemberA 30,A a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<A A A A2024A A A A 2023Stock optlonsA 118,989A 145,446Restricted Stock UnitsA 39,747A 34,7986% convertible
exchangeable preferred stockA 6A 6SeriesA A preferred stockA 440A 440SeriesA B preferred stockA 4€”A 79,248Common stock warrantsA 10,871,577A 215,625Total shares excluded from
calculationA 11,030,759A 475,5634€<a€5.AAAAAAAAAA A A Prepaid Expenses and Other Current AssetsPrepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following (in

$0005s):4€<A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEA SeptemberA 30,A 4€<DecemberA 31,A 4€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Research and development tax credit receivablea€«$ 1,248a€«$ 2,933Prepayments and
VAT receivablea€<a€« 3744€<A 7920ther current assetsa€«A 309a€<a€« 3414€<a€<$ 1,9314€<$ 4,066a€<4€6.AAAAAAAAAAA A Non-Current AssetsAs of September 30, 2024, the Company
had non-current assets of $0.4 million, which is primarily comprised of deposits held by a contract research organization in relation to the Companya€™s clinical

trials.7AAAAAAAA A A A A Accrued and Other LiabilitiesAccrued and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in

$000s):2€ A€ <A€ AE<AE<AEAEAEA SeptemberA 30,A a€<DecemberA 31,A 4€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Accrued research and developmenta€<$ 1,616a€<$ 3,668Accrued legal and professional
feesa€<A 277a€<A 5700ther current liabilitiesa€<A 332a€<A 380a€<a€<$ 2,2254€<$ 4,6184€<4€<12 Table of Contentsa€8. AAAAAAAAAAA ‘A LeasesThe Company currently has an
operating lease liability relating to its facilities in Berkeley Heights, New Jersey.For the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized operating lease expenses of
$57,178 and $55,982 respectively, including $9,097 and $7,902 respectively relating to a short term lease for offices in Dundee, Scotland. Cash payments made during the nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $38,058 and $55,245, respectively, and were presented within cash outflows from operating activities. The remaining lease term as of September 30, 2024
is approximately 0.8 years for the Berkeley Heights facility. The discount rate used by the Company in determining the lease liability was 12%.Remaining lease payments for both facilities are
as follows (in $000s):3€<4€<a€<4€<2024A A A A $ 1620254€<4€<« 38Thereaftera€«a€« a4€”Total future minimum lease obligationa€«$ 54Less discounta€«a€« (3)TotalA $
51a€<4€4€9.AAAAAAAAAAA A Stock Based CompensationASC 718 requires compensation expense associated with share-based awards to be recognized over the requisite service period
which, for the Company, is the period between the grant date and the date the award vests or becomes exercisable. The Company recognizes all share-based awards under the straight-line
attribution method, assuming that all granted awards will vest. Forfeitures are recognized in the periods when they occur.A Stock based compensation has been reported within expense line
items on the consolidated statement of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 as shown in the following table (in
$0005):4€<A€<A€<AE<AE<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEA A A A Three Months Ended A A A A Nine Months Ended

A A A A a€<A SeptemberA 30,A A SeptemberA 30,A A 46<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023A A A A 2024A A A A 2023a€<General and administrativea€<$ 1014€<$ 279a€<$ 421a€<$ 801a€<Research and
developmenta€«a€« 6a€<«$ 1114€a€« 78a€<a€« 350a€<Stock-based compensation costsa€«$ 107a€<$ 390a€<$ 499a€<$ 1,1514€<a€<2018 Planln May 2018, the Companya€™ s stockholders
approved the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan (the 4€0e2018 Plané€), under which Cyclacel may make equity incentive grants to its officers, employees, directors and consultants. The 2018 Plan
replaced the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (the 4€0e2015 Plana€).a€<The 2018 Plan allows for various types of award grants, including stock options and restricted stock units. 4€<On June 21,
2024, the Companya€™s stockholders approved an additional 160,000 shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2018 Plan. On June 13, 2023, the Companya€™ s stockholders
approved an additional 60,000 shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2018 Plan. As of June 30, 2024, the Company has reserved approximately 204,000 shares of the
Companya€™s common stock under the 2018 Plan for future issuances. Stock option awards granted under the Companya€™s equity incentive plans have a maximum life of 10 years and
generally vest over a one to four-year period from the date of grant.4€<13 Table of Contents2020 Inducement Equity Incentive PlanA &4€<In October 2020, the Inducement Equity Incentive Plan
(the &€celnducement Plana€), became effective. Under the Inducement Plan, Cyclacel may make equity incentive grants to new senior level Employees (persons to whom the Company may issue
securities without stockholder approval). The Inducement Plan allows for the issuance of up to 13,333 shares of the Companya€™s common stock (or the equivalent of such number). As of
September 30, 2024, 8,000 shares under the Inducement Plan have been issued, leaving a remaining reserve of 5,333 shares.a€<Option Grants and Exercisesa€<There were 12,500 options
granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, all issued under the 2018 Plan. These options had a grant date fair value of $1.77 per option. There were 43,342 options granted



during the nine months ended September 30, 2023. These options had a grant date fair value ranging between $6.32-$10.98 per option. a€<All of the options granted during the nine months
ended September 30, 2024A shall vest six months from their date of grant. Of the options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2023, 25,633 awards shall vest on the third
anniversary of their date of grant, or earlier if either of the certain performance conditions are met relating to enrollment goals for various clinical studies. The Company has assumed that these
awards will vest after three years as satisfaction of the performance conditions is not probable at this time. The fair value of the stock options granted is calculated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model as prescribed by ASC 718 using the following assumptions: A€<A€<A€ A€ A€ <AE A€<AE<aE A€ <a€<a€«a€«Nine months ended 4€<Nine months ended

a€<A SeptemberA 30,A 2024A SeptemberA 30,A 2023Expected term (years)A 6A 5 - 6Risk free interest rateA 3.995%4€<3.660% &€ %o04€ “4€ %o04.050%VolatilityA 93%4&€<89%AEE€ %€ “4€
%092%Expected dividend yield over expected termA 0.00%4€<0.00%Resulting weighted average grant date fair valueA $1.774€<$6.634€<There were no stock options exercised during each of
the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company does not expect to be able to benefit from the deduction for stock option exercises that may occur because the
company has tax loss carryforwards from prior periods that would be expected to offset any potential taxable income.a€<As of September 30, 2024, the total remaining unrecognized
compensation cost related to the non-vested awards with service conditions amounted to approximately $0.2A million, which will be amortized over the weighted-average remaining requisite
service period ofA 1.45A years.14 Table of ContentsOutstanding OptionsA summary of the share option activity and related information is as

follows:a€ A€ <A€ A€ AL A€ AEAEAEAEAE@BEAAAA a€A A A A a€&4€A A A A WeightedA A A A a€<a€<€<A a€<A WeightedA AverageA 4€<4€<4€«A NumberA ofA AverageA RemainingA Aggregat
outstanding at DecemberA 31,A 2023A 142,796a€<$ 50.20A 7.96a€<$ 4€”Granteda€« 12,5004€<$ 2.28A 4€”a€<$ 4€”Exerciseda€« A€"a€<$ a€”A 4€"a€<$ a€”Cancelled/forfeiteda€« (36,307)a€<$
51.78A a€”a€<$ 4€”Options outstanding at SeptemberA 30,A 2024A 118,9894€<$ 44.31A 7.464€<$ A€"A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEUnvested at SeptemberA 30,A 2024A 20,2734€<$
14.00A 8.53a€<$ a€”Vested and exercisable at SeptemberA 30,A 2024A 98,716a€<$ 50.54A 7.24a€<$ a€”a€Restricted Stock UnitsThe Company issued 12,500 restricted stock units during the
nine months ended September 30, 2024. These restricted stock units vest monthly over a six-month service period. These restricted stock units were valued at $2.28 at the date of grant, which
was equivalent to the market price of a share of the Companya€™s common stock on that date.A total of 17,133 restricted stock units issued in January 2023 vest on the third anniversary of
their date of grant, or earlier if certain defined clinical trial related performance targets are met. A three-year vesting assumption was applied to these restricted stock units as satisfaction of
the performance conditions is not probable at this time. Each of these restricted stock units was valued at $13.50 at the date of grant, which was equivalent to the market price of a share of the
Companya€™s common stock on that date. During 2023, 300 of these restricted stock units were forfeited as the recipient voluntarily terminated employment with the Company. Through
September 30, 2024, an additional 7,077 of these restricted stock units have been forfeited due to the holdersa€™ termination of employment with the Company.Summarized information for
restricted stock units as of September 30, 2024 is as follows: A€<AE A€ AE<AEAEAEA aE<A Weighteda€<A a€<A Averagea€«a€«RestrictedA Remaininga€<a€«Stock Unitsa€«TermRestricted Stock
Units outstanding at DecemberA 31,A 2023A 34,4984€<8.96 yearsGranteda€« 12,5004€<4€<Cancelled/forfeiteda€« (7,251)a€a€<Restricted Stock Units outstanding at SeptemberA 30,A 20244€<
39,7474a€<8.55 yearsa€ a€<a€«a€<«a€«Unvested at SeptemberA 30,A 2024A 10,2784€<8.31 yearsa€«a€<«a€«a€«a€Vested at SeptemberA 30,A 2024A 29,4694€<8.64
yearsa€«a€«a€<«a€«@€<10.AAAAAAAAAAA A Stockholders EquityApril 2024 Securities Purchase AgreementOn April 30, 2024, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement
(the 4€ePurchase Agreementa€) with an institutional investor (the 4&€cePurchasera€) for the issuance and sale in a private placement (the a&€cePrivate Placementa€) of (i) 145,000 shares of the
Companya€™s common stock, (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase up to 4,823,945 shares of common stock (the &€cePre-Funded Warrantsa€), (iii) series A warrants to purchase up to
4,968,945 shares of common stock (the 15 Table of Contentsa€ceSeries A Warrantsa€), and (iv) series B warrants to purchase up to 4,968,945 shares of common stock (the 4€meSeries B
Warrantsa€ and together with the Series A Warrants, the 4€ceCommon Warrantsa€). The purchase price of each share of common stock and associated Common Warrants was $1.61 and the
purchase price of each Pre-Funded Warrant and associated Common Warrants was $1.6099.A The Common Warrants are exercisable immediately upon issuance at an exercise price of $1.36
per share. The Series A Warrants will expire five and one-half years from the date of issuance and the Series B Warrants will expire eighteen months from the date of issuance. The Pre-Funded
Warrants are exercisable immediately upon issuance at an exercise price of $0.0001 per share and may be exercised at any time until the Pre-Funded Warrants are exercised in full. A holder of
Pre-Funded Warrants or Common Warrants (together with its affiliates) may not exercise any portion of such warrants to the extent that the holder would own more than 4.99% (or, at the
election of the holder 9.99%) of the Companya€ ™ s outstanding common stock immediately after exercise.A In connection with the Private Placement, the Company entered into a registration
rights agreement (the 4€ceRegistration Rights Agreement4a€), dated as of April 30, 2024, with the Purchaser, pursuant to which the Company agreed to prepare and file a registration statement
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 4€0eSECA€) registering the resale of the securities issued in the Private Placement.A The Private Placement closed on May 2, 2024. The gross
proceeds to the Company from the Private Placement were approximately $8.0 million, before deducting placement agent fees and estimated offering expenses payable by the Company. A H.C.
Wainwright & Co., LLC (a4€ceWainwrighta€) acted as the Companya€™ s exclusive placement agent in connection with the Private Placement, pursuant to that certain engagement letter, dated
as of April 29, 2024, between the Company and Wainwright (as amended, the 4€ceEngagement Lettera€). Pursuant to the Engagement Letter, the Company paid Wainwright (i) a cash fee equal
to 7.0% of the aggregate gross proceeds of the Private Placement and (ii) a management fee of 1.0% of the aggregate gross proceeds of the Private Placement. In addition, the Company agreed
to pay Wainwright certain expenses and issued to Wainwright or its designees warrants (the &€cePlacement Agent Warrantsa€) to purchase up to an aggregate of 298,137 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price equal to $2.0125 per share. The Placement Agent Warrants are exercisable immediately upon issuance and have a term of exercise equal to five and a half years from
the date of issuance.A In connection with this transaction, the Company was required to compensate Roth Capital Partners, LLC, pursuant to a tail provision contained in an engagement letter
entered into on March 14, 2024, in an amount equal to 7.0% of the aggregate proceeds of the Private Placement plus the reimbursement of certain expenses. The Company was also required to
compensate Ladenburg ThalmannA & Co. Inc, pursuant to a tail provision contained in an engagement letter entered into on October 30, 2023, in an amount equal to 8.0% of the aggregate
proceeds of the Private Placement.a€<Each of the instruments issued in the Private Placement have been classified and recorded as part of shareholdersa€™ equity (deficit).A The amounts
allocated to each issued security were based on their relative fair values, resulting in initial carrying values of the respective instruments as follows:a€<a€<a€<Allocated AmountCommon
shares$72,108Prefunded warrants2,398,831Common warrants3,819,274Net proceeds$6,290,213a€<«a€<The aggregate fair value of the Placement Agent Warrants was $609,179. These have
been accounted for as a direct cost of the Private Placement, resulting in no net effect to overall shareholdersa€™ equity (deficit).a€<In determining the fair values of the Pre-Funded Warrants,
Common Warrants, and Placement Agent Warrants, the Company used a Black-Scholes Option Pricing model with the following assumptions: 16 Table of Contentsa€<a€«Pre-Funded
WarrantsCommon WarrantsPlacement Agent WarrantsExpected volatility100%103% - 121%103%Contractual term1 year1AY: - 5AY years5AY: yearsRisk-free interest rate5.51%4.57% -
5.51%4.57%Expected dividend yield0%0%0%&a€<a€<The fair value of the common shares was determined using the closing price of the Companya€™s common stock as of May 2, 2024, which is
the date that the Private Placement closed. a€<a€<December 2023 Registered Direct Offering Securities Purchase AgreementOn December 21, 2023, the Company entered into a securities
purchase agreementA (the &€ceSecurities Purchase Agreementa€) with certain institutional investors (A4€cePurchasersa€). Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, the Company agreed
to sell in a registered direct offering (4€eRegistered Direct Offeringa€) 168,500 shares (d€ceSharesa€) of the Companya€™s common stock, $0.001 par value per share (4€cCommon Stocka€),
and pre-funded warrants (&€cePre-Funded Warrantsa€) to purchase up to 219,700 shares of Common Stock. The Pre-Funded Warrants have an exercise price of $0.001 per share and can be
exercised at any time after their original issuance until such Pre-Funded Warrants are exercised in full. Each Share is being sold at an offering price of $3.315 and each Pre-Funded Warrant is
being sold at an offering price of $3.314 (equal to the purchase price per Share minus the exercise price of the Pre-Funded Warrant). The Pre-Funded Warrants have been included in the
calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for all periods outstanding.a€<Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, in a concurrent private placement (together with the Registered
Direct Offering, the &€ceOfferingsa€), the Company also agreed to issue to the Purchasers unregistered warrants (4€ceCommon Warrantsa€) to purchase up to 388,200 shares of Common Stock.
Each Common Warrant has an exercise price of $3.19 per share, is exercisable immediately following their original issuance and will expire seven years from the original issuance date. The
closing of the offering occurred on December 26, 2023, and the net proceeds to the Company were approximately $1.0 million, after deducting placement agent fees and other offering expenses
payable by the Company.a€<On DecemberA 21, 2023, in a separate concurrent insider private placement (the &€ceInsider Private Placementa€), the Company also entered into a Securities
Purchase Agreement with certain of its executive officers (the 4€ceInsider Securities Purchase Agreement&€) pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell in a private placement (i)A 6,070
shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 6,070 shares of Common Stock on the same terms as the Common Warrants issued to the Purchasers in the Offerings to Spiro Rombotis, the
Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer, and (ii)A 1,886 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 1,886 shares of Common Stock on the same terms as the Common Warrants issued to
the Purchasers in the Offerings to Paul McBarron, the Companya€™s Executive Vice President-Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer. Each such share of Common Stock
and accompanying warrant was sold at a purchase price of $3.315, which was the same purchase price for the Shares sold in the Registered Direct Offering.a€<Ladenburg ThalmannA & Co. Inc.
(the &€cePlacement Agenta€) acted as the exclusive placement agent for the Offerings, pursuant to a placement agency agreement (the d€cePlacement Agency Agreementa€), dated

DecemberA 21, 2023, by and between the Company and the Placement Agent.a€<Pursuant to the Placement Agency Agreement, the Company paid the Placement Agent a cash placement fee
equal to 8.0% of the aggregate gross proceeds raised in the Offerings from sales arranged for by the Placement Agent. Subject to certain conditions, the Company also agreed to reimburse all
reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket expenses of the Placement Agent in connection with the Offerings, including but not limited to legal fees, up to a maximum of $85,000. In addition, the
Placement Agent also received warrants that have substantially the same terms as the Warrants issued in the concurrent private placement to the Purchasers in the Offerings to purchase that
number of shares of Common Stock 17 Table of Contentsequal to 6.0% of the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock and Prefunded Warrants sold in the Offerings, or an aggregate of
23,769 shares of Common Stock, at an exercise price of $4.14375 per share (the &€cePlacement Agent Warrantsa€). The Placement Agent Warrants will be exercisable immediately following the
date of issuance and will expire five years from issuance. The Placement Agency Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and agreements by the Company and customary
conditions to closing. The Company has agreed to indemnify the Placement Agent against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and liabilities arising from breaches of
representations and warranties contained in the Placement Agency Agreement, or to contribute to payments that the Placement Agent may be required to make in respect of those
liabilities.&€<Each of the instruments issued in the Offerings and the Insider Private Placement have been classified and recorded as part of shareholdersa€™ equity (deficit).A The amounts
allocated to each issued security were based on their relative fair values, resulting in initial carrying values of the respective instruments as follows:a€<a€<The aggregate fair value of the
Placement Agent Warrants was $47,000. These have been accounted for as a direct cost of the Offerings and Inside Private Placement, resulting in no net effect to overall shareholdersa€™
equity (deficit).4€<In determining the fair values of the Pre-Funded Warrants, Regular Warrants, and Placement Agent Warrants, the Company used a Black-Scholes Option Pricing model with
the following assumptions: 4€<a€<The fair value of the common shares was determined using the closing price of the Companya€™s common stock as of December 26, 2023, which is the date
that the Offerings and the Insider Private Placement closed.August 2021 Controlled Equity Offering Sales AgreementOn August 12, 2021, the Company entered into a Controlled Equity Offering
Sales AgreementA (the 4€ceSales Agreementa€) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. ("Cantor"), pursuant to which the Company could issue and sell, from time to time, shares of its common stock
having an aggregate offering price of up to $50.0 million through Cantor as the sales agent. Cantor could sell the Companya€™s common stock by any method permitted by law deemed to be an
4€ceat the market offeringa€ as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) of the Securities Act.4€<On August 12, 2022, the Company became aware that the shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (file
number 333-231923) (the a€ceRegistration Statementa€) associated with this Sales Agreement had expired on June 21, 2022. Prior to becoming aware of the expiration, the Company sold an
aggregate of 132,473 shares of its common stock at the market price, following the expiration of the Registration Statement and through AugustA 12, 2022, for aggregate proceeds of
approximately $2,721,187. There was no sale of shares post August 12, 2022. The sale of these shares was subject to potential rescission rights by certain shareholders. As a result of these
potential rescission rights, the Company reclassified 207,807 shares (including 75,333 shares sold for which the Company did not receive any proceeds), with an aggregate purchase price of
$4,494,496 of its common as stock outside stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit) through the expiration date of those rescission rights in August 2023. These shares were treated as issued and
outstanding for purposes of calculating basic and diluted loss per share in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023. The 18 Table of Contentsrescission rights for these shares have
lapsed and the shares were reclassified back to permanent equity. There have been no claims or demands to exercise such rights.&€<On August 15, 2022, due to expiry of the Registration
Statement, the Sales Agreement was mutually terminated. A total of 218,738 shares, for gross proceeds of approximately $7.6 million, had been sold pursuant to the Sales
Agreement.a€<WarrantsApril 2024 WarrantsAs of September 30, 2024, warrants to purchase a total of 14,718,027 shares of common stock issued pursuant to a securities purchase agreement
in a April 2024 financing transaction (the a€ceApril 2024 Securities Purchase Agreementa€) remained outstanding. A total of 15,059,972 warrants were issued in pursuant to the April 2024
Securities Purchase Agreement. This consisted of i) pre-funded warrants to purchase 4,823,945 of common stock, exercisable immediately from the date of issuance, and with no expiry date, at
an exercise price of $0.0001 per warrant share, ii) series A warrants to purchase up to 4,968,945 shares of common stock, exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of five
and a half years after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $1.36 per warrant share, iii) series B warrants to purchase up to 4,968,945 shares of common stock, exercisable immediately
from the date of issuance for a period of eighteen months after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $1.36 per warrant share. A further 298,137 warrants issued in a concurrent
placement agency agreement, are exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of five and a half years after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $2.0125 per warrant
share.A total of 688,945 pre-funded warrants were exercised during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.December 2023 WarrantsAs of September 30, 2024, warrants to purchase a
total of 419,925 shares of common stock issued pursuant to a securities purchase agreement in a December 2023 financing transaction remained outstanding. A total of 396,156 warrants,
including 7,956 warrants issued in a concurrent private placement, are exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of seven years after the date of issuance, at an exercise
price of $3.19 per warrant share. A further 23,769 warrants issued in a concurrent placement agency agreement, are exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of five years
after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $4.14375 per warrant share. There were no exercises of these warrants during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.December 2020
WarrantsAs of September 30, 2024, warrants to purchase 44,657 shares of common stock issued pursuant to a securities purchase agreement in a December 2020 financing transaction
remained outstanding (the 4€eDecember 2020 Securities Purchase Agreementa€). Each warrant shall be exercisable beginning on the 12-month anniversary of the date of issuance for a period
of five years after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $61.95 per warrant share. The exercise price of the warrants will be subject to adjustment in the event of any stock dividends and
splits, reverse stock split, recapitalization, reorganization or similar transaction, as described in the warrants. The warrants may be exercised on a &€cecashlessa€ basis.There were no exercises
of these warrants during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 or September 30, 2023.April 2020 WarrantsAs of September 30, 2024, 146,000 warrants issued pursuant to a securities
purchase agreement in connection with an April 2020 equity financing remained outstanding, each with an exercise price of $75.00. The common warrants are immediately exercisable and will
expire on the fifth anniversary of the original issuance date. The exercise price and number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise is subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of
19 Table of Contentsstock dividends, stock splits, reorganizations or similar events affecting the Companya€™s common stock. The common warrants were issued separately from the common
stock and were eligible for transfer immediately after issuance. A common warrant to purchase one share of common stock was issued for every share of common stock purchased in this
offering.The common warrants are exercisable, at the option of each holder, in whole or in part, by delivering to the Company a duly executed exercise notice accompanied by payment in full for
the number of shares of the Companya€™s common stock purchased upon such exercise (except in the case of a cashless exercise). A holder (together with its affiliates) may not exercise any
portion of the common warrant to the extent that the holder would own more than 4.99% of the outstanding common stock immediately after exercise, except that upon at least 61 days prior
notice from the holder to the Company, the holder may increase the amount of ownership of outstanding stock after exercising the holdera€™s common warrants up to 9.99% of the number of



shares of the Companya€™s common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the exercise, as such percentage ownership is determined in accordance with the terms of the common
warrants. No fractional shares of common stock will be issued in connection with the exercise of a common warrant. In lieu of fractional shares, the Company will round down to the next whole
share.There were no exercises of these warrants during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 or September 30, 2023.SeriesA B Preferred StockA total of 237,745 shares of the
Company4€™s SeriesA B Preferred Stock were issued pursuant to a December 2020 Securities Purchase Agreement. Each share of Series B Preferred Stock was initially convertible into one
third (1/3) share of common stock (the a€ceConversion Sharesa€), subject to adjustment in accordance with the Certificate of Designation.Holders of Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to
receive dividends on shares of Series B Preferred Stock equal, on an as-if-converted-to-common-stock basis, and in the same form as dividends actually paid on shares of the common stock.
Except as otherwise required by law, the Series B Preferred Stock does not have voting rights. However, as long as any shares of Series B Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company will
not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of the Series B Preferred Stock, (a) alter or change adversely the powers, preferences or rights given
to the Series B Preferred Stock, (b) alter or amend the Certificate of Designation, (c) amend its certificate of incorporation or other charter documents in any manner that adversely affects any
rights of the holders of Series B Preferred Stock, (d) increase the number of authorized shares of Series B Preferred Stock, (e) pay certain dividends or (f) enter into any agreement with respect
to any of the foregoing. The Series B Preferred Stock does not have a preference upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company. The Purchaser may convert shares of Series B
Preferred Stock through a conversion into shares of common stock if and solely to the extent that such conversion would not result in the Purchaser beneficially owning in excess of 9.99% of
then-outstanding common stock or aggregate voting power of the Company (such limitation, the 4€ceOwnership Limitation&€) and any portion in excess of such limitation will remain
outstanding as Series B Preferred Stock.a€<During the year ended December 31, 2023, 118,745 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were converted, at the option of the holder, into 39,582
shares of common stock. During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the remaining 119,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were converted, at the option of the holder, into 39,667
shares of common stock. SeriesA A Preferred StockA total of 8,872 shares of the Companya€™s SeriesA A Preferred Stock were issued in a JulyA 2017 Underwritten Public Offering. Each share
of SeriesA A Preferred Stock is convertible at any time at the option of the holder thereof, into a number of shares of common stock determined by dividing $1,000 by the initial conversion price
of $600.00 per share, subject to a 4.99% blocker provision, or, upon election by a holder prior to the issuance of shares of SeriesA A Preferred Stock, 9.99%, and is subject to adjustment for
stock splits, stock dividends, distributions, subdivisions and combinations.20 Table of ContentsAs of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 264 shares of the SeriesA A Preferred Stock
remain issued and outstanding. The 264 shares of SeriesA A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at SeptemberA 30, 2024, are convertible into 440 shares of common stock.In the event of a
liquidation, the holders of shares of the SeriesA A Preferred Stock may participate on an as-converted-to-common-stock basis in any distribution of assets of the Company. The Company shall
not pay any dividends on shares of common stock (other than dividends in the form of common stock) unless and until such time as dividends on each share of SeriesA A Preferred Stock are
paid on an as-converted basis. There is no restriction on the Companya€™s ability to repurchase shares of SeriesA A Preferred Stock while there is any arrearage in the payment of dividends on
such shares, and there are no sinking fund provisions applicable to SeriesA A Preferred Stock.Subject to certain conditions, at any time following the issuance of the SeriesA A Preferred Stock,
the Company has the right to cause each holder of the SeriesA A Preferred Stock to convert all or part of such holdera€™s SeriesA A Preferred Stock in the event that (i)A the volume weighted
average price of our common stock for 30 consecutive tradingA days, or Measurement Period exceeds 300% of the initial conversion price of the SeriesA A Preferred Stock (subject to
adjustment for forward and reverse stock splits, recapitalizations, stock dividends and similar transactions), (ii)A the daily trading volume on each Trading Day during such Measurement Period
exceeds $500,000 per trading day and (iii)A the holder is not in possession of any information that constitutes or might ‘constitute, material non-public information which was provided by the
Company. The right to cause each holder of SeriesA A Preferred Stock to convert all or part of such holdera€™s SeriesA A Preferred Stock shall be exercised ratably among the holders of the
then outstanding preferred stock.The SeriesA A Preferred Stock has no maturity date, will carry the same dividend rights as the common stock, and with certain exceptions contains no voting
rights. In the event of any liquidation or dissolution of the Company, the SeriesA A Preferred Stock ranks senior to the common stock in the distribution of assets, to the extent legally available
for distribution.6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred StockAs of September 30, 2024, there were 335,273 shares of the Companya€™s 6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock (the
4€0e6% Preferred Stocka€) issued and outstanding at an issue price of $10.00 per share. Dividends on the 6% Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of original issuance at the annual
rate of 6% of the liquidation preference of the 6% Preferred Stock, payable quarterly on the first day of February, May, August and November, commencing February 1, 2005. Any dividends
must be declared by the Companya€™s board of directors and must come from funds that are legally available for dividend payments. The 6% Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of
$10.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends. As of September 30, 2024, there were no accrued and unpaid dividends.The Company may automatically convert the 6% Preferred Stock
into common stock if the per share closing price of the Companya€™s common stock has exceeded $888,300, which is 150% of the conversion price of the 6% Preferred Stock, for at least 20
trading days during any 30 day trading period, ending within five trading days prior to notice of automatic conversion.The 6% Preferred Stock has no maturity date and no voting rights prior to
conversion into common stock, except under limited circumstances.21 Table of ContentsThe Company may, at its option, redeem the 6% Preferred Stock in whole or in part, out of funds legally
available at the redemption price of $10.00 per share.The 6% Preferred Stock is exchangeable, in whole but not in part, at the option of the Company on any dividend payment date beginning
on NovemberA 1, 2005 (the a€mExchange Datea€) for the Companya€™s 6% Convertible Subordinated Debentures (the &€ceDebenturesa€) at the rate of $10.00 principal amount of Debentures
for each share of 6% Preferred Stock. The Debentures, if issued, will mature 25 years after the Exchange Date and have substantially similar terms to those of the 6% Preferred Stock. No such
exchanges have taken place to date.11.AA A A A A A A A A Subsequent EventsDividends on 6% Preferred Stocka€<On September 4, 2024, the board of directors of the Company passed a
resolution to suspend payment of the quarterly cash dividend on the Companya€™s 6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock scheduled for November 1, 2024. The Board of Directors will
continue to evaluate the payment of a quarterly cash dividend on a quarterly basis. On October 15, 2024, 200,000 shares of the Companya€™s 6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock
was converted into 3 shares of common stock.As of October 23, 2024, all of the remaining 4,135,000 pre-funded warrants pursuant to the April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement were fully
exercised.ItemA 2. Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsCAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTSThis Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q, including, without limitation, Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, contains
a€ceforward-looking statementsa€ within the meaning of SectionA 27A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1933 as amended and SectionA 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the &€ceExchange Acta€). We intend that the forward-looking statements be covered by the safe harbor for forward-looking statements in the Exchange Act. The forward-looking
information is based on various factors and was derived using numerous assumptions. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, that address activities, events or developments
that we intend, expect, project, believe or anticipate will or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements. Such statements are based upon certain assumptions and assessments made
by our management in light of their experience and their perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors they believe to be appropriate.
These forward-looking statements are usually accompanied by words such as a4€cebelieve,a€ a€ceanticipate,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€ceseek,a€ d€eexpect,a€ a€ceintenda€ and similar
expressions.Forward-looking statements necessarily involve risks and uncertainties, and our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward looking statements due
to a number of factors, including those set forth in PartA A ItemA 1A, entitled 4€ceRisk Factors,a€ of our Annual Report on FormA 10-K for theA year ended DecemberA 31, 2023, as updated
and supplemented by PartA II,A TtemA 1A, entitled &€ceRisk Factors,&€ of our Quarterly Reports on FormA 10-Q, and elsewhere in this report. These factors as well as other cautionary
statements made in this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q, should be read and understood as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements wherever they appear herein. The
forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q represent our judgment as of the date hereof. We encourage you to read those descriptions carefully. We caution
you not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements contained in this report. These statements, like all statements in this report, speak only as of the date of this report (unless an
earlier date is indicated) and we undertake no obligation to update or revise the statements except as required by law. Such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and actual results will likely differ, perhaps materially, from those suggested by such forward-looking statements. In this report, 4€ceCyclacel,a€ the 4€eCompany,a€ a€ewe,a€
a€ceus,a€ and a€ceoura€ refer to Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals,A Inc.4€<22 Table of ContentsOverviewWe are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company developing innovative cancer medicines
based on cell cycle, transcriptional regulation, epigenetics and mitosis control biology. We reported revenue of $10,000 and $43,000 for theA three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30,
2024, respectively, and revenues of $16,000 and $389,000 for the comparable three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. We do not expect to report a significant amount
of revenue for the foreseeable future.Our primary focus has been on the development of our transcriptional regulation program, which is evaluating fadraciclib, a CDK2/9 inhibitor, in solid
tumors and hematological malignancies. The anti-mitotic program is evaluating plogosertib, a PLK1 inhibitor, in advanced cancers. We currently retain all marketing rights worldwide to the
compounds associated with our drug programs.Fadraciclib Phase 1/2 StudyA in Advanced Solid Tumors and Lymphoma (065-101;A NCT#04983810)In this ongoing study, a total of 47 heavily
pretreated patients have been dosed in the Phase 1 part of the 065-101 study through eight dose levels. Clinical, pharmacokinetic (PK) and pharmacodynamic (PD) data from the study were
presented at a poster at the 2024 American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) Annual Meeting. Patients received a median of four prior lines of therapy. Fadraciclib was generally well
tolerated with good compliance between dose levels 1 and 5. The most common treatment related adverse events reported were nausea (66.0%), vomiting (46.8%), diarrhea (31.9%) fatigue
(25.5%), and hyperglycemia (21.3%). A total of 25 drug-related serious adverse events (SAE) were reported in 8 patients. The most common SAEs reported were hyperglycemia (n=4), platelet
count decrease (n=3), and accidental overdose (n=3).There were no drug-related SAEs at dose level 5 (100 mg bid, 5 days a week, for 4/4 weeks) which was selected for the Phase 2 proof of
concept part of the 065-101 study. PKs were dose-proportional and exceeded the preclinical efficacy targets for both CDK2 and CDK9. PDs evaluated in peripheral blood showed suppression of
CDKN2A/B by four hours post treatment in most patients who received 100 mg bid or higher.A total of 34 patients had measurable target lesions at baseline. Two partial responses were
reported in patients with T-cell lymphoma, one of whom had CDKN2A loss. A squamous non-small cell lung (NSCLC) cancer patient with CDKN2A and CDKN2B loss achieved 22% reduction in
tumor burden at 4 weeks per RECIST 1.1 criteria. In addition, clinical benefit was reported in two patients with endometrial cancer and one each with ovarian and pancreatic cancers.The
primary objectives of the 065-101 study in the Phase 1 dose escalation stage are to determine maximum tolerated dose (MTD) and/or RP2D and in the Phase 2, Proof of Concept stage to
evaluate preliminary efficacy of fadraciclib as measured by overall response rate (ORR). The secondary objectives in dose escalation are to assess safety and tolerability, pharmacokinetics, and
ORR, while in Phase 2, Proof of Concept, to assess safety and tolerability, evaluate disease control rate (DCR), duration of response (DOR), progression free survival (PFS), and overall survival
(0OS). The study is utilizing a Simon two-stage optimal design to evaluate clinical activity. Exploratory objectives include investigation of clinical pharmacodynamics (PD) and pharmacogenomics
(PGx).The Phase 2, part of the study is ongoing and two dose expansion cohorts are enrolling patients with mechanistically relevant biomarkers, including CDKN2A and/or CDKN2B mutation or
deletion or T-cell lymphoma. Cohort 8 prospectively enrolled 12 patients with known CDKNA/B genetic alterations between April and September 2024. The rationale was to further evaluate
observations of clinical activity in Phase 1 patients with known CDNK2A or CDKN2B genetic alterations. Cohort 6 is enrolling patients with T-cell Lymphoma with two patients treated so far.
The rationale was to further evaluate observations of partial response (PR) in 2/3 Phase 1 patients with T-cell lymphoma. Certain T-Cell lymphomas are known to harbor CDNK2A genetic
alterations. All patients were treated with oral fadraciclib 100mg BID, M-F, week 1-4 in 28-day cycles which was the Recommended Phase 2 dose (RP2D).23 Table of Contentsa€«Interim data
from the Phase 2 was presented as a poster at the 2024 EORTC-NCI-AACR 36th Symposium on Molecular Targets and Cancer Therapeutics in Barcelona, Spain in October, 2024. The data
showed that fadraciclib was well tolerated in Cohort 8. Most common drug-related adverse events included diarrhea, nausea, vomiting and were similar to those seen at this dose in Phase 1.
There were no Grade 3 or higher treatment-emergent adverse events in the Phase 2 study this far, consistent with the Phase 1 data. The majority of patients (12/14) had ECOG performance
status of 1 and median number of prior therapies was 3.2€<In Cohort 8, four patients had pancreatic cancer, and one each cholangiocarcinoma, duodenal, melanoma, cervical, laryngeal, ovarian,
squamous cell cancer with unknown primary (CUP) and thymus cancer. Out of six patients evaluable for efficacy, two achieved stable disease: a melanoma patient whose treatment duration was
125 days and a squamous cell CUP patient who achieved 11% tumor shrinkage in the sum of all lesions on first scan with treatment duration of over 85 days (ongoing). Two additional patients
with ovarian and laryngeal cancer are ongoing but have not had their first scan yet.a€<The most common molecular characteristics of Cohort 8 patients were loss of function or deletion of
CDKN2A and/or CDKN2B tumor suppressor genes. Other pharmacogenomic observations included CDKN2A/B, KRAS and/or TP53 mutations.a€<Fadraciclib tablets can be given orally with
repeat dosing which has led to transient suppression of anti-apoptosis proteins with generally good tolerability and no Grade 3 or higher hematological toxicity in the first cycle. We believe that
fadracicliba€™s inhibition of CDK2 and CDK9 may be superior to inhibiting either CDK2 or CDK9 alone.Plogosertib Phase 1/2 StudyA in Advanced Solid Tumors and Lymphoma (140-

101;A NCT#05358379)a€<This open-label Phase 1/2 registration-directed study uses a streamlined design and initially seeks to determine the RP2D for single-agent oral plogosertib in a dose
escalation stage. Once RP2D has been established, the study will enter into proof-of-concept, cohort stage, using a Simon 2-stage design. In this stage plogosertib will be administered to
patients in up to seven mechanistically relevant cohorts including patients with bladder, breast, colorectal (including KRAS mutant), hepatocellular and biliary tract, and lung cancers (both
small cell and non-small cell), as well as lymphomas. An additional basket cohort will enroll patients with biomarkers relevant to the drugd€™s mechanism, including MYC amplified tumors. The
protocol allows for expansion of individual cohorts based on response which may allow acceleration of the clinical development and registration plan for plogosertib. a€<Fifteen patients have
been treated at the first five dose escalation levels with no dose limiting toxicities observed. Stable disease has been observed in pretreated patients with gastrointestinal, lung, and ovarian
cancers. A new, alternative salt, oral formulation of plogosertib with improved bioavailability is under development. 4€<Going ConcernFor the nine months ended September 30, 2024, we used
net cash of $6.6 million to fund our operating activities. We have cash and cash equivalents of $3.0 million as of September 30, 2024, will allow it to meet its liquidity requirements into the
fourth quarter of 2024. However, there remains substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We are currently investigating ways to raise additional capital through
private equity financing or by entering into a strategic transaction. In the event that we are not able to secure funding, we may be forced to curtail operations, delay or stop ongoing
development activities, cease operations altogether, and/or file for bankruptcy. 4€<On August 26, 2024, the Staff of Nasdaq determined that we were not in compliance with the Equity Rule
because we reported stockholdersa€™ equity of less than $2.5 million as of June 30, 2024. The notice from the Staff further stated that unless we timely requested a hearing before a Panel, our
securities would be subject to delisting. As of September 30, 2024, we had a stockholders equity deficit of approximately $0.97 million which is not in compliance with the Equity Rule. On
October 15, 2024, we met with the Panel regarding our potential delisting from Nasdaq as a result of our violation of the Equity Rule. On October 22, 2024, we received the Panela€™s decision
which granted us until 24 Table of ContentsDecember 24, 2024 to regain compliance with the Equity Rule and all applicable criteria for continued listing on Nasdaq. If we are unable to regain
compliance with the listing standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market by December 24, 2024, our securities may be delisted from Nasdaq.&€<&€<Liquidity and Capital ResourcesThe following is a
summary of our key liquidity measures as of September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in $000s): a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Cash and cash
equivalentsa€«$ 2,9824€<$ 5,944Working capital:4€<a€<a€<«a€«a€<a€<Current assetsa€«$ 4,9134€<$ 11,113Current liabilitiesa€<A (6,351)a€<A (8,148)Total working capitala€«$ (1,438)a€<$
2,9654a€<Since our inception, we have relied primarily on the proceeds from sales of common and preferred equity securities to finance our operations and internal growth. Additional funding
has come through research and development tax credits, government grants, the sale of product rights, interest on investments and licensing revenue. We have incurred significant losses since
our inception. As of September 30, 2024, we had an accumulated deficit of $436.4 million.Cash FlowsCash from operating, investing and financing activities for the nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023 is summarized as follows (in $000s):4€ <4€ &€ &€ &€ <a€<a€<a€<a€<Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30,A 4€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023Net cash used in operating
activitiesa€<$ (6,634)a€<$ (12,202)Net cash used in investing activitiesa€«A 4€”a4€<A (6)Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesa€<A 6,209a€<A (151)a€<Operating activitiesNet cash
used in operating activities decreased by $5.6 million, from $12.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 to $6.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. The



decrease in cash used by operating activities was primarily the result of a decrease in net loss of $9.1 million, brought about by a reduction in clinical trial supply and non-clinical activities,
offset by a change in working capital of $2.9 million.Investing activitiesNet cash used by investing activities remained inconsequential for each of the nine months ended September 30, 2024
and 2023 and consisted of IT-related capital expenditure in 2023.25 Table of ContentsFinancing activitiesNet cash provided by financing activities was $6.2 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2024 as a direct result of receiving approximately $6.2 million, net of expenses, from the issuance of common stock and warrants under a Securities Purchase Agreement with an
institutional investor.Net cash used in financing activities was $0.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 as a result of dividend payments of approximately $0.2 million to the
holders of our 6% Preferred Stock.Funding Requirements and Going ConcernWe do not currently have sufficient funds to complete development and commercialization of any of our drug
candidates. Current business and capital market risks could have a detrimental effect on the availability of sources of funding and our ability to access them in the future, which may delay or
impede our progress of advancing our drugs currently in the clinical pipeline to approval by the Food and Drug Administration (4€ceFDA&€) or European Medicines Agency (4€ceEMAA€) for
commercialization. Additionally, we plan to continue to evaluate in-licensing and acquisition opportunities to gain access to new drugs or drug targets that would fit with our strategy. Any such
transaction would likely increase our funding needs in the future.a€<a€<«a€<«Our future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including but not limited to:4€<a—the rate of progress
and cost of our clinical trials, preclinical studies and other discovery and research and development activities;d—the costs associated with establishing manufacturing and commercialization
capabilities;a—the costs of acquiring or investing in businesses, product candidates and technologies;a—the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other
intellectual property rights;a—the costs and timing of seeking and obtaining FDA and EMA approvals;a—the effect of competing technological and market developments; anda—the economic
and other terms and timing of any collaboration, licensing or other arrangements into which we may enter.a€<Until we can generate a sufficient amount of product revenue to finance our cash
requirements, which we may never do, we expect to finance future cash needs primarily through public or private equity offerings, debt financings or strategic collaborations. Although we are
not reliant on institutional credit finance and therefore not subject to debt covenant compliance requirements or potential withdrawal of credit by banks, we are reliant on the availability of
funds and activity in equity markets. We do not know whether additional funding will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are not able to secure additional funding when needed, we
may have to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our clinical trials or research and development programs or make changes to our operating plan, which may include ceasing
operations altogether and/or filing for bankruptcy. In addition, we may have to partner one or more of our product candidate programs at an earlier stage of development, which would lower
the economic value of those programs to us.d€<Since our inception, we have relied primarily on the proceeds from sales of common and preferred equity securities to finance our operations and
internal growth. Additional funding has come through research and development tax credits, government grants, the sale of product rights, interest on investments, licensing revenue, royalty
income, and a limited amount of product revenue from operations discontinued in SeptemberA 2012. As discussed in Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
accompanying this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, under ASC Topic 205-40,A Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern, management is required at each reporting period to
evaluate whether there are conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about an entitya€™s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the 26 Table of Contentsfinancial statements are issued. This evaluation initially does not take into consideration the potential mitigating effect of managementa€™s plans that have
not been fully implemented as of the date the financial statements are issued.Our history of losses, our negative cash flows from operations, our liquidity resources currently on hand, and our
dependence on the ability to obtain additional financing to fund our operations after the current resources are exhausted, about which there can be no certainty, have resulted in our assessment
that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the issuance date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We are
currently investigating ways to raise additional capital through private equity financing or by entering into a strategic transaction. In the event that we are not able to secure funding, we may
be forced to curtail operations, delay or stop ongoing development activities, cease operations altogether, and/or file for bankruptcy. In such event, our stockholders may lose their entire
investment in our company.&€<Results of OperationsThreeA and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023RevenuesWe recognized $10,000 and $43,000 of revenue for the threeA and
nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively. This revenue is related to recovery of clinical manufacturing costs associated with an investigator sponsored study managed by Cedars-
Sinai Medical Center. Revenues recognized for the threeA and nine months ended September 30, 2023 were approximately $16,000 and $389,000 respectively.The futureWe expect to
completely fulfill our obligations under this agreement by the fourth quarter of 2024. The associated clinical manufacturing costs are presented as a component of research and development
expenses.a€<Research and Development ExpensesFrom our inception, we have focused on drug discovery and development programs, with a particular emphasis on orally available anticancer
agents, and our research and development expenses have represented costs incurred to discover and develop novel small molecule therapeutics, including clinical trial costs for fadraciclib and
plogosertib. We have also incurred costs in the advancement of product candidates toward clinical and preclinical trials and the development of in-house research to advance our biomarker
program and technology platforms. We expense all research and development costs as they are incurred. Research and development expenses primarily include:a—Clinical trial and regulatory-
related costs;d—Payroll and personnel-related expenses, including consultants and contract research organizations;a—Preclinical studies, supplies and materials;a—Technology license costs;a—
Stock-based compensation; andd—Rent and facility expenses for our offices.27 Table of ContentsThe following table provides information with respect to our research and development
expenditures for the threeA and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in $000s

exceptA percentages):a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAE AL AEAEAEAEAEAE@AEThree Months Ended 4€<Nine Months Ended

a€<«a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<Differencea€«SeptemberA 30,A a€<Differencea€«a€<2024A A A A 2023A AA A $A A A A %a€<2024A A A A 2023A A A A $A A A A %Transcriptional Regulation
(fadraciclib)a€«$ 8844a€«$ 3,554a€<$ (2,670)a€« (75)a€<$ 4,128a€<$ 10,683a€<$ (6,555)a€< (61)Anti-mitotic (plogosertib)a€«a€« 116a€<a€<« 1,540a€<a€« (1,424)a€« (92)a€<a€« 1,582a€<a€<
4,2493€<4€< (2,667)a€< (63)Other research and development expensesa€«a€« (50)a€«a€« 1423€<a€« (192)a€« (135)a€<a€« 65a€<«a€« 705a€<a€« (640)a€« (91)Total research and development
expensesa€<$ 950a€«$ 5,236a€<$ (4,286)a€« (82)a€<$ 5,775a€«$ 15,637a€<$ (9,862)a€« (63)a€<Total research and development expenses represented 56% and 76% of our operating expenses for
the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively.Research and development expenses decreased by $9.9 million from $15.6 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30,
2023 to $5.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Expenditure for the transcriptional regulation program decreased by $6.6 million relative to the respective comparative
period, primarily due to decreases in manufacturing and non-clinical expenditure. Research and development expenses relating to plogosertib decreased by $2.7 million relative to the
respective comparative period due to decreases in manufacturing and non-clinical expenditure.The futureWe anticipate that overall research and development expenses for theA year ended
DecemberA 31, 2024 will decrease compared to theA year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 as we do not expect to incur further manufacturing or preclinical costs. Expenditure will be primarily
clinical trial costs related to our fadraciclib Phase 1/2 065-101 study in advanced solid tumors and lymphomas.General and Administrative ExpensesGeneral and administrative expenses include
costs for administrative personnel, legal and other professional expenses and general corporate expenses. The following table summarizes the general and administrative expenses for the
threeA and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in $000s exceptA percentages):a€ A€ A€ &€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AL AL AL AEAEAE AL AE AL AEAEAEAEAEAEThree Months Ended
4€«Nine Months Ended a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<Differencea€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<Differencea€«2024A AAA2023AAAA$AAAA %AAAA2024AAAA2023AAAA$A A A A %Total general
and administrative expenses$ 1,237a€<$ 1,6258€<$ (388)a€« (24)4€<$ 4,4444€<$ 4,845a€<$ (401)a€« (8)a€«Total general and administrative expenses represented 44% and 24% of our operating
expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively.General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately $0.3 million from $4.8 million for the nine
months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023 to $4.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, due largely to reduction in stock compensation expense.28 Table of ContentsThe futureWe
expect general and administrative expenditures for theA year ended DecemberA 31, 2024 to be lower than our expenditures for theA year ended DecemberA 31, 2023, due to management
efforts to lower costs across all departments.Other (expense) income, netThe following table summarizes other (expense) income, net for the threeA and nine months ended September 30, 2024
and 2023 (in $000 exceptA percentages):4€ A€ <a€<a€«a€ A€ A€ <a€ A€ A€ «a€<a€ A€ A€ «a€<a€«a€ A€ a€«a€«a€«a€«@€<Three Months Ended a€<Nine Months Ended

a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<Differencea€«SeptemberA 30,A 4€<Differenced€<2024A A A A 2023A A A A $A A A A %a€<2024A A A A 2023A A A A $A A A A %Foreign exchange gains (losses)$ 2a€<$
1044&€« $ (102)a€«< (98)a€<$ 6a€<$ (58)a€<$ 644€¢< (110)Interest (expense) incomeA 8a€<A 50a€<«A (42)a€« (84)a€<A (18)a€«A 243a€<A (261)a€« (107)Other income (expense), netA a€”a€A
(9)4€<A 94€< (100)a€<A 524€<A 504€<A 24a€« 4Total other (expense) income, net$ 104€<a€« 145a€<$ (135)a€« (93)a€<$ 404€<a€<« 2358€<$ (195)a€« (83)a€«Total other income decreased by
$195,000 from $235,000 for the nineA months ended September 30, 2023 to $40,000 for the nineA months ended September 30, 2024. Other income for the nine months ended September 30,
2024 relates to royalties receivable under a DecemberA 2005 Asset Purchase Agreement, or APA, whereby Xcyte Therapies,A Inc., or Xcyte (a business acquired by us in MarchA 2006) sold
certain assets and intellectual property to ThermoFisher Scientific Company, or TSC (formerly Invitrogen Corporation) through the APA and other related agreements. The assets and
technology were not part of our product development plan following the transaction between Xcyte and Cyclacel in MarchA 2006. Accordingly, we presented $52,000 and $50,000 as other
income arising from royalties from the APA during each of the nineA months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively. Foreign exchange gains (losses) Foreign exchange gains
increased by $64,000, from a loss of $58,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, to a gain of $6,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024.The futureOther income
(expense), net for theA year ended DecemberA 31, 2024, will continue to be impacted by changes in foreign exchange rates and the receipt of income under the APA. As we are not in control of
sales made by TSC, we are unable to estimate the level and timing of income under the APA, if any.Because the nature of funding advanced through intercompany loans is that of a long-term
investment, unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses on such funding will be recognized in other comprehensive income until repayment of the intercompany loan becomes foreseeable.
Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to intercompany operating expenditure, which is expected to be settled in the foreseeable future, will be recognized within the statement of
operations.Income Tax BenefitCredit is taken for research and development tax credits, which are claimed from the United Kingdom&€ ™s revenue and customs authority, or HMRC, in respect
of qualifying research and development costs incurred.29 Table of ContentsThe following table summarizes total income tax benefit for the threeA and nine months ended September 30, 2024
and 2023 (in $0005 exceptA percentages):a€<a€<a€<a€ Q€ A€ <a€<a€ A€ A€ <A€ A€ Q€ AL <AE A€ A€ A€ Af<afaE«a€«a€«a€Three Months Ended 4€«Nine Months Ended

a€<SeptemberA 30,A a€<D1fferencea€<SeptemberA 30,A a€«Differencea€<«2024A A A A 2023AAA A $A A A A %a€<2024A A A A 2023A AAA $A A A A %Total income tax benefit$ 210a€<$
668a€<$ (458)a€« (69)a€<$ 1,976a€<$ 2,574a€<$ (598)a€« (23)a€<The total income tax benefit, which comprised of research and development tax credits recoverable, decreased by approximately
$0.6 million, from $2.6 million for the nineA months ended September 30, 2023 to $2.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. The level of tax credits recoverable is linked
directly to qualifying research and development expenditure incurred in any oneA year and the availability of trading losses.The futureWe expect to continue to be eligible to receive United
Kingdom research and development tax credits for the year ended December 31, 2024 and will continue to elect to receive payment of the tax credit. The amount of tax credits we will receive is
entirely dependent on the amount of eligible expenses we incur and could be restricted by any future cap introduced by HMRC. Beyond 2024, we cannot be certain of our eligibility to receive
this tax credit or if eligible, the amount that may be received, as a result of any future changes by HMRC to the eligibility criteria.30 Table of ContentsCritical Accounting Policies and Estimates
4€<Our critical accounting policies are those policies which require the most significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. We evaluate our
estimates, judgments, and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. A summary of our critical accounting
policies is presented in Part II, Item 7, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 and Note 2 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies during the nine months ended September 30, 2024. TtemA 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market RiskAs a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide information in response to this item.ItemA 4. Controls and
ProceduresUnder the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer, we conducted an evaluation
of the effectiveness, as of September 30, 2024, of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in RulesA 13a-15(e)A and 15d-15(e)A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or the Exchange Act. Based upon such evaluation, our chief executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer have concluded that, as of September 30, 2024, our
disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized,
evaluated and reported, as applicable, within the time periods specified in the SECa€™s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures were not effective at the reasonable assurance level due to

theA materialA weaknessA in internal control over financial reporting.Our remediation process is still ongoing and therefore cannot be considered fully complete at this time. There can be no
assurance that we will be successful in remediating the material weaknesses. We plan to continue to assess internal controls and procedures and intend to take further action as necessary or
appropriate to address any other matters as they are identified. Notwithstanding the identified material weaknessA in internal control over financial reporting, we have concluded that the
consolidated financial statements in this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows as of the dates, and
for the periods, presented, in conformity with GAAP.Changes in Internal Control over Financial ReportingThere were no changes in internal control over financial reporting during the quarter
ended September 30, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting. Inherent Limitation on the Effectiveness of
Internal ControlsThe effectiveness of any system of internal control over financial reporting, including ours, is subject to inherent limitations, including the exercise of judgment in designing,
implementing, operating, and evaluating the controls and procedures, and the inability to eliminate misconduct completely. Accordingly, any system of internal control over financial reporting,
including ours, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurances. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. We intend to
continue to monitor and upgrade our internal controls as necessary or appropriate for our business but cannot ensure that such improvements will be sufficient to provide us with effective
internal control over financial reporting.4€<31 Table of ContentsPARTA II. Other InformationltemA 1. Legal ProceedingsNone. ItemA 1A. Risk FactorsExcept as set forth below, there have been
no material changes to our risk factors contained in our Annual Report on FormA 10-K for theA year ended DecemberA 31, 2023. For a further discussion of our Risk Factors, refer to PartA I,
ItemA 1A, a€ceRisk Factors,a€ of our Annual Report on FormA 10-K for theA year ended DecemberA 31, 2023.If we fail to comply with the continued listing requirements of the Nasdaq Capital
Market, our common stock may be delisted and the price of our common stock and our ability to access the capital markets could be negatively impacted.On March 27, 2024, we received a
written notice (the &€ceNoticea€) from The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (4€ceNasdaga€) indicating that we are not in compliance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1), which requires companies
listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market to maintain a minimum of $2,500,000 in stockholdersa€™ equity for continued listing (the 4€ceStockholdersa€™ Equity Requirementa€). Our
stockholdersa€™ equity was $607,000 as of December 31, 2023 and, as a result, we did not satisfy Listing Rule 5550(b)(1). A We submitted a plan to Nasdaqa€™s Listing Qualifications Staff
(&€eStaffa€) advising of actions we have taken or will take to regain compliance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1). On August 26, 2024, the Listing Qualifications Staff (the 4€ceStaffa€) of
The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (&€ceNasdaga€) determined that we were not in compliance with the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1) (the &€ceEquity Rulea€) because we reported
stockholdersa€™ equity of less than $2.5 million as of June 30, 2024. The notice from the Staff further stated that unless we timely requested a hearing before a Nasdaq Hearings Panel (the
d€cePanela€), our securities would be subject to delisting. As of September 30, 2024, we had a stockholders equity deficit of approximately $1.02 million which is not in compliance with the
Equity Rule. On October 15, 2024, we met with the Panel regarding our potential delisting from Nasdaq as a result of our violation of the Equity Rule. A On October 22, 2024, we received the
Panela€™s decision which granted us until December 24, 2024 to regain compliance with the Equity Rule and all applicable criteria for continued listing on Nasdaq. If we are unable to regain
compliance with the listing standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market by December 24, 2024, our securities may be delisted from Nasdaq.If, for any reason, Nasdaq were to delist our securities



from trading on its exchange and we are unable to obtain listing on another reputable national securities exchange, a reduction in some or all of the following may occur, each of which could
materially adversely affect our stockholders:A A a€¢A the liquidity and marketability of our common stock;A A 4€¢A the market price of our common stock;A A a€¢A our ability to obtain
financing for the continuation of our operations;A A 4€¢A the number of institutional and general investors that will consider investing in our common stock;A A 4€¢A the number of market
makers in our common stock;A A 4€¢A the availability of information concerning the trading prices and volume of our common stock; andA A 4€¢A the number of broker-dealers willing to
execute trades in shares of our common stock.In addition, if we cease to be eligible to trade on Nasdag, we may have to pursue trading on a less recognized or accepted market, such as the over
the counter markets, our stock may be traded as a 4€cepenny stock,4€ which would make transactions in our stock more difficult and cumbersome, and we may be unable to access capital on
favorable terms or at all, as companies trading on alternative markets may be viewed as less attractive investments with higher associated 32 Table of Contentsrisks, such that existing or
prospective institutional investors may be less interested in, or prohibited from, investing in our common stock. This may also cause the market price of our common stock to decline.a€<ItemA 2.
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of ProceedsNone. ItemA 3. Defaults upon Senior SecuritiesNone.ItemA 4. Mine Safety DisclosuresNot applicable.ItemA 5. Other
InformationNone.ItemA 6. ExhibitsExhibitNumber A A A A Descriptiona€<a€<4€<31.1*a€<Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) As
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.31.2*a€«Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) As Adopted Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.32.1*Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.4€<32.2*Certification of Principal
Financial Officer pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.4€<1014€<The following materials from Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals,A Inc.4€™s Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2024, formatted in iXBRL (Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i)A the Consolidated Statements of Income, (ii)A the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
(iii)A the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv)A NotesA to Consolidated Financial Statements.a€<1044€<The cover page from the Companya€™s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2024, formatted in Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language (included with Exhibit 101).a€<a€<a€<*#Filed herewith.Management contract or
compensatory plans or agreements.a€<4€<4€<33 Table of ContentsSIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of SectionA 13 or 15(d)A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned.a€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<A A A A CYCLACEL PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.4€<4€<4€<a€<Date: November 12, 20244€<By:/s/ Paul
McBarrona€<a€«a€«Paul McBarrona€<«a€<a€«Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President, Financea€<«a€<«a€<34 EX-31.1 2 cycc-20240930xex31d1.htm EX-31.1
EXHIBITA 31.1Certification of Principal Executive OfficerPursuant to SectionA 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20021, Spiro Rombotis, certify that:1.I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on
FormA 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2024 of Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals,A Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4.The registranta€™ s other certifying officer(s)A and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e)A and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act

RulesA 13a-15(f)A and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;b)designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;c)evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€ ™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; andd)disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrantd€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting: and5.The registranta€™s other certifying officer(s)A and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; andb)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting.a€<«a€<Date: November 12, 20244€<&€<a€</s/ Spiro Rombotisa€<Spiro Rombotisa€<President
& Chief Executive Officera€«(Principal Executive Officer)a€<a€< EX-31.2 3 cycc-20240930xex31d2.htm EX-31.2 EXHIBITA 31.2Certification of Principal Financial OfficerPursuant to

SectionA 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20021, Paul McBarron, certify that:1.I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2024 of
Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals,A Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial
statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;4.The registranta€™ s other certifying officer(s)A and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e)A and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(f)A and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;b)designed
such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;c)evaluated the effectiveness of
the registranta€™ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; andd)disclosed in this report any change in the registrantd€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s
internal control over financial reporting; and5.The registranta€™s other certifying officer(s)A and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):a)all significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™ s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; andb)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal
control over financial reporting.a€<a€<Date: November 12, 20244€<a€<a€</s/ Paul McBarrona€<Paul McBarrona€«Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officera€<and Executive Vice President,
Financea€«(Principal Financial Officer)a€<a€< EX-32.1 4 cycc-20240930xex32d1.htm EX-32.1 EXHIBITA 32.1Certification of Principal Executive OfficerPursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. s 1350, as created by SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals,A Inc. ( the &€ceCompanya€)
hereby certifies, to such officera€ ™ s knowledge, that:(i)the Quarterly Report on Form10-Q of the Company for the three months ended September 30, 2024 (the a€ceReporta€) fully complies
with the requirements of SectionA 13(a)A or SectionA 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and(ii)the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in
all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.Date: November 12, 2024/s/ Spiro RombotisSpiro RombotisPresidentA & Chief Executive Officera€« EX-
32.2 5 cycc-20240930xex32d2.htm EX-32.2 EXHIBITA 32.2Certification of Principal Financial OfficerPursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. s 1350, as
created by SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals,A Inc. ( the 4€ceCompanya€) hereby certifies, to such officera€™s knowledge,
that:(i)the Quarterly Report on Form10-Q of the Company for the three months ended September 30, 2024 (the 4€ceReporta€) fully complies with the requirements of SectionA 13(a)A or
SectionA 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and(ii)the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.Date: November 12, 2024/s/ Paul McBarronPaul McBarronChief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President, Financea€«
GRAPHIC 6 cycc-20240930x10q001.jpg GRAPHIC begin 644 cycc-20240930x10qg001.jpg M_]C_X 02D9)1@ ! @ 0 ! #_VP!# ," @," @,# P,$ P,$!0@%!00$ M!OH'IP8(# H,# L*"PL-
#A(0#0X1#@L+$!80$1,4%145# \7&!84&!(4%13_MVP!# 0,$! 4$!0D%!0D4#0L-%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04 M%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!3 P 1" ! 9(# 2( A$!

Q$! \0 M'P 04! 0$! 0$ $" PO%!@<("OH+ \0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] O(# 01!1(A,4$&$U%A!R)Q%#*!D:$((T*QP152T? D,V)R@@D*

M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66 EYBIFJ*CI*6FIZBIJK*SM+6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM+3U-76U]CI9VN'BX~3EYN?HZ>KQ\O/T]?;W~/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 0$! 0 $" PO%!@<("OH+_\0
M1$ @$"! 0#! <%! 0 0)W $" M Q$$12$Q!IA)140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'1"2,540 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1 <8&1HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-$149'2$E*4U155E=865ICI9&5FIVAIL:G-T=79W>'EZ@H.$
MAS8:'B(F*DI.4E9:7F)F:H].DI::GJ*FJLK.TM;:WN+FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.GJ\O/T]1?;W~/GZ_IH # ,! (1 Q$ /P#Z2_9/ 9/~ M#7C+]F;X7ZWKOPR\,:MK%]X=LIK]~N]-BDEFUT4
>*?\,4? 3 HD/@_ P %,7"%'_#%'P$_Z)#X/ \ 13%_A7M= M% 'BG_#%'P$ Z)#X/ \13%_A1l PQI\!/"BO™#__ 4Q7X5[710'XI _PQ1\! M/~BO~#  4Q?X47\,4? 3  HD/@_ P %,7"%>UT4 >*?\,4?

3 HD/@ P % M,7~%' #%'P$ Z)#X/ \ 13% A7M=% 'BG_#%'P$_Z)#X/ \ 13% Al PQI\! M/~B0~# 4Q?X5[710!XI PQI\I/"B0~# 4Q?X4?\,4? 3 HD/@ P % M,7"%>UT4 >*?\,4? 3 HD/@_P
%,7"%'_#%'P$_Z)#X/ \ 13% A7M=% 'B MG_#%'P$_Z)#X/ \ 13% Al PQI\!/~BO~#__ 4Q?X5[710!XI PQ1\!/"BO M~ #__ 4Q?X4?\,4? 3 HD/@_P %,7~%>UT4 >*?\,4? 3 HD/@ P %,7~%

M' #%'P$ Z)#X/ \ 13% A7TM=% 'BG #%'P$ Z)#X/ \ 13% Al PQI\I/"BO M~# 4Q?X5[710!XI PQI\I/"BO~# 4Q?X4?\,4? 3 HD/@ P %,7"% M>UT4 ?EG RA\&7_ &K=6\/-
\+_"IT2+P59WZ6)T]'RUN&OKI&D V_>*HH”B MBO6/~&*/@) T2'P? P""F+ "DL?~3TM; P"R?V'_*<;RO;* /F?Q"\ /V6? M"7CKPMX-U?X=>"[+Q+XG"~T?V18-HJL;GR$WR_,$*IA3QO*{CPN3Q6-
XS~$7[ M+O@3XAV7@S4 A!lX< MF[T6\UZ/R="A:+[-;#,N6X";T&.?45XY~T\6M+U7X MF?%KQ3#I B'4/$/@B[TBS\+2Z=H%[=6HDTV;[72*UQ%$T2>;)++;0N886($X M%=E\>M/6NI X8H"
G_1(?! \ X*80 M\**9/@1?:IXP"&'[) PMCU[50#0AS6_#6HZOJTNB7KV5W>BU$8BMEN(R)(T+ M3EGV$$A0,BM3QU\2/&'P3_X7E\.]"\6:S=VFGW/A>/0M8UB[:_O='35KC[-<
M*9Y=SN$VL\9D+%2PY.* /H? (8H" G_$2'P?\ ~"F+_"C_(8H" G_$2' MP?\ ~"F+_"H+#X8G]G"U\5>)Q\40$:~ #H/#\\MY;>*;N;66L[F(%SJ]$./$' @KQU\#-6TH?
%P6GBC7(M)U76/'VK1R6&NQ3VD MTGF)8&[E>V?=&LB!88@J@]3R 0#Z&TS]D?\ 9RUJ?48=/"%_@>]FTVY"~QWBO0 M:; YMY]B2>6X ~5MDD;8/.'41Z0_ /#%'P$_Z)#X/ \ !3%_ A7RA83:G\' A
MI™T/KGAC6?%DNN7GQ3'A2&1-6FNYHHOY=.C:6*.>3RS=;)'1)FPV?+!;"C'; MP>.?' P:M:-\2+Y-0DM]:@)V&&1KF= RDB/OQ&( M?7,)PIN- 'T?Q! 9W_9K"&C"&%UCX0>&"?$6MV"~@67V?
1(7_TF8.4W1,+"[;) MYQQQ60XN 94 9N\">%M6\1Z]\+?!NGZ+I5K)>WET~CQL(HD4LS;54LQP#PH) M/0 DXKP_XA?"F;P3HW[,FN/XW\4>(KW5?'>@0]J: K,U]#>7$D$TGGQI*S"
MJ0X"Q;5*N00=]JD>0_ML"/-/T700 ?A#4(MON;/Q/XCMFU*WTO3Y[ZX;3;-UN MKG$,*/(RLT<$3871.V=TFCQ M])89%#(VUE#+D$<$ CHO#6M_PQI\!\ HD/@ P#\%,7"%?,=U\7KO2_V- CA
MI'@W4-9\-W_@ P 0K 8D]S:W.F7L&GWM_#<6V8Y%255'G3P $#AZU M\+=4TC]J7PUX"A")'CN7POXF\+WV]:Y!-XAN#+ SCG%=!\ M1+K6_@)XZ"~(_@GP]XM\2WOA 4?
A1K'B6T35]9N+"~ZTK4+4"6)8+FIVE16$H. M-QPZ C% 'M?_ Q1\!/"BO"#_P#P4Q?X4?\ #%'P$ Z)#X/_ /!3% A7GOCC MQOKIE\'_-E6]AU[48+W6_$WANWU*X2[D62_CEL97E29@(D\-
PZ7K]S:PZ?]F@6:/*(P$J[C MM\N3>VDO(K$Z;!YSP(R(\@3&2] MM)&">@+].]7_/ABCX"?]$A\' \ @IB_PKQ+X>Z2 P 1/VP?AAXKU75]<74K M_P"$<'B">*UU:X@MVN3=689?)1PGDMNRT6-C, Q!
('K[8H YOX::=:Z1\./" MMC8V\5I196NDVD$%0"@1(HUA4%]]. /2BK'@7_D2/#W_8.M__ $4M% 'F M/[%7 )I'PA_[%BQ_]$K7M5?,7[(6KS67[*/PL=[MH((O#5FS,TFU440C))[ M"NP\* ' ,$>.M:DT?
PY\01'U[58]Q:QTW6(;B8 ?>.Q")('?\ /S+_-IF]"K/N+ZPNQW-%<- :EY . S\R M]JFC~U+S_GYE P"~S116??\ ,0 ?9H M2\ Y~9?\ OLT?5GW#ZPNQW-%>*M\>?!B> M,1X3;X@:&0B@R>2-

%.KP_;/, N>50W;0]1G&?:MC2 B+9:UXCUOO0++6&N-8T4 M0'4+16;=;"+)(P=R@D8)Z40]J[[A[==CU*BN& M2\ Y"9?~"S1 :EY P M,0\ WV:?U9]P~L+L=S17#?VI>?\ /S+ -]JFC~U+S GYE [[-
'U9IP~L+L=S M17#?VI>?\ ,0 ?9H M2\ P"?F7 OLT?5GW#ZPNQW- %< :EY P _,0\ WV:/ M[40/~?F7_OLT?5GW#ZPNQW-%<- :EY S\R ]JFC~U+S_)"9?2"~"S1]6??\/S+_-IFC~U+S_GYE_[[-'U9
MIP~L+L=S17#?VI>?\_,0_ ?9H M2\ _P"?F7_OLT?5GW#ZPNQQEC R>EK? ' 9/[ M# _TXWE>S7=Q]DM9I_+DF\I&?RX5W." 'G"CN3V%7--E] -U_PV#K+_ &B3=_P@ MEB, [CG'IH7= >Q VI>?\/S+_-
JFDL.WU&ZZ70\="&7Q)T?X6~ID\+:2\* B MSJ5D9[JYN+G4 #]23WH> 5=?# B:RT.'~TK8 M.1256+ Q2)(I =&CVD <#&:M6&D~#V\#~./#~0\ PT~-'BZ[\:0'+KVO:OH] M ;
[J2(*+=E:)D2(0[5,:H@"$9P>< 3?]J7G_#\R P#?9H M2\ Y~9?"~~S1] M6?'G'B*7Q?X-~.0Q%0\ 6M!E\,/?>)-%A,EMILO,D,(@$2]6
M(5FD(+DHIW<8K(N?!>FZI9>&AJUC"T5]V] "~ %KNWNO#VK7.BV7GZ7Y0*A401" M*3:7U M=]PINNQ\"7NB~%M1G"~(\-SX"~.$F@".KG"~T;_01HL2VUK]J&82+VV8BECF#6T
M3#,C*""=03&QX8U>ST"T\21>*0"GQT"(S:_IAT6Z/B31(1&MDO0X:%(K?RHP6 M#MND*EV_08XKV'4?C+X7TCPK:>)[_P ;Z/9>&KLJMOK-SJL4=G,6SM"3%PC9
MVG&#S@"~E5M/"//@050#FH>(+'XA:!>Z#IS!;W5+;68)+6V)Q@22]Y5"IM$LIO!/]JZ-~T/XEM/!.HVVH>'; +5-)MC#9>1PD9"(IE M&W"[["SA1A67+;07+CXH:7=_%:R\?S " P"+Z9>K<0EAU&]"
M1D=QVJIXT"+O0A[X;P6L_BSQAIOAF&[D\JWDU?48[596'4*789(R,XZ4?5WO< M/;K:QXG\55\+?%V_\3W>]?#;XSZ>WB/2+/IM1CTWOHHTECM;LW4$F" W"O%9G M3<'T%NT-Q)%([,N[<7
M!@3!# 8)R#QCT7Q1\4=%\$: NN>(?%5CH>C,5"ZA]%\D$#%AE0'9@"2.F#S5 M;50C)X9T'PE; ~*=2\::58" &; @*8-8N-3C2TEW?=V2EMK9P<8/.*/J[[A[=

MPSAM+\'ZGX.UWO0'~ &OQIA.I™*Y &D&J0:¥*D=YIF]J22":);5P<*$)(4,K_*Q# M;LU8\)2:)I&H")M6\3>!?C7\00$'B+2CH5[JOB+0(0ZZ>=V; 6%+7RHXHV+%F MVKEFY)X%?
ONC>+8_$6E6NIZ5K$>1Z;=1B6WO+.X$L,R'HR.I(8'U!J[_ &I> M?\_,0_?9H"K/N'UA=CY'T/P3H>G?\(//]J6A?M">([/P/]%K?>";/4I'M?*L1 M
"J1$1QJ95VD*6D+.%4!64%MW=Z9KOA[20!WQ)\-0_#/XQM8"/;[4=0U.1]! MC,L,E[$(IA 0<*H4 KN#$'J6Z5[[ :EY P _,O\ WV:/[40/~?F7_OLT JS[ MA]878"~2?#&F:+>?
$GX7ZCI'A;XR>%=1\,Z7!X6CO)="MX[6]T\/"1'?,ZOA- MT* SQA#RV".,?7=<- :EY S\R \ ?9H M2\ Y~9?""~S116?%;7PYJF]6&A "~ X-+M)[6X2Q+(6NWEC:5C,Z-PCIL!& FDT'

MX]>. CE\2/!6E:%XID\$:#X@"'%KXKNOL5E;W%Q!W-_J.GSZ*+]\M)+D8NOLEQYRK&)/ MF.'C?86)6NS\)_ ?3_!/Q,T;Q+1\8-+TGP?#X0M=(,.2L4WCU1;&66

M4R*NT87DFN~™\1: P#$0QM\6/C7H.B”/I0"6C~$++3K031::9:3 MRM/-9M*4=18VS%NOLP~\=P 90"&ZBY 9="T? +60AG_PDVW"T=;DUG"U/L&? M+W:H+ R \WG&/+W;A >Q #77Z5\'"?
[\=?%#Q'_&OYG_";6]E!JF~S8~Q? MI[9X,[M_[S=OWS8PN,8YZT*M/Z[CYH_U\CPGPG\4_B:- ~ WQ$U?Q&?B;X] MT#Q )X5M?#F]:18:'X?@TNTGM;A+$LA:[>6-16, SHW" FP$8R:]IM?V; LWP

MV~ #GAN X2+=_P *\U+3]0"V?8"_&5[-]JA8E:5I M!>)R"~A?%?QY\=5*PM,C@$[PN M7#+MOX7E?LQ>-_$?B_PMXKL?%.I+K>K>&?%.H"'CJHMT@>\C@<>7*: M(KE7 (4 <=*T/"?

P&T P5\3=%\3:3?](\'Q>$+72##DK%'.LB2F7=R0J! M=NWWSVK4"%'PI'PRB\9QMJ9U-?$?B2"\0'$'D_9 M&W]S]IMVW;] C.>@]JH] M2>I+::T/FO\ LN'X' #"?P5\8?A8"L"~

K;49+1 B#H,B3*VZZ,R7=W&A2YMY M%++0E3=@@D'%="HOA?Q5XR_:G".\'AOQM/X*M4M]!DDO- LK>ZN)Y390Y8 ? MHZ"-<,6 7XT82:S)9$\V

MK7QFVG* )YIAWX]":]\%?"=/!GQA>"~+HM1$\?BA--C73Q;[!19BT@:(?/N. M_=NS]U<8QSUJ5%Z%.2/!MA\ CIX@\5?L"~ ";7=8\>V_@;5/$$L\.IW.E:0VH M:I?F R1E;&U6&8;F9%9SY;! >
,BN=OOVEO&VE? +X[7EEX@O]2UKP+7?6::3 MKNKZ&-.09H)Q;R!9[26% ' DD3= Y2AE*LIR"?2=! 9-UKP+H?PS/A7QQ: GWB

M3P3#]5I'?:EHIN+2\@09?,D5SH%N$9&4A, LG.TY&#@4M<_8XUC7=$"*NE7/Q M%-SI\0X;26_N+K1@\\%]"8\RQE9U7R2D940[6)0;6YMK@ M)YL$TODC8@M%$RLK@]J5[Y-5;CX9>/ \ A#M-
AMOBA.GB"TU&349=5GTI'L;D M."IM7M!("( &&T"7>10'>356E=DWC9%3]F_QG_PFFB:U5S$C8/(/608*\Q"$OPCU+P/XH\7 "~ +?$>06NO>*0
M%!M%09=.T[[!:1QVR.D*)$9)&)_>/EVVI$K7T"BBB])"BBB M@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH \>LO"~30M8_P"Q%L?_$X7=>PUX]92\G?:Q_V( MMC_Z<+NO8:F)4@HHHJBOHHHH
~0/VN/AIING>/(/'%_'IM[FQ\,>"VU" M+3[#6ED,NF7$LYCFM3;-DF=)%,,: $KG;'PPS]?"]GSQ)XSUXZ X)\:7'A] M~ O;W2)=2L+FWCNKZ2;['>QS1W"*XS'+&JL<*=LFQ58#[U9FN?LHZY"; ~ U\,
M$)+&XV:A?ZW=3:]H:ZF-3U2Z7L-K=6 M?VAA/&=SD_0%()0C!3)Y _LJ:U>7UQX00_'BR_%1]7MM6A\0Q:0%LH!!;RV\ M=]+3S23#Y5Q.&_ >ARTA;<",4.+Z I+]J6?VIKBXOOB-\8[[5=
(X1#7[05+&: MZ\¥;UE-G&+14BNG6EC_=R-/L=B4) \L*264UBZ0-=22M _;WD2L9$D$8DCVRQO)*5;)4B0O@KC%59VV%=7/"?VW., #Y?-;&,U[;<_LU3>'/ M#?P_B\!"™)CX?\2>#(+BUM=4U*R%]'?17
4W2W,0>,19)%27*LNUUR.,BL" #] ME_5?#]EH>L>'0&HM?B/87"H:C>>(K[2Q/;ZD\5-U'+;+(FV,~5!L"R900IR MW.8Y7H5S+N:?[,,$>DW'Q;T*SC6#2-(\MH]JR,1.["BBB])"BBB@#H?

AU R3[PQ V"[7 P!%+11\.0\ DGWA MC_L%VO\ Z*6BO%>YZZV/) V,-"LY P!DWX1R/&2[>&;$D[CU\E:]G X1VQ Y MY- WV:~"?2$  BG #!W[+ \< 9/°$/J~'QJHO\"0;?[)/NWX_AK?\ AQXA
M\"~"OB)XZ\1_L\100X#TCP#]%]K$=]JMP=%?5XG22R"AB 9?+6YW"61\A&2#B MKI]I/N3R1['VO P ([8 \\F [[-'~ CMC_SR; OLU\E \-5 $?1?@WX%\8"* M90 ?ARZ~(\"GO0"'S?M-19:1#):R7$]U?2/,!



("B*4B1D(:14+LO4BTF\M[M"8&~>:0121XY8VOR-RH(/S8! M[2?<.2/8]S X1VQ YY- WV:/~$=L?">3?]]JFOD'IK; Q\&O&/Q0~"&H"/+[1 M_$WPIDA\O*T\1: M6G6.T"?ZC<20< 306 \ "7XG?#?
PAX" "~ &0@WX':5HUMX M%\87NMMJ\E0Q97,$B7=I9V\BF,2%<$K(@8E6! &"#1[2?<.2/8~G_P#A';'’ M )Y- PIJFC A';' )Y- PIJFOFGXO?M6"*OAY: M#SV&E:3>?\ "N7T+"~RX MY8I2UR+V.)IA-
BO9(\Q@FW;CC.ZNAL_BW\3/ 0QO\%>%?B$0A6YT7QE8ZE:2X,K1S.Q5-T8B0 /D-\N MT~G?%SIL#6- \>_$73/# BKX;';;P*D<;:3XPO#J'B"Y~SK<216")X_(0+
M(D:N4ES)NXP¥:3[ARL['US PCMC P \F [[-5-.M-"U<7)L+F"1%M.IMA M9[@2>5,0WHVP3M89&5/(KPD M >, BW\0?#/AGX5G0-(M;0P?9~,]0U;Q+9S M7H6&[8BUMHXHOHL.OKLSEB ,8!-1?
L)7617GACXMS:S:0V.KM\2M=~V6UM(9 M(HYM\0<(Y ++NS@D D8X%'M)IPY(JCZ& P"$=L?~>3?]JFC_(1VQ_YY- WV M:~&Y[*23]G_Q?~S['X#0BQDG W/050:%XSU
M+XNVW[+NC26 J:KH~GW BG6[+SA'00=*MS8*K.>%!0ISR> 8~>E'M)]PY(] MC[& X1VQ P">3?\ ?9H X1VQ P">3?\ ?9KY-\)?M=")+/XE_#S00$GC#X6"
M*\6:A_95[X<\&7AEU+0)VADDC+R?:95G16C\MV\N, IFAC@@'00@G\70B9\7 M/BMX[M9+7PUIO@3P=XIU#P /*L$[7] Y<2M"$/F;$*>9&78@AIV%5-N2>TGW M#DCV/=/~$=L?
~>3?]JFC_A';' GDW ?9KYD~"?Q]",GQ/~"VL $VYT;P:FGQ MV5_#I>E":6S:YO+>Z:[1-<2RLD-N!'("O+'9NW ,%$WP> :DU370CIH P / M=6\: #GXB1ZUI5W?1ZAVY&! TVXMS'O@N$-
S/E660E'RA)C8%?0]I/N')'L? M20\ PCMC P \F [[-' ".V/_ #R; OLU\=:;~U7\990V>=."~ %[IW@R'PK!? ML;7~ @QVEUIMN[?\ M#[')/%,9]D+ G*QLDFOIS8L-P5=RT~)/Q0\- M# +1~
MH&YL/$N@>$/# ~ GWUIX9MK.X~T7&;:IGMXH#YS*DK,-LK>6QDPFU5V@$]I/N' M)'L?5/\ PCMC_P \F_[[-' ".V/_#R; OLUX+"SC\:/&WQ:N])U1_%/PX\; M>%[~Q,]V"?
G6U[HEP55DBECDGE,H)W(QF?\([8_ M\\F _[[-' ".V/ /)0~ ~S6G11[2?<.2/8S/)\ A"}’ GDW ?9H_P"$=1?">3?] M]JFM.BCVD"~XQF?\([8_P#/)O\ OLT?\([8_P#/)O\ OLUIT4>TGW#DCV,S M_A';' GDW ?
9H X1VQ YY- WV:TZ*/:3[AR1['@ECH5F?VS=:B\L[!X L&QN M/7~T;L5[1 PCMC SR; OLUY-8 \)Z6M P#9/[# -.-Y7ME'M)IPY(IC, X M1VQ YY- WV:/~$=L?"~>3?]]FM.BCVD"~XQF?\"
"V/ ))O~~S1 P ([8 \ M\F [[-:=%'M)]PY(IC#U&PT32($FOIH;*%YHK=9+B?RU:61UCC0$D9IIW954= M2S #)(J>30-.BONZ;$ R6:0@#]:~+?VY?#S1_$.SUOQWX>\0"( AP\GAVWT"
MZT>6>2VTB9=84ZAY]M XD,D\#1)'(J,V5"+AB*[V[~'7PT\7 GP7XEUC7 $ M'QB~& AF&ZGM=.%0)JC:IYLPCA-Q BF2>2U7=$H<97#LXW*2#VD~XQl+G MP[8
9\LX _PI\TB:!I\B*Z)N5AD,KD@BOE/ 9 \ A+HGQE 9MM*U+4K]JS~' M2" +;[5+3PVM\LGEZ5'/*8=*02&;8B$AGAWI38L;' 84[X% "K1 '7A[XK67A M"[U+PQ\%=7UV%M$M-
%G:VCO88;=40C;,.8K2>=2,Q%=P20J0'!HII/N')'L? M5?\ PCMC_P \F_[[--DT'3H@"Z[ 2%!:0C)/0=:\D_8@)/[(?PC).3_PCEI_MZ *Y7Q-\./#7[0W[4WC+0?'FDP~(_#OA#POI?V#2;[+6Z7-]-
>&:Y"YQYNRV MB17Z] <$$FCVD~XQ]"R:#IT*\B[$49+-(0! "M$F@Z=%&9'78@&2S2$ # MZYKXB~$5I'\?;[X-?#0QYO\ %'AS0]'\37EWIZFQEBU2;3M6CTNS>X!IXE*1L M[ -G+-N.216?\,0">E?
$+]H"Y~1/B"V_M?X;>IM2\1:A9:#? TUM+&HTIK2" M16)\R.W_ +3N BMD I/[HP>TGW#DCV/N\>"; C 5G_OLT?\ ".V/ /)O~~S7 MC/[)$?\ 8&F $0P5;0(=%\'"~,[S2=
(AD=G"S63VIM=QP*S$G;&;ID4$G"JHZ M"0>:/:3[AR1[&9 PCMC_,\F P"~S1 PCMC_,\F P"~S6G11[2?<.2/8S/~ M$=L?~>3?]JFC_A';' GDW _?9K3HH]I/N')'L8/@)!'X%\.*O"KIML! WZ6BG M>!?
~1(V?1@ZW \ 12T5F6?, P %?AIJ?Q( 9. 9??3)[2 >'IM$UZZ~UNR[ MX(;:166/:KOZMI%W8027!(C626% MTALO"0H+#. 3CL:\; 8U\2R6W[*7PFB$* $\-V*Y)//[I:]D P"$LE YX)"9
MK=4906QBZT%I<\6\1 LW~ (KGX% !C1M/ET*[\;?#:/39(X=2\Q],U!X;$VES M S["ZQNCN5?RR0O50E>HKM AU\.=6U30]?@")/A?P3%:ZG[2 (T4<:;#S$Q8DKU&,\XSO MCS\,/&/B+Q\-/'W@4:-
>ZYX-N+VLNW,MK!>VIW;B*0":..0HZE$8?(0>< MUZ+ ,)9+ SP3\S1 P )9+ SP3\S1["?8/;0[GS#XF 91~)?C?PM\?1K.K>& M%\0?$B719[1+6>X%K9?
8Q&'B=C#N("QA5<*2YRQ6/.T>U_$0X1:EXX"-OPI\ M6PS60T7PM'K,>HV\\CB:87E]D,8B 4@X*G=N9<#IGI79 P#"62 \\$ ,T?\ M"62 \\$ , T>PGV#VT.Y\CZI“RQ\;[SIG$? FWU'P6GA;2YH%L?
$4AMW="\0K2 M&\2>&&6 0%87 10S]\@.P*%~8LOHOBGX&>/0#?Q*\?:UX%TCP+KNG>-98;YI MO%9E2?1;U;=+=Y$1()|<1LL4;~67C. <,X.1[G PEDO_#P3\S1 PEDO /!/ MS-
'L)J@IM#N>/>*0A%\10"/QHT XB?#Q?#&LRW7AB#PSK.DZW/-IL),$K20W M4#0Q3;<&213$5QMVX.:Z#]ESX0>*/@[X:\96WB[5--U?6-2\5ZAXB:YTL2+$ M1@ \)9+ \$ ,T?\)9+ P
\$_ T>PGV#VT.YY#< M_LW:0+~V-I\X[~P'A#~SH[B;3F9 MOUB.">S28+MV>7]EG*DEMV5 QCFNOT MS]CCQ"FO?'V6?Q#96>G",1*O-(\+261D,VEQ7LMS=79F4JH&ZYNO0$8Y5!R# M7T;

,)9+ SP3\S1 P )9+ SP3\S1["?8/;0[GS!= L\ &'5-1"%,<6D #OP MX?ASJUE?VVAZ7?W/V75C%"\,DCS_ &0-; *[%$$~[Q'9"R=V,=M-% B))N1<2 Q-D+N'(PQ[=E_P )9+ SP3\S M1 PEDO\ SP3\S1["?
8/:0[GSQ%"~R;X] X8A7X.RZGHI\2Q7DE[O9Y9--NA : MSWRP3'8K~6Z%8WPG&3@,!S?M @Y\5]5~-OPS~(M 8>"=%M/#D5[I< A;3+Z< MQVIG"?F:/\ A+)?~>"2F:/8 M3[![:'<~?6 97\6']AH |G~T-
& X2@R;0M?GR_8L?VKIL"~ Y6 \ U?'W/O<= M.:Z>\"$GQ*T+X[ $0Q7X1U#P]:Z5XUT6QMUU" >5[02[VSAN$A86PC*3QLT] M%LR(0 V 3C/K? "62 \ /!/S-

' 762 \$_, T>PGV#VT.YX7X3"~IGCC7/CWX M2~ (WBKPUX%\%7F@0WB7UYX0ONY[BZ\0-/"8@DY>WAVPJQ\T*
[2MN5<$PGV#VT YTU%PGV#VT.YYS8 P#)Z6M ]D L/ 3C>5[97SI9>)9!~V/K,WDID"~ K%,9/ M_00NS_609?\ A+)?~>"?F:7LIOH/VT%U.FHKF?\ A+)?">"?F:/~$LE_YX)"~ M9I"PGV%

[:'VAW/$ VCOAI\7= MAUE=3\ :UI>LZ/>ZIH%Q/X=\0++ML)K/48)OM%0)&W$;!0TT97.(R4.X[:-$ M~"WQ8~$FAZ#>>"0$6A>(-9-JVH")=$U;S=/TS4I[~X~TM); M&DSP&%\J@(8 M,K-NP3FO;/\
A+)?~>"?F:/~$LE YX)~9H]A/L'MH=SYK\1?LU %>["~#FL:) MOW A2ZU QCXRD\2"+M.EOKNSTV:S=%5M/AFCA>4HWDP*[%$+]91QOKTS3?\ MA?5CX+NK*/PM\+['4H'M[?
3K*SUN_6R2U"2"0,?L0* N(0BJI4@ODKM /I' M EDO /!/S-' "62 P#/1/S-L)J@IM#N>#?" 0 C'~SM~RAJ~BZI9>"[K6 MIOAU8 #[Z9=7M['?/#$Y87$9@B<$[4"K$6+%B..,1%XO0\ ?
%#20B+#\10A | MX9N=;UKP];:-KVC" GF>UMUEA>26"YC>*.4L4:XG1HRIN7;A@17] P#PEDO M #P3\S1 PEDO /I/S-'L)]@]M#N>%6/[-GB_X4Z%\+M4\!7VD:WXQ\(V>HS6.
MIQ:Y))9VNLQW\BW%VWF1I(T3"Y194~5A@LIZYK-TC]FWXB~ ]1TCXC:%>>'- M5~*4FI:M?>(+"[FGMM,08=0\C=;PS"-Y$\@6=H$9D.[RVW!=W'T/ P )9+ S MP3\S1 PEDO\ SP3\S1["?8/;0[G,?
+X9:M\-0"~LR>)+RS00%?B/6;KQ!K$ MFGIA:1<3;5$4.\IC"% %&&8 MLRO,X'IM _[!UO_P"BEHIGP~D\WP%X M;:39ZE]>FZL~F.+ZQ ; M3:;=1RG9"HZG M!<"~68UM5L+A&=ED.' >2,;0">Z&]S;
M7$)CBATO5 *~SNGE [0+E58)?E4@&.7."PSZ:3W7]:'G-K5,LS_M3ZMX'@@0 MOB7X&7PCIFHZ+>ZUIDME]JPOY'%K#Y\EK.GE1B*+;2Z0[.XM]9%XD44,2R-") ~Y3$PWH&7[HW J[<@>*2
M LX6 BGP+KFE'X&Z+\+=33PQ?VUUXKO[ "V, <=X]L8U-L89/DGW0O7/~ M%=9N++IN'XMEOM=Y;6G@ 3)TLH,NS,&]TV]7.00JMF+.]M4U,7*- IE\SS&4#*R*@4!0F)V]?1_%7P?"(-[\;?
MC;XBVQ V20B'P1!1.@ZS]JC7%"]2 <*QDCVEE.\] .HSBB\G; "NX620 _78Z M72/VA/%"~G")?!1%KXX"",?A+2/&UJATZXCUL75W:W!A>*[M )01LZQN/D= MJK#!1:0?#3X]>(/B?\2_$ A 3 XMO#_
(9UN\T74]?GUOSWQ(&B\]'R\NS$ MKN7("1U.YR2\"V P&UZQD"%FO\ AKX!Q" &J4\(ZSOWFN2RWVG/K.KXB>.8Q M7'GD2(&;>3-*A<[<+\M?1G[/'@+7?

MW\5GUNP~PKKGCF UC3SYT*OBG#X/G\'V@NKP37 M>@Z0 I$!=7TC3HQX#)=\A,4;F3=C(/ M3/\ @M\%?'~@K"S=:ZSX6ETP?#Z76[/5[B2]M9$*2V;QP7$6R5F9)&<*@.1
MIW*I@DO*]E_6H6C:YZIH?[07B[QI\8+[X>6GP\A?4-%BT]YUW4/[:'V:RBNH M@\NW,.9'IMZHHQY@1F)3@&KKW[2'B PC'IXA\0_#)M%\12ZQT)O[K6 NJ1) M)E7IDC

M<3/W\Z2 (&++MIUMNIG/&>:~6-0 9E\9ZM\'H])?X-6UQ\4M.O(-0U3QM]JV MH64]SK$D5XDK"SN#*TJM*] \M1$JKN3]:&Y) E%L~F=8~/7BZ \ BEXV\">"

M Al ~(=1\+1V5Q/>:AK@L;:1+B$R*N?(D(D) #*]X*D*69DXIX* :>\9>.-< M~ &H>! #ML-%\:F~FN['4=3$$CRO6T FV[L()-JQLOFIUY=HPI"@DUZ3\)?" M'B&P"-
0Q6\7:MHLVCZIXEM]#>Q2YG@DEWOVCK/&XBD /@V?6=4\%7VL. VOHMG?VBSQQWB7*1R*[RK$P'F(2 ~<'T MP<#YOZ]07+ 7H>GZ5~T5XL\5ZSX@G\+ ZBU PMH.03:1?3PZZB:KYD,HBF
ME2R,. W8IRP#3*S*,@#@'WJOCKXM "GQ7XVU 5;K1 A%)X9"*10\ &F?$KP_K M%O0:V?D+,/+GNO)EGE/E *\+PRI((!Q@C[%JXMN]R)):6"BBBM" HHHH *** M "BBB@ HHHH ****

/'K+ DI[[6/~Q%L? 3A=U[#7CUE_R=IK'_8BV/\ Z<+N MO8:F)4@HHHJBOHHHH ~, P!L;Q/ MX M9?MTEQ=;&"200K%)&KL]JC!;# $8KUW50&/B/P3\%0#VE6GB:S\;>/?$,0]
MDZ#K4,:>7=M(7:\D5/E98; <>=(R_*WE'&X%<]~TNOQ.M[D0Z9IX8M/'G@R" MU;0)H;*X2WN;&'4H'ECD5D(EAEVI\" ?W?S%AM&:H_#[ID;4[+2=#U.)\8: MQX$\06:Z1)!I?
A*6UDL=,BOKQKEK:'[1;/\ ='EH64+G9@#%8:\SL;:%KJ2 MICN3N\TH\<\UZ=\+0A1X" "~ &?[)'B7PW'PU4Z;87US:?Z/<2&;R$C MDC"(

Q*2$NQPSMRH&!M> /A5K7ASP#\);GP=I":GK/PZN+66+1A.D+7=L+*2 MSN(8Y&(0/Y(-\ M.>%= L;OR?#N]J2Z?+-?7DMSB5Y(B&81QV][4)*Y=B0>*KZ/>"+/ FF?&/XU: M[X1-
CJEY8P26/A:ZU*%9DLK""1E\Z="\: [RSNOI8*NT9)S50Q%#XW\$?%2; MXA~&? USXOM/%/AVSL-1TBTO[>VN+*MWF>!V:=D4QLMTZ, 1\RE =IS3Z6%U MN>=>1?%0B+X]+\+/
VM™)-6LD73=]~(/BN\4?"%(:IXN\0_V/X6U#6Y;WAK74I+?4M1M(/LILHL;] M,K(=HU'#L"" DKD\G/5>'?@ XV~"5A\,/%&F:&/&6NZ38:K8~)-)TRZBAEE MM&Y2]D>W:9D1A%
<)C#,196R.1B]'AOX6_$/X="+[/XO)X2.L")-8U#6)=>\* M6% !]IM[2\"R?9UCEDIBI)(180IQN )D?:3@IFSZE770]5_IKUKS)=(\: "&-
M6U2[UN;PAXFNM$M]1U"7S;]>U\J&X@,KGEW5+A4+GEMF3R37L%>6 L~~"]<\ M,:#XEU?Q-9QZIX@\5Z]=: =:;',LXLA(L<4,!D7Y7988(@Q7C=NQD8->I5M' M8REN%%%%42%%%%
'0_#K DGWAC L%VO_*6BCX=?AD"\,2J@NU _1%+17BO< M]=;'QU~R[XQ")IA~SE\-;?2?@O0]JFO:;'H%F+?4H="2TR%+A/*7#A))@Z@"C & MO4/~$]1",' 1 -8 \¥;2? DBN\/_

1@\8?1;1@ X%ZMX$T73_$/B34+;1-)M M]-U$/LN/.CQLAHRD.Q4*1.0">0:1B\5?M)177PG "~ &?COP8EK>Z=X0\2:)I++ M?HQ:"&\0$@G4A67;-'N=
<'(5T.0<8K95YKOR=&#U.60/&/QIU"TGM;KIGK5+ MFVG1HI89?$FD,DB,, K SX(()!'KA/AYVO$7PIU6;4 " [+~]:;?RVXLQ(735(KZ/2YIU MT~Y>P@0),>7;2WBQFWCF;9Q.TR,YA$<:HL4>QV?
$NIMF[;1[:8>QB<; PGOQ@ Z(K' A3 M:3 \D4?\)[\8/"B :Q X4VD_)%;7Q+"(?Q5NOC]#\/?AY/X.L+>/PPFOW%U MXGT"[NGIVNG@V)Y-Q& ,*IY!\UE~$?VQ=%\-Z=]NE % \T[POXPTC6KS0Y4
MTB&YN;34)(+>"Y\RV 1G&Z*ZAQ$WSER57<<4 ;S[BIC A X3WXP?]$ UC_PI MM) ~2%/~$]",' 1 -8 \¥;22 DBO2?%W[2'@+P18>&Y]4U*~-SXBM!?:9I=C
MI%Y=ZA/!M5C(;2&)ID50R[BZ#:>#@\5- P -&?#@_"X?$0>%,90"+2_9Q>K% M*9#/YGE~0(-OF~=0"7RMF _/&VCW\"X>Q@>8?\)[\8/\ H@&L?"%-I/\ \D4? MV)[\8/\ HQ&L?"%-IA\ \DSWEI~U9\+
[OPAJOB3_ (2.2VL]+NXM/O+\TVZ M@U"&YEQY,/V)XA<%Y, (HC)89*Y --VB?M" # 70 FN*,(0$"V6AZ"SQZN~] M6TUE/I[JH8I/|, BRQMAE(4KEMR[->.0VS__K~H "VT~'6NS20XA\ M9:?
IL[7~C7-LE_IL@E$TEJIQ$BRIN$8\R(MMW+R-PR>WGW#V,#1 X3WXP?\ M1 -8 P#"FTG_.2%/~$]1"," $0#6/\ PIM) P#DBN[U7]] X7Z+XIN=10/$ MAT=Q:7XTJZOETJ\?3;:\+!?(EOEB-
0')N8*5:08/IP>*PWGW#V,#YH X M3WXP?]$ UC PIM) ~2%/~$]~,' 1-8 \*;2? DBOI>BCW\"X>Q@?-' GO MQ@ Z(IK' A3:3 \)%' GOQ@ Z('K' A3:3 \)%?2]%MYIPIC ~:/~$] M~",' $0#6A
PIM) P#DBC A/?C! P!$ UC_,*2?\ Y(KZ7HH]O/N'L8'P MI:>, BB/VI-5NI\%-4;5#X-LXVTO_A(-,WI"+ZY*S>9YVP@L67: #N&W)&"*] M4 _X3WXP?]$ UC_PIM) ~2*ZNQ Y/2UO_ +) 82\
IQO*ILI>VFNH_8PO\T?\ M)[\8/~B :Q X4VD_)%' "> &# H@&L?~%1/ R17TO13]0/N+V,#YH X3WX MP?\ 1 -8 P#'FTG_.2%/~$]~,' $0#6/\ PIM) P#DBOI>0G'|KSX\"+?A MEIMSX?\
D&F0>))0"VL")#JVKR$1VL%C " N$$6UA-.6G4JK84!&+9'%'MY] MP]C K2\ "> &# H@&L?"%-1/ P DA\ "> &# H@&L?~%-I/ P D5VMG\0/B MJGPWU1[WX?
63>/[74AFTNW@M]0QI5RF%9=0\UAYBVX5B63:9-R,@!R#6Y "SI\ M1M2~ +WP*"~-=8@M,;75-=TF" N8;%66!'=CV\"X>Q@>7?\)[ M\8/°B :Q P"%-I/ ,D4?\)\8/~B :Q P"%-I/ ,D5+X"",0Q2U'Q-
\21/ MAS9"&7\/_#14COX-;AGDN=:N_LJ7W MGW#V,#E; CQI\G[N'XQ  V>]5FA<;6CD\2:0RL/0@S\U) PGOQ@ Z(!K'_(4V MD \ R15W6/C;X\460P@V/>"XM

L/% C;P~ B. U'5[>:>RT~VBAMC)L@25' M=FENHU4&3 8DGBN] 9 ~)V] $WPCJG D5G9V'BKP K%WX?UF+3FIK5KFW M8?0(=_ S".2-HY &Y ?!)QDGMY]PIC \U P"$]~,' 1 -8 \ "FTG P"2*\
MA/?C! TO#6/ IM) \ DBLG7 VD?B+9Z/XH"*%C9~&S\(_#>0S:1<:?-1.V MJW=LW7V2[OHYQ((DV2+*RQ&,[DC.6!(QM"/OC+\AM1\3?$]J3X?ZKXHMO[J/R[TO]CM4CAEC*LPAEOW+": N%)->G _
KXG'XQ "?P_XMDL?[ M+N[Z.2.\LOM\6]U#*\%Q&& B"RQ2 'N */;S[A[&!Y) PGOQ@ Z(!K' (4V MD \R11 PGOQ@ Z(IK' (4VD \R17TO11[>? /' Q)V:]IAC7,>F:PFI0
M&IM_JE)TQ<+T&])PIS7TTE~S5I'B7X9?L ?#SPGKOA+4H=9T;0[2RO(XKFSD5 M)4C 8!A/@X(/(XKTG_A(]0_Z%;50"~ MG P#'Z /SVM="L)M!~("PM\;?&C6? M"~K:CXTU!)/ ECHMC/?
7YN=1,IM=6VZ W$].KQ2~:K$)M/*A<#Z,~&WB?2?# MO[=7QIT+4]0@L-8\1:5X>N-(LKAIDE ';WGG-"#1\) %CI701UR\HE/A/5 M#*IM#[[\#0:71.0:HXALTN8+V:6>U,S?*CLLD<@!
(W;>,D8KPZUG-GIT7Q=EMKE/A: MWQQF\4_:6MG$8TU[$VBZH4QN$/VGYIV.C; >00>;7+NYC,&?&?@34YM%\\\ A7Q; M8 \ "0_$[2=+M;JS~>QO(H)!,ZNLZVSS*CLZE(OM((.<[<7Q]X8M?%?P?
~+? MC'PI\3-;~)LLFN "~ &[C6=?MM'M3;F#3[F.662T6"(0W1BB<, RL/W 4YQBONI M-?2QZ]>PQJD?A35$11@*LEF ![#SZ /BK5M L

M _C#H/QDU7PA\7]4", BL #:~T..6RTVSCLE6XS+';B:TB16N"T; @1DEE$IR! MFJ | C3XY "~ #SXH>'?V5=%\(:C;:MJ>F",]

DNK2TOE]'5+>6)HKCCIRYJ1KDG"/9@9/7 EO1'KEY"7*>$]40N=S%7LQN/J?W M )H ~'?"/Q)T3X1W C*Z"~%WQ'2XU>X\23S:A\# %>FQW$VI7Z\MT!.+-,"YB$ MK$S(R"9%\P; '3]
JY\ZY>&82GPEJAE VAIIGN 1,7?3 P#A(10 Z%;50~ M MG \ 'Z -ZBL' A(10_Z%; 50A _MG_/'Z/~$CU# H5M6 [~V? P ?H WJ*P?~ M$CU# H5M6 [~V?\\?H X2/4/~A6U; O[9

1~@#>HK! X2/4/~A6U; O[9 M P#Q~C A(J0 Z%;50"~ MG \'Z -ZBL' A(J0_Z%;50~ MG_/'Z/~$CU# H M5M6 [~V? P ?H WJ*P?~$CU# H5M6 [~V?\\?H X2/4/~A6U; O[9 " @

M#>HK! _X2/4/~A6U; O[9 P#Q~C A(l0_Z%;50~ MG \ 'Z -ZBL' A(I0_Z% M;50~ MG_/Z/~$CU# H5M6 [~V? P ?H WJ*P?~$CU# H5M6 [~V?\\?H_MX2/4/~A6U; O[9 ~@#S&Q P"3TM;

R?V'_ IQO*ILKQ6UTGQ-%~TKJ?C M)O".ICOI "-I1"3?:;;+>;B.\N)67;JHSCO*ASTY]J], X2/4/~A6U; O[9 M !~@#>HK! X2/4/~A6U; O[9 P#Q~C A(I0 Z%;50"~ MG \'Z-ZOD7 @H9 MK?@P?
#76=8\>>$);NSD\.ZE=Z!XK~SR2QV6K+$5CMR\2EH& <$, &9@CA&AYQB MOIS _(2/4A H5M6 P" MG \?JEK=P?$FC7~DZIX+U& TR @>UNK6=[.HYHG M4]Z,//Y!!(Z /GWX)?

&70 AG\. &NK™* &VI+\+(1?%AXA1>-GE6ZNH&M M(W>,23%))8UG%PL; 1 +#2=&U*&V M22>2TO+D"~51%(L:L5+.",D8&"20!7T[_,)']' 0K:M WIL CJ8WBVT'C;2
MA4TS5?"FM2V2W=M>&* XM$WO!,D\8;$ *[XTRO0@$'@D4 ?-VM?%KP \ L]~ ( M/VB?#?BFZ-GK7B/4&\0~ &K)HV:771],R*L9+,E3[20~*= P )] $*VK?\ ?VS_/C] M 'Q >:AI"B_IG]G?Q+XY\7M\
(/%5GIIM-*\6:2$0=,BMGM(2;:\:YB5 9XHX MW"LN!)$=K':"W7 LC~(=""&?A&>?6=9U)F~*'CK4;WPY)MOT&\O M IKADFBWIU"T1;BT5!/Y,D(9@) FPLSX!X!P>H& #XU\1 " +-, TK]JF[XC?L[
M2W&WXI CXAU;1=,TIHV TWL.H:G+<0WB+CF 07/F-)]JU1&X)!&*[C5 BOX? M &>-= :'\,“*+IK36?$5"?$'AFR>-FFUT7&F6ULL-JH\V07%LT95>1N4G .

M:~J3KMX91#?">]&0#: \RSRIZO\~A]=0)'1F\)ZHS(W?L=Z#].@?L]>"/[5LI]-OM2N-0UIK.YOI+ E[?W%W&C]>58).@*GD' M(->D2:[>3 "3PGJC@$, TEF<$=# *~G?\)']' OK:M WIL C] &]16# PD
M>H?]"MJW ?VS P#C]' "1ZA T*VK?] ;/ X 0/045@ \)']' OK:M WIL \ MX 1 PD>H?]"MJW ?VS ~/T .\" \BIX> P"P=; ~BEH]J3P=:7%AX1T.VNX&M

:KJ&Q@CFA=E8QN(U#*21()!!&02/0FB@# _ID! end GRAPHIC 7 cycc-20240930x10q002.jpg GRAPHIC begin 644 cycc-20240930x10q002.jpg M_]JC_X 02D9)1@ ! @ 0 ! # VP!#," @," @,# P.$
P,$10@%!00$ MIOH'IP8(# H,# L*"PL-#A(0#0X1#@L+$!80$1,4%145# \7&!84&!(4%13_ MVP!# 0,$! 4$10D%!0D4#0L-%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04%!04
M%!104%!04%!04%!04%!04%104%!04%!3 P 1" | P8# 2( A$! Q$! \O M'P 04! 0$! 0$ $" PO%!@<("0H+ \0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] O(# 01!1(A,4$&$U%AIR)Q%#*ID:$((T*QP152T?
D,V)R@@D* M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66 EYBIFJ*CI*6 FIZBIJK*SM +6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM+3U-76U]JCOVN'BX ~3EYN?HZ>KQ\O/T]?;W~/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 0$! 0 $"
P0%!@<("0H+ \0 M1$ @$"! 0#! <%! 0 )W $" M Q$$!2$Q!A)!140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'1"2,540 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1<8&1HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-$149'2$E*4U155E=8651CI&5FIVAIL:G-
T=79W>'EZ@H.$ MA8:'B(F*DI.4E9:7F)F:H].DI::GJ*FJLK.TM;:WN +FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.G\O/T]%;W~/GZ 1H # ,! (1 Q$ /P#ZA 96 9:~ M#OBK]JFCX6:QK/PM\

(:KJMI[X9TZ>Z0;S1;>6:>1K="SN[(2Q)ZDUZE_PQW\"O M~B/>! \ PO60 P 13?V./~330@] V*FF P#I,E>Q4 >/ P##'?P* P'B/>! M !l: P#Q%' #"?2P* P'B/>! Il: P#Q%>P44 >/ P##"?

P* P'B/>! !l: M_P#Q%' #?P* P'B/>! 1l: P#Q%>P44 >/ P##72P* P'B/>! Il: P#Q M% #"?2P* P'B/>! !l: P#Q%>P44 >/ P##7?P* P'B/>1 Il: P#Q%' # M?P* P'B/>! Il: P#Q%>P44
>/ P##'?P% P'B/> 1. P#Q%' #'?P* M P'B/>! I!l: P#Q%>PA44 >/ P##'?P* P'B/>! Il: P#Q% #'?P* P'B M/>! !l: P#Q%>P44 >/ P##?P* P'B/>! II: P#Q%' #'?P* P'B/>!

M Il: P#Q%>P44 >/ P##'?P* P'B/>1 I1: P#Q%' #"?P* P'B/>! 11: M P#Q%>P44 >/ P##'?P* P"B/>! Il P#Q% #'?P* P'B/>! Il: P#Q M%>P44 >/ P##'?P* P"B/>! I!l: P#Q%' #"?
P* P'B/>! Il: P#Q%>P4 M4 >/ P##7?P* P'B/>!_Il: P#Q%' #7?P* P'B/>! !l: P#Q%>P44 >/ M_P##?P* P'B/>! 1. P#Q%' #'?P* P'B/>! Il. P#Q%>P44 >/ P## M'?

P¥ P'B/>!_!l: P#Q%' #'?2P* P'B/>!_Il: P#Q%>DPA44 2)/[/_.RW M\/$$?Q%.[?"SP=?&R\::G96WGZ'-Y," FR- ;&QM8FGN+]YT2TCBACA%F=V* #H ))/ IW[-' "] ~*\ V/NK_P#H M4=;G[3/_";?

\50"Q3U;_P!(Y: /._!_P: 9/~ (=Y+9"%?"GPE\37<2>9)!H M]KIUW(BYQN*Q@D#)/077?\ #'?P* Z(IX'_/!!: \ Q%>/> 1%0_BAKWP3 MO=$"$>K> 4\+31ZE]J/BK5X+&U,]M_9\L)MH!!-
)¥)GEOMN"]%3)~; KD?#/ MQK~*/AWICT7_A; ]~ [[7_%/B":-WT73K :9;0;:<9-3 R+I>*0A \,0#6 MG22B!+56--1;2%I""0@>10"Q"L<9SA3Z5Q/PQ~*GC7PG\1[B&"~B") B[X?MH M-S?
7EYXK\)~3>V5]"R%5M_L]O&9IEF11,1!&8-&IPV¥;~T\5++X@>'0OA'KN ME~"/$NMQ6WQ$BMCX>U71FTV\O&&E7S'9%?>4K+AP=Q(4E6 .1B@#LO!GP"_9 M>"(UM>: :$~.'CWP?
K/QIMO#NNK90XQ \,=_ K HCW@? P $%K \16/K/[-?[./A_6-#TK4? MA=X"M- 1UR>2VTZWDT"VW7]1 *ZK"[ZB GLIKS3XH %" QU"S XP\SPW C/ M4"'MFWPYU'?

QB’#KEK H+ 4K2 '$\O[/% B'A<Z’\(#Z[H’\O A8> O#>C>%$N]‘N8 .=H1#86







CONSOL LOSS-link tationkink-link lewlationLink-link-definitionink-995200500—Stat +— CONSOLIDATED-STATEMENTS-OFE-CASH

NSOHDAT AT NE MPREHENSHVELOSSHink:pres HAK:€ate TR AN 00500—> NSOHDATE ATEMENTSOF-CASH
FELOWSlink:presentationkink link-caleulationkink link:-definitionkink-99940501—Disclosure—Prepaid-Expenses-and-Other Current-Assets—Schedule-of Prepaid-Expenses-and-Other Current
A ts—{Details}ink ionkink-tink lewlationkink itienink-99940701—Pisel A d-and-Other Liabiliti Schedule-of d-and-eth Yiabilities{Petails)

{DetattsiHinKk:pres HRKeat 40701—Diserosure—AecerueaanaOther Seneattie-ei-acerueaana-other-eurrent {Detaits)
link:-presentationkink link:caleulationkinklink-definitionkink-99940802—Diseclosure—Leas Future-Mini Lease-Payments{Details)-link:presentationkink link:calculationkinl
hnk-definitionLink-40802—Pisel I Fu Mini I P, ts(Petails}(Cale2)-ink tationkink-tink lewlationkink-link-definitionkink-995200090—b.
TR 40802—D1iserosur Leases—Future-Minimum-Lease Payments{(DetatsiCateZ)npres HRK:eate! HRKE S O Deeument
Enl tationkink-tink lewlationkink-link-defi Link-995200400—Stat +— CONSOLIDATED-STATEMENTS-OF- STOCKHOLPERS-EOUITYADEERICIT)-} tionkinl
HRKPFES HRK:eate! HRKE S 4 S NSOEHDATED-STATEMENTS OFST KHOEDERS BHYADEFICHHimepres:
link-ealeulationLink link-definitionLink-99521 0101 Disel Ya) Ta! i Yinl ionLinklink leulationLink link-definitionLink-995210201 - Disel S £
hnk:ealewlationinklink:df 52161H01+—Db re mpany-Overview-hnlk:presentationbinklink:calcutationbink nk: nEink + + ¥ S 3
Sienifi A i Policiestink tationkink-tink leuwlationbink link-definitionLink-095210301—Disel R Yink tationkink-tink lewlationLink-link-definitionkint
AceountingPoreies Hnxkpres Hakeeat TR 5210301 —Disetosur RevenueHnk:pres HAK:eat HRK: AR
995210401 Pisel Netl c Sh Yind tationLink-linl lewlationLink link-definitionink-995210501—DPisel P id-E 4-OtherC A +
10461+ re—Net-Lossper mmon-Share-link:presentath link:eate Tindke: e Rk + +—Diselosur Prepatd-Expenses-and-Other-Current-Assets

Yinl tationkink-tink leulationLink link-definitionLink-095210701 - Disel A d-and-OtherLiabilities ink tationkink-tink lewlationLink-link-definitionink-995210801
Hak:pres HakK:eate! T 5210+01—Disetosure—Acerueaana-Other HRK:PFres HRK:eat HRK: 5210380+
Disel 1 Yink tationLink-linl lewlationLink link-definitionink-995210901—Pisel Stock-B :Wal tion-tink ionLink-link leulationkink
b re—Eeaseslink:pres hink:eale Tindke: e Rk +0901—Diselosur tock-Based-Compensationtink:pres nEink-Hnk:-caleulationkink
link-definitionLink 995211001 Disel Stockhold Eepaity-link:pr tationLink link-caleulationlink link-definitionlink 995211101 Disel Subsequent-Eventslink:pr tationlink



lLink-caleulationbink link:-definitionLink-99920202 - Disel I £ Signifi A ing-Policies{(Policies) link tationkLink linl leulationLink link:-definitionkinl 930403
link:caleulationkink Hink:-definitionkink Fe—S v-of Significant-AccountingPolicies{(Policies) link:pres hink:caleulationkink-tink: nhink 30403
Bisel NetlL c Sh (Tables)-link tationkink tink lewlationbink link-definitionkink-99930503—Disel P idE d-OtherC Assets{(Tables)
Biselosure—Net-Loss-per-Commen-Share(Tables)r-link:pres tink:eate Hnk:d 30503—Diseclosure—Prepaid-Expenses-and-Other-Current {Fables}
Lind ionLink-link leulationLink link-definitionLink-99930703— Disel A d-and-Other Liabilities{(Tables)-link ionLink link leulationLink link:-definitionkLink
link:presentationkink-link:caleulationkinklink: nhink 3 b re—Acerued-and-Other s{Tables)-link:pres nkink-tink:eal Hink:
99930803—Disel 1 (Tables)link tationkink Jink leulationLink-link-definitionkink-99930903—Disel Stock-Based-C tion{TFables)link tationkink
30803—Diselosure—Leases{TablesHink:pres Hink:cak Hak: 30963—Dbiselostre—Stoek-Based-Comp {FablesHink:pres nlink
link-ealenlationLink link-definitionLink 99931003 Disel Stockhold Equitv(Tables)link ionLink-ink leulationLink ink-definitionLink-99940201 - Disel I £
link-calculationkink tink: + re—Stockholders Equity-(Tables)ink:pres: hink:ealeulati Hink:€ 4 1—b re v-of
Sienifi +A tine—Policies—AN. ive)(Details)link tationkbink-link leulati k- link-definitionkink-99940301Disel R N tive) (Details) linl totionlinl
AccountingPolicies(Narrative)(Details)i-ink:pres link:eale Hindke: alink 40301—Dbisclosure—Revenue(Narrative)(Details)i-ink:pres
jonLink-lin o ial Anti Dilutive-Securitie etai i ntatio
link-caleulationLink link-defi 1ink 99940801 Disel 1 s—Narrative(Details) link:pr tationLink link leulationLink link-definitionLink 99940901 — Disel Stock-Based
S i E P i a a 940 Diselesy o B e
Narrative)(Details) link:p: tationLink link-calculationLink link-definitionLink 99940903 Disel Stock-Based-C. + Schedule-of Fair Value-of the-Stock Opti Granted
PF tock-Based P FFair Value-of the-Stoek ranted
(Details)lin sonkinklink leulationLink- Hink-definiti k99940904 Disel Stock-Based-C. + Schedule-6fS Ovption-Activitv{(Details) L 3 1
{Petails)-ink:pres hink:eale Hink: 14-0904—Diselosure—Stock-Based-Compensation—Schedule-of Shar ption-Activity-(Details)i-ink:pres nkink
Lind £ Link-9994 1001 Disel Stockheld Eeruit—ON ive)(Det Yin tationbink Link lewlationLink link-definitionLink 00941002 _ Disel Stockhold Equit
Hnke: 4-1001—Diselosure—Ste s-Eeuity-(Narrative)(DetailsHink:prest hink:eale Hink: 416 Diselosure s-Eetity
A ts-allocated-t h-inst ts(Details)-link tationLink linl leulationLink link:-definitionLink-99941003— Disel Stockhold Eguity—Valuation H (Details)
Amounts-allecated-to-each-instruments{(Details)link:pr nlinklink:eal rinklink: nlink 41 ¥ tockholders Equity—Valuation-assumptions{Details)
Lind ionbink-link leulationLink link-definitionLink-09941101 - Disel Sub +E ts— N ive(Details) Link tationbink Lnk leulationLink link-definitionLink
hink:pres nhink-tink:-calewlationkinktink: 41101—Disclosure—Subsequent-Events—Narrative{(Details)-ink:pres hink:eale Hink:
995210601+ Disel re—Non-Current-Assetstink:pr ionkinklink:caleulationbinklink-definitionkink-99940601—Disel re—Non-Current-Assets{(Details)}link:pr tationtink
Link lewlati I link-defi Link-EX-101-CAL 9 20240930—cal 1 EX-101-CAL EX-101-DEE 10 20240930-defxm-EX-101-DEE EX-101-LAB-11 202406930-lab 1E
hink:-eak Hindke: EX-101-CALO-ey 30—calxml-EX-101-CAL-EX-101-DEF-10-¢eye 30—def: EXHO0H-DEFEX10H-EAB-H-¢€yee 4093 0tabxmi-EX

bilite—N- I liabilitv-Liabilities—T. table-to-P s +. +1 Stockhold ' itv{deficit)—Pref d-Stock—\al
yINonecurrent-Lease ¥ T Bt £+ tract-Ster S—eeatty—+{ —Preferrea-Steek—Vatt

fa + 1
peratingLease;
»)

..
2,
q
i
q
<9

‘s Eeuitv-Deficit-Bal Bal Totalst 1d ' v {deficit-Liabiliti A-Eeraitv—T4 d-st 4
Ster sEeuity Detieit-Balanee-BalaneeTotarsto S—egtty+ ana-Eequity-Totat ane-ste S—eeaity
. 5 . .

bl N hold
Die-COMMoOn-SRarenota

Red ble-C Stoekt ber}R

Ree mmen-Steckrmemper]

+1 R R £ V)
tr

+ +
Reventes:—Reventue-trom-Contract-with-&us
A

1 Dividends I Siat + T + Dividend
KD Impact-Diviaena-on-convertt

ibl h NI £ d-sh Net] ¢
O D A%

Adiust + Net-of Tax-Translation-adiust + Change-in-the-balan + adi + that results-from-t £ translating-subsidi £i ial ts-and-fe ity
Adjustment;, Net-ofTaxTr rHadjustment-Change-in-the balan heetadjustment-that-resultstrom-the pr S-ot-tr ubsidiary-Hinancial-statementsanaforeigneqguity

il
P
&

mmon-stock-and-warrant reisesnet-ofissuan sts—Pr £

o iad Fa) 1ok AP o 10, O : Q £ Q3o A 5 Policies Sianifi + A +3
TrCompany-OverviewS y-of AccountingPoticies ant-Accounting

d Other C A 5 NAA-N- Fal disel £ s N fal A ts-[Fext Bl

le-of Antidilutive-S

4 + A Prof 1E Yal A 1 1 4 i 1 £ Ot A d-Liabiliti fal Ot liabilities-G hical fAxis}-G. hical-ID: inl

aevetopment-AceraeaPr rat-Fees,-Current-Aceruearegarana-proiessionatrees-Otner-Aceruea Liabhities;- CurrentoOtner-current tiaphities-Ceographicar tAxis-Geographicartbomatny
s \ i . N BT N L

E +i 1 fa + 1 P, +sO: + 1 ts O + 1 Weighted A R ind 1 T R ini 1 + fa + I

ExpenseOperatingieas PERS: peratingLease;, PaymentsOperatingrease, payments-OperatingLease;,-WeignteaAverage+ Leasetermt rease-term-Operatingease;

Weighted A Di t+ Rate—P +Di + ratelease Habilitv-O: +i Leas Eub Mini P, ts Due—Rolling-Maturitv[Abst +10- i 1 Obligati 1

W Averag Rate;Per ratetea perating Futur PaymentsDbue; g-Maturity tAbstraetiOperating Lea €f



Member]2018-Plan R

Plan-Repr nter per

A dE.

P, +
y-Shar Payment-Award;

Sh b &P, + A dFair Val

A i d-Methodeol [ABst !
we-Assumptionsana-Mett € t

A b

LLCR

+ inine-to-Ladenb Thal & Co—InelLad
)

Sales-Agreement{MemberjAugust 2021-Controlled Equity Offering SalesAgr t December 2023 Private Pl tDecember 2023 Private Pl + [Member]December 2023 Privat

tock -GrossP: ds—f £ tock A

&
B
i)
5
h
9
N

3
i

D,
Hh

tivetradi 4 din-d ini heth ifiad -t + whi 1d
Rsecutive-traaing-aays-useain-aeter whether-spectieatriggersare-met 235

S r Eut I r d-for-futurei HoR + £ H SEi £+ et
mmon-SteckCap haresReserved-forFutureIssuanceSharesreserved-for future-issuance-upon-conversion-Represents-the-percentage-of- the—closing-salespri fthe-entity's-commeon
tockf +least 20-d ithin 30 tradingd that-the-el | ; £th o) + at i - derfort £ d-stocktob
steckfor-atleast days-within trading-days-that-the sales-price-ef the-entity's stoek-must the-conversion-price-in-orderfor-the preferred-stoektob
R i . L R ~

in-orderfort =2 d-st to-b ible-Pref

Document and Entity 9 Months Ended
Information - shares Sep. 30, 2024 Nov. 11, 2024
Document Information [Line Items]



javascript:void(0);

Document Type 10-Q

Document Quarterly Report true
Document Period End Date Sep. 30, 2024
Document Transition Report false

Entity File Number 000-50626

Entity Registrant Name Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code DE

Entity Tax Identification Number 91-1707622
Entity Address, Address Line One 200 Connell Drive
Entity Address, Address Line Two Suite 1500

Entity Address, City or Town Berkeley Heights
Entity Address, State or Province NJ

Entity Address, Postal Zip Code 07922

City Area Code 908

Local Phone Number 517-7330

Entity Current Reporting Status Yes

Entity Interactive Data Current Yes

Entity Filer Category Non-accelerated Filer
Entity Small Business true

Entity Emerging Growth Company false

Entity Shell Company false

Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding

Current Fiscal Year End Date --12-31

Document Fiscal Year Focus 2024

Document Fiscal Period Focus Q3

Entity Central Index Key 0001130166
Amendment Flag false

Common Stock
Document Information [Line Items]

Title of 12(b) Security

Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share

Trading Symbol Cycc
Security Exchange Name NASDAQ

Preferred Stock

Document Information [Line Items]

Title of 12(b) Security Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value
Trading Symbol CYCccCp

Security Exchange Name NASDAQ
XMLE-15-R2-htm IDEA: XBREDOCUMENT

CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEETS -
USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Right-of-use lease asset
Non-current deposits
Total assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Lease liability
Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023; 2,152,202 shares issued and outstanding at September

30, 2024 and 1,058,892 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2023
Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity (deficit

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit
6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock
Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, value

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, value

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, value

XME16-R3-htmIDEA- XBRE-DOCUMENT

6,287,205

Dec. 31, 2023

$0.001
5,000,000

$0.001
100,000,000
1,058,892
1,058,892

335,273
335,273
6.00%

$ 4,157,385

$0.001
264
264

$0.001
119,000

CONSOLIDATED 9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended
BALANCE SHEETS
(Parentheticals) - Sep. 30, 2024
USD (%)
Preferred stock, par value (in dollars per share) $0.001
Preferred stock, shares authorized 5,000,000
Dividend rate on convertible exchangeable preferred stock (in percent) 6.00%
Common stock, par value (in dollars per share $0.001
Common stock, shares authorized 100,000,000
Common stock, shares issued 2,152,202
Common stock, shares outstanding 2,152,202
6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock
Preferred stock, shares issued 335,273
Preferred stock, shares outstanding 335,273
Dividend rate on convertible exchangeable preferred stock (in percent) 6.00%
Preferred stock, liquidation preference value (in dollars $ 4,157,385
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
Preferred stock, par value (in dollars per share $ 0.001
Preferred stock, shares issued 264
Preferred stock, shares outstanding 264
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
Preferred stock, par value (in dollars per share $ 0.001
Preferred stock, shares issued 0
Preferred stock, shares outstanding 0

XME17R4-htm IDEA-XBREDOCUMENT
CONSOLIDATED 3 Months Ended

119,000

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30,
2024

$ 2,982
1,931
4,913
4

51

413
5,381

4,126
2,225
6,351

6,351

2

436,503
(1,033)
(436,442)
(970)
5,381

$0

Dec. 31,
2023

$ 3,378
4,066
7,444

9

93
1,259
8,805

3,543
4,618
8,161
37

8,198

1

429,796
(908)
(428,282)
607
8,805

$0
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STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS - USD
(€3]

Revenues:
Revenues
Operating expenses:
Research and development
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Other (expense) income:
Foreign exchange gains (losses
Interest (expense) income
Other income (expense), net
Total other (expense) income, net

Loss before taxes
Income tax benefit
Net loss

Dividend on convertible exchangeable preferred shares

Net loss applicable to common shareholders
Redeemable common shareholders

Basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Net loss per share - basic

Net loss per share - diluted
Common Stock

Basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Net loss per share - basic
Net loss per share - diluted
Clinical trial supply
Revenues:
Revenues
XMEL8R5-him IDEAXBREDOCUMENT
CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE
LOSS - USD (%)
$ in Thousands

Sep. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

$ 10,000 $ 16,000 $ 43,000 $ 389,000
950,000 5,236,000 5,775,000 15,637,000
1,237,000 1,625,000 4,444,000 4,845,000
2,187,000 6,861,000 10,219,000 20,482,000
(2,177,000) (6,845,000) (10,176,000) (20,093,000)
2,000 104,000 6,000 (58,000)
8,000 50,000 (18,000) 243,000
(9,000) 52,000 50,000
10,000 145,000 40,000 235,000
(2,167,000) (6,700,000) (10,136,000) (19,858,000)
210,000 668,000 1,976,000 2,574,000
(1,957,000) $(3,257,000) (6,032,000) (8,160,000) (17,284,000)
(50,000) (151,000)

$(1,957,000) $ (6,082,000) $ (8,160,000) $ (17,435,000)

$(0.48) $(1.39)
$ 0.00 (0.48) $0.00 (1.39)
$(0.18) (0.48) (2.04) (1.39)
$(0.18) $(0.48) $(2.04) $(1.39)
$ 10,000 $ 16,000 $ 43,000 $ 389,000

3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Net loss
Translation adjustment

Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on intercompany loans

Comprehensive loss
XMLE-19-R6-htm IDEA: XBREDOCUMENT

$(1,957) $ (6,032) $ (8,160) $(17,284)
(14,586) 8,571 (12,967) (2,050)
14,468 (8,642) 12,842 2,198
$(2,075) $(6,103) $ (8,285) $(17,136)

CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF

STOCKHOLDERS Preferred Common Additional Paid- Accumulated Other

EQUITY (DEFICIT) - Stock Stock in Capital Comprehensive Loss
USD ($)
$ in Thousands

Balance at Dec. 31, 2022 $1 $ 422,981 $ (1,316)
Balance (in shares) at Dec. 31, 2022 573,282 628,139
Stock-based compensation 401
Preferred stock dividends (50)
Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans 5,263
Translation adjustment (5,171)
Loss for the period
Balance at Mar. 31, 2023 $1 423,332 (1,224)
Balance (in shares) at Mar. 31, 2023 573,282 628,139
Balance at Dec. 31, 2022 $1 422,981 (1,316)
Balance (in shares) at Dec. 31, 2022 573,282 628,139
Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans
Translation adjustment
Loss for the period
Balance at Sep. 30, 2023 $1 428,475 (1,168)
Balance (in shares) at Sep. 30, 2023 573,282 842,854
Balance at Mar. 31, 2023 $1 423,332 (1,224)
Balance (in shares) at Mar. 31, 2023 573,282 628,139
Issue of common stock in At Market Issuance sales agreement, net of expenses 1,105
Issue of common stock in At Market Issuance sales agreement, net of expenses (in shares 53,213
Stock-based compensation 359
Preferred stock dividends (50)
Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans 5,577
Translation adjustment (5,450)
Loss for the period
Balance at Jun. 30, 2023 $1 424,746 (1,097)
Balance (in shares) at Jun. 30, 2023 573,282 681,352
Reclassification of redeemable common stock 3,389
Reclassification of redeemable common stock (in shares) 154,593
Stock-based compensation 390
Stock-based compensation (in shares) 6,909
Preferred stock dividends (50)
Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans (8,642)
Translation adjustment 8,571
Loss for the period
Balance at Sep. 30, 2023 $1 428,475 (1,168)
Balance (in shares) at Sep. 30, 2023 573,282 842,854
Balance at Dec. 31, 2023 $1 429,796 (908)
Balance (in shares) at Dec. 31, 2023 454,537 1,058,892
Issue costs on issu_ance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in (80)
underwritten offering
Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in
underwritten offering (in shares 219,700
Series B Preferred stock conversions (in shares (119,000) 39,667
Stock-based compensation 203
Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans (2,130)
Translation adjustment 2,140
Loss for the period
Balance at Mar. 31, 2024 $1 429,919 (898)
Balance (in shares) at Mar. 31, 2024 335,537 1,318,259

Accumulated
Deficit

$ (405,727)

(5,804)
(411,531)

(405,727)

(423,011)

(411,531)

(5,448)
(416,979)

(6,032)
(423,011)

(428,282)

(2,946)
(431,228)

Total

$
15,939

401
(50)
5,263
(5,171)
(5,804)
10,578

15,939

2,198
(2,050)
(17,284)
4,297

10,578
1,105

359
(50)
5,577
(5,450)
(5,448)
6,671

3,389
390

(50)
(8,642)
8,571
(6,032)
4,297

607

(80)

203
(2,130)
2,140
(2,946)
(2,206)


javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);

Balance at Dec. 31, 2023

Balance (in shares) at Dec. 31, 2023

Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans
Translation adjustment

Loss for the period

Balance at Sep. 30, 2024

Balance (in shares) at Sep. 30, 2024

Balance at Mar. 31, 2024

Balance (in shares) at Mar. 31, 2024

Issue of common stock and pre-funded warrants in Securities Purchase Agreement In
Private Placement, net of expenses

Issue of common stock and pre-funded warrants in Securities Purchase Agreement In
Private Placement, net of expenses (in shares)

Stock-based compensation
Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans
Translation adjustment
Loss for the period
Balance at Jun. 30, 2024
Balance (in shares) at Jun. 30, 2024
Expenses related to Securities Purchase Agreement In Private Placement
Exercise of pre-funded warrants (in shares
Stock-based compensation
Unrealized foreign exchange on intercompany loans
Translation adjustment
Loss for the period
Balance at Sep. 30, 2024
Balance (in shares) at Sep. 30, 2024
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$1 429,796
454,537 1,058,892

$2 436,503
335,537 2,152,204

$1 429,919
335,537 1,318,259

$1 6,289

486,945
189

$2 436,397
335,537 1,805,204
1)
347,000
107

$2 $ 436,503
335,537 2,152,204

9 Months Ended

$) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

$ in Thousands
Operating activities:

Net loss $(8,160) $(17,284)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation 5 23
Stock-based compensation 499 1,151
Changes in lease liability (37) (55)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,129 3,364
Accounts payable, accrued and other current liabilities (2,070) 599

Net cash used in operating activities (6,634) (12,202)
Investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 0 (6)

Net cash used in investing activities 0 (6)
Financing activities:

Proceeds from issuing common stock and pre-funded warrants, net 6,209 0
Payment of preferred stock dividend 0 (151)
Net cash provided by (used) in financing activities 6,209 (151)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 29 (42)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (396) (12,401)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 3,378 18,345
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 2,982 5,944
Cash received during the period for:

Interest 59 243
Research & development tax credits 3,715 4,846
Cash paid during the period for:

Taxes 2 2

Non cash financing activities:

Accrual of preferred stock dividends $0 $ 50
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Company Overview

Nature of Operations

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

(908)

(1,033)

(898)

504
(521)

(915)

14,468
(14,586)

$(1,033)

(428,282)

(436,442)

(431,228)

(3,257)
(434,485)

(1,957)
$ (436,442)

607

12,842
(12,967)
(8,160)
(970)

(2,206)

6,290

189
504
(521)
(3,257)
999

1)

107
14,468
(14,586)
(1,957)
$(970)

Cyclacel Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Cyclacel” or the “Company”) is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company developing innovative cancer medicines based on cell cycle, transcriptional regulation,
epigenetics and mitosis control biology. Cyclacel is a pioneer company in the field of cancer cell cycle biology with a vision to improve patient healthcare by translating insights in cancer biology into
medicines that can overcome resistance and ultimately increase a patient’s overall survival.

Through September 30, 2024, substantially all efforts of the Company to date have been devoted to performing research and development, conducting clinical trials, developing and acquiring intellectual

property, raising capital and recruiting and training personnel.
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Accounting Policies

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

The consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024, the consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, and stockholders’ equity (deficit) for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023 and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, and all related disclosures contained in the accompanying notes, are
unaudited. The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 is derived from the audited cc lidated financial statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 21, 2024. The lidated financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles that are
generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and
footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for a complete set of financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, which include only normal

recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024, and the results of operations, comprehensive loss, and changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit) for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, have been made. The interim results for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024 or for any other reporting period. The consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes for the year ended December 31, 2023 that are included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with
the SEC on March 21, 2024.

Going Concern

Pursuant to the requirements of Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 205-40, Pre ion of Financial -Going Concern, management is required at each reporting period to evaluate
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued. This evaluation initially does not take into consideration the potential mitigating effect of management’s plans that have not been fully implemented as of the date the financial
statements are issued. When substantial doubt exists under this methodology, management evaluates whether the mitigating effects of its plans sufficiently alleviate the substantial doubt about the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. The mitigating effect of management’s plans, however, is only considered if both (1) it is probable that the plans will be effectively implemented within one
year after the date that the financial statements are issued, and (2) it is probable that the plans, when implemented, will mitigate the relevant conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that these financial
statements are issued. In performing its analysis, management excluded certain elements of its operating plan that cannot be considered probable. Under ASC 205-40, the future receipts of potential funding
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from future equity or debt issuances or by entering into partnership agreements cannot be considered probable at this time because these plans are not entirely within the Company’s control nor have they
been approved by the Board of Directors as of the date of these consolidated financial statements.

Based on the Company’s current operating plan, it is anticipated that cash and cash equivalents of $3.0 million as of September 30, 2024, will allow it to meet its liquidity requirements into the fourth
quarter of 2024. The Company’s history of losses, negative cash flows from operations, liquidity resources currently on hand, and its dependence on the ability to obtain additional financing to fund its
operations after the current resources are exhausted, about which there can be no certainty, have resulted in the assessment that there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the issuance date of these financial statements. While the Company has plans in place to mitigate this risk, which primarily consist of raising
additional capital through equity financing or by entering into a strategic transaction, there is no guarantee that it will be successful in these mitigation efforts. In the event that we are not able to secure
funding, we may be forced to curtail operations, delay or stop ongoing development activities, cease operations altogether, and/or file for bankruptcy.

On August 26, 2024, the Listing Qualifications Staff (the “Staff”) of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”) determined that the Company was not in compliance with the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)
(1) (the “Equity Rule”) because the Company reported stockholders’ equity of less than $2.5 million as of June 30, 2024. The notice from the Staff further stated that unless the Company timely requested a
hearing before a Nasdaq Hearings Panel (the “Panel”), the Company’s securities would be subject to delisting. As of September 30, 2024, the Company has a stockholders equity deficit of approximately
$0.97 million which is not in compliance with the Equity Rule. On October 15, 2024, the Company met with the Panel regarding the Company’s potential delisting from Nasdaq as a result of its violation of
the Equity Rule. On October 22, 2024, the Company received the Panel’s decision which granted the Company until December 24, 2024 to regain compliance with the Equity Rule and all applicable criteria
for continued listing on Nasdag. If the Company is unable to regain compliance with the listing standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market by December 24, 2024, the Company’s securities may be delisted from

Nasdag.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Recently Issued A ing Pr

The FASB has issued ASU 2023-07, “Segment Reporting (Topic 280)”. This standard will require all public entities - even those like the Company that have a single reportable segment - to disclose
additional information about the title and position of the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), the measure or measures of segment profit and loss used by the CODM in assessing segment
performance and deciding how to allocate resources, an explanation of how the CODM uses the reported measure(s) in assessing segment performance, significant segment expenses that are regularly
provided to the CODM, and a reconciliation of segment profit and loss to the closest consolidated totals prepared under United States GAAP. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. ASU 2023-07 will not change the way in which reportable segments are determined.
However, the Company is currently evaluating the effects of ASU 2023-07 on its financial statement presentation and disclosures.

The FASB has issued ASU 2023-09, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures”. This standard will require all entities to include specified captions when reconciling the
statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rate, on both a percentage and absolute dollar basis. ASU 2023-09 will also require entities to disclose the amount of income taxes paid (net of refunds received)
disaggregated by federal (national), state, and foreign for each annual reporting period, with separate disclosure of individual jurisdictions for which tax payments to, or receipts from, exceed a defined
threshold. The guidance in ASU 2023-09 becomes effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company does not anticipate that ASU 2023-09 will require significant adjustments to
the presentation of that information.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist of cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their
respective fair values due to the nature of the accounts and their short maturities.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

All components of comprehensive income (loss), including net income (loss), are reported in the financial statements in the period in which they are recognized. Comprehensive income (loss) is
defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss), including foreign
currency translation adjustments, are reported, net of any related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income (loss). No taxes were recorded on items of other comprehensive income (loss). There were no
reclassifications out of other comprehensive income (loss) during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.

Foreign Currency and Currency Translation

Transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency are remeasured into the functional currency at the current exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Any foreign currency-denominated
monetary assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured at current exchange rates, with gains or losses recognized as foreign exchange (losses) gains in the statement of operations. This accounting
policy is also applied to foreign currency denominated intercompany payables or receivables for which settlement is planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future.

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s international subsidiary are translated from its functional currency into United States dollars at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Average
rates of exchange during the period are used to translate the statement of operations, while historical rates of exchange are used to translate any equity transactions. Translation adjustments arising on
consolidation due to differences between average rates and balance sheet rates, as well as unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses arising from translation of intercompany loans for which
settlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future and that are of a long-term-investment nature, are recorded in other comprehensive loss.

Leases
The Company accounts for lease contracts in accordance with ASC 842. As of September 30, 2024, the Company’s outstanding leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company recognizes an asset for the right to use an underlying leased asset for the lease term and records lease liabilities based on the present value of the Company’s obligation to make lease
payments under the lease. As the Company’s leases do not indicate an implicit rate, the Company uses a best estimate of its incremental borrowing rate to discount the future lease payments. The Company
estimates its incremental borrowing rate based on observable information about risk-free interest rates that are the same tenure as the lease term, adjusted for various factors, including the effects of
assumed collateral, the nature of how the loan is repaid (e.g., amortizing versus bullet), and the Company’s credit risk.

The Company evaluates lessee-controlled options included in its lease agreements to extend or terminate the lease. The Company will reflect the effects of exercising those options in the lease term
when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option. In assessing whether it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise an option, the Company considers factors such as:

The lease payments due in any optional period;

Penalties for failure to exercise (or not exercise) the option;

Market factors, such as the availability of similar assets and current rental rates for such assets;
The nature of the underlying leased asset and its importance to the Company’s operations; and
The remaining useful lives of any related leasehold improvements.

Lease expense for operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments, if any, are recognized in the period when the obligation to make those payments
is incurred. Lease incentives received prior to lease commencement are recorded as a reduction in the right-of-use asset. Fixed lease incentives received after lease commencement reduce both the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected an accounting policy to account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.
Revenue Recognition
When the Company enters into contracts with customers, the Company recognizes revenue using the five step-model provided in ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”):

(1) identify the contract with a customer;

(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract;

(3) determine the transaction price;

(4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
(5) recognize revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The transaction price includes fixed payments and an estimate of variable consideration, including milestone payments. The Company determines the variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price by estimating the most likely amount that will be received and then applies a constraint to reduce the consideration to the amount which is probable of being received. When applying the
constraint, the Company considers:

@ Whether achievement of a development milestone is highly susceptible to factors outside the entity’s influence, such as milestones involving the judgment or actions of third parties, including
regulatory bodies;

@ Whether the uncertainty about the achievement of the milestone is not expected to be resolved for a long period of time;

@® Whether the Company can reasonably predict that a milestone will be achieved based on previous experience; and

@ The complexity and inherent uncertainty underlying the achievement of the milestone.

The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the relative selling price of each performance obligation. The best estimate of the selling price is determined after
considering all reasonably available information, including market data and conditions, entity-specific factors such as the cost structure of the deliverable and internal profit and pricing objectives.

The revenue allocated to each performance obligation is recognized as or when the Company satisfies the performance obligation.

The Company recognizes a contract asset, when the value of satisfied (or part satisfied) performance obligations is in excess of the payment due to the Company, and deferred revenue when the
amount of unconditional consideration is in excess of the value of satisfied (or part satisfied) performance obligations. Once a right to receive consideration is unconditional, that amount is presented as a
receivable.

Grant revenue received from organizations that are not the Company’s customers, such as charitable foundations or government agencies, is presented as a reduction against the related research
and development expenses.
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Revenue

Revenue
Revenue 3. Revenue

The Company recognized $10,000 and $43,000 of revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 respectively. This revenue is related to recovery of clinical manufacturing costs
associated with an investigator sponsored study managed by Cedars-Sinai Medical Center. Revenues recognized for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 were $16,000 and $389,000
respectively.
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Share
The Company calculates net loss per common share in accordance with ASC 260 “Earnings Per Share” (“ASC 260”). Basic and diluted net loss per common share was determined by dividing net loss
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applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period.

The following potentially dilutive securities have not been included in the computation of diluted net loss per share for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, as the result would be
anti-dilutive:

September 30, September 30,

2024 2023

Stock options 118,989 145,446
Restricted Stock Units 39,747 34,798
6% convertible exchangeable preferred stock 6 6
Series A preferred stock 440 440
Series B preferred stock — 79,248
Common stock warrants 10,871,577 215,625
Total shares excluded from calculation 11,030,759 475,563
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Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

5. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following (in $000s):

September 30, December 31,

2024 2023
Research and development tax credit receivable $ 1,248 $ 2,933
Prepayments and VAT receivable 374 792
Other current assets 309 341

$

1,931 $ 4,066
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Non-Current Assets 6. Non-Current Assets

As of September 30, 2024, the Company had non-current assets of $0.4 million, which is primarily comprised of deposits held by a contract research organization in relation to the Company’s clinical trials.
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9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024
Accrued and Other Liabilities
Accrued and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in $000s):

September 30, December 31,

2024 2023
Accrued research and development $ 1,616 $ 3,668
Accrued legal and professional fees 277 570
Other current liabilities 332 380

2,225 4,618
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The Company currently has an operating lease liability relating to its facilities in Berkeley Heights, New Jersey.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized operating lease expenses of $57,178 and $55,982 respectively, including $9,097 and $7,902 respectively relating
to a short term lease for offices in Dundee, Scotland. Cash payments made during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $38,058 and $55,245, respectively, and were presented within
cash outflows from operating activities. The remaining lease term as of September 30, 2024 is approximately 0.8 years for the Berkeley Heights facility. The discount rate used by the Company in
determining the lease liability was 12%.

Remaining lease payments for both facilities are as follows (in $000s):

2024 $ 16
2025 38
Thereafter -
Total future minimum lease obligation $ 54
Less discount 3)
Total $ 51

Stock-Based
Compensation
Stock-Based
Compensation
Stock-Based 9.
Compensation

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Stock Based Compensation

ASC 718 requires compensation expense associated with share-based awards to be recognized over the requisite service period which, for the Company, is the period between the grant date and the
date the award vests or becomes exercisable. The Company recognizes all share-based awards under the straight-line attribution method, assuming that all granted awards will vest. Forfeitures are
recognized in the periods when they occur.

Stock based compensation has been reported within expense line items on the consolidated statement of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 as shown in
the following table (in $000s):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
General and administrative $ 101 $ 279 $ 421 $ 801
Research and development 6 $ 111 78 350
Stock-based compensation costs $ 107 $ 390 $ 499 $ 1,151

2018 Plan

In May 2018, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan”), under which Cyclacel may make equity incentive grants to its officers, employees, directors and
consultants. The 2018 Plan replaced the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2015 Plan”).

The 2018 Plan allows for various types of award grants, including stock options and restricted stock units.

On June 21, 2024, the Company’s stockholders approved an additional 160,000 shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2018 Plan. On June 13, 2023, the Company’s stockholders approved
an additional 60,000 shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2018 Plan. As of June 30, 2024, the Company has reserved approximately 204,000 shares of the Company’s common stock under
the 2018 Plan for future issuances. Stock option awards granted under the Company’s equity incentive plans have a maximum life of 10 years and generally vest over a one to four-year period from the date

of grant.

2020 Ind Equity ive Plan

In October 2020, the Inducement Equity Incentive Plan (the “Inducement Plan”), became effective. Under the Inducement Plan, Cyclacel may make equity incentive grants to new senior level
Employees (persons to whom the Company may issue securities without stockholder approval). The Inducement Plan allows for the issuance of up to 13,333 shares of the Company’s common stock (or the
equivalent of such number). As of September 30, 2024, 8,000 shares under the Inducement Plan have been issued, leaving a remaining reserve of 5,333 shares.

Option Grants and Exercises

There were 12,500 options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, all issued under the 2018 Plan. These options had a grant date fair value of $1.77 per option. There were 43,342
options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2023. These options had a grant date fair value ranging between $6.32-$10.98 per option.

All of the options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 shall vest six months from their date of grant. Of the options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2023,
25,633 awards shall vest on the third anniversary of their date of grant, or earlier if either of the certain performance conditions are met relating to enrollment goals for various clinical studies. The
Company has assumed that these awards will vest after three years as satisfaction of the performance conditions is not probable at this time.

The fair value of the stock options granted is calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as prescribed by ASC 718 using the following assumptions:

Nine months ended Nine months ended

September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
Expected term (years) 6 5-6
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Risk free interest rate 3.995% 3.660% -4.050%
Volatility 93% 89%-92%
Expected dividend yield over expected term 0.00% 0.00%
Resulting weighted average grant date fair value $1.77 $6.63

There were no stock options exercised during each of the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company does not expect to be able to benefit from the deduction for stock
option exercises that may occur because the company has tax loss carryforwards from prior periods that would be expected to offset any potential taxable income.

As of September 30, 2024, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to the non-vested awards with service conditions amounted to approximately $0.2 million, which will be amortized
over the weighted-average remaining requisite service period of 1.45 years.

Outstanding Options

A summary of the share option activity and related information is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Remaining Aggregate
Options Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Outstanding Price Per Share Term (Years) Value ($000)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2023 142,796 $ 50.20 7.96 $ =
Granted 12,500 $ 2.28 — $ —
Exercised - $ = - % -
Cancelled/forfeited (36,307) $ 51.78 — $ —
Options outstanding at September 30, 2024 118,989 $ 44.31 7.46 $ —
Unvested at September 30, 2024 20,273 $ 14.00 8.53 $ —
Vested and exercisable at September 30, 2024 98,716 $ 50.54 7.24 $ —

Restricted Stock Units

The Company issued 12,500 restricted stock units during the nine months ended September 30, 2024. These restricted stock units vest monthly over a six-month service period. These restricted stock
units were valued at $2.28 at the date of grant, which was equivalent to the market price of a share of the Company’s common stock on that date.

A total of 17,133 restricted stock units issued in January 2023 vest on the third anniversary of their date of grant, or earlier if certain defined clinical trial related performance targets are met. A
three-year vesting assumption was applied to these restricted stock units as satisfaction of the performance conditions is not probable at this time. Each of these restricted stock units was valued at $13.50
at the date of grant, which was equivalent to the market price of a share of the Company’s common stock on that date. During 2023, 300 of these restricted stock units were forfeited as the recipient
voluntarily terminated employment with the Company. Through September 30, 2024, an additional 7,077 of these restricted stock units have been forfeited due to the holders’ termination of employment
with the Company.

Summarized information for restricted stock units as of September 30, 2024 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Restricted Remaining
Stock Units Term
Restricted Stock Units outstanding at December 31, 2023 34,498 8.96 years
Granted 12,500
Cancelled/forfeited (7,251)
Restricted Stock Units outstanding at September 30, 2024 39,747 8.55 years
Unvested at September 30, 2024 10,278 8.31 years
Vested at September 30, 2024 29,469 8.64 years
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April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Stockholders Equity

On April 30, 2024, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with an institutional investor (the “Purchaser”) for the issuance and sale in a private placement
(the “Private Placement”) of (i) 145,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase up to 4,823,945 shares of common stock (the “Pre-Funded Warrants”), (iii) series A
warrants to purchase up to 4,968,945 shares of common stock (the
“Series A Warrants”), and (iv) series B warrants to purchase up to 4,968,945 shares of common stock (the “Series B Warrants” and together with the Series A Warrants, the “Common Warrants”). The
purchase price of each share of common stock and associated Common Warrants was $1.61 and the purchase price of each Pre-Funded Warrant and associated Common Warrants was $1.6099.

The Common Warrants are exercisable immediately upon issuance at an exercise price of $1.36 per share. The Series A Warrants will expire five and one-half years from the date of issuance and the
Series B Warrants will expire eighteen months from the date of issuance. The Pre-Funded Warrants are exercisable immediately upon issuance at an exercise price of $0.0001 per share and may be
exercised at any time until the Pre-Funded Warrants are exercised in full. A holder of Pre-Funded Warrants or Common Warrants (together with its affiliates) may not exercise any portion of such warrants
to the extent that the holder would own more than 4.99% (or, at the election of the holder 9.99%) of the Company’s outstanding common stock immediately after exercise.

In connection with the Private Placement, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”), dated as of April 30, 2024, with the Purchaser, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to prepare and file a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) registering the resale of the securities issued in the Private Placement.

The Private Placement closed on May 2, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from the Private Placement were approximately $8.0 million, before deducting placement agent fees and estimated
offering expenses payable by the Company.

H.C. Wainwright & Co., LLC (“Wainwright”) acted as the Company’s exclusive placement agent in connection with the Private Placement, pursuant to that certain engagement letter, dated as of April 29,
2024, between the Company and Wainwright (as amended, the “Engagement Letter”). Pursuant to the Engagement Letter, the Company paid Wainwright (i) a cash fee equal to 7.0% of the aggregate gross
proceeds of the Private Placement and (ii) a management fee of 1.0% of the aggregate gross proceeds of the Private Placement. In addition, the Company agreed to pay Wainwright certain expenses and
issued to Wainwright or its designees warrants (the “Placement Agent Warrants”) to purchase up to an aggregate of 298,137 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price equal to $2.0125 per share. The
Placement Agent Warrants are exercisable immediately upon issuance and have a term of exercise equal to five and a half years from the date of issuance.

In connection with this transaction, the Company was required to compensate Roth Capital Partners, LLC, pursuant to a tail provision contained in an engagement letter entered into on March 14, 2024,
in an amount equal to 7.0% of the aggregate proceeds of the Private Placement plus the reimbursement of certain expenses. The Company was also required to compensate Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc,
pursuant to a tail provision contained in an engagement letter entered into on October 30, 2023, in an amount equal to 8.0% of the aggregate proceeds of the Private Placement.

Each of the instruments issued in the Private Placement have been classified and recorded as part of shareholders’ equity (deficit). The amounts allocated to each issued security were based on their
relative fair values, resulting in initial carrying values of the respective instruments as follows:

Allocated Amount
Common shares $72,108
Prefunded warrants 2,398,831
Common warrants 3,819,274
Net proceeds $6,290,213

The aggregate fair value of the Placement Agent Warrants was $609,179. These have been accounted for as a direct cost of the Private Placement, resulting in no net effect to overall shareholders’ equity

(deficit).

In determining the fair values of the Pre-Funded Warrants, Common Warrants, and Placement Agent Warrants, the Company used a Black-Scholes Option Pricing model with the following assumptions:

Pre-Funded Warrants Common Warrants Placement Agent Warrants
Expected volatility 100% 103% - 121% 103%
Contractual term 1 year 1% - 5% years 5% years
Risk-free interest rate 5.51% 4.57%-5.51% 4.57%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The fair value of the common shares was determined using the closing price of the Company’s common stock as of May 2, 2024, which is the date that the Private Placement closed.

December 2023 Registered Direct Offering Securities Purchase Agreement

On December 21, 2023, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the “Securities Purchase Agreement”) with certain institutional investors (“Purchasers”). Pursuant to the Securities
Purchase Agreement, the Company agreed to sell in a registered direct offering (“Registered Direct Offering”) 168,500 shares (“Shares”) of the Company’s common stock, $0.001 par value per share
(“Common Stock”), and pre-funded warrants (“Pre-Funded Warrants”) to purchase up to 219,700 shares of Common Stock. The Pre-Funded Warrants have an exercise price of $0.001 per share and can be
exercised at any time after their original issuance until such Pre-Funded Warrants are exercised in full. Each Share is being sold at an offering price of $3.315 and each Pre-Funded Warrant is being sold at
an offering price of $3.314 (equal to the purchase price per Share minus the exercise price of the Pre-Funded Warrant). The Pre-Funded Warrants have been included in the calculation of basic and diluted
loss per share for all periods outstanding.

Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, in a concurrent private placement (together with the Registered Direct Offering, the “Offerings”), the Company also agreed to issue to the Purchasers
unregistered warrants (“Common Warrants”) to purchase up to 388,200 shares of Common Stock. Each Common Warrant has an exercise price of $3.19 per share, is exercisable immediately following their
original issuance and will expire seven years from the original issuance date. The closing of the offering occurred on December 26, 2023, and the net proceeds to the Company were approximately $1.0
million, after deducting placement agent fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company.

On December 21, 2023, in a separate concurrent insider private placement (the “Insider Private Placement”), the Company also entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with certain of its executive
officers (the “Insider Securities Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell in a private placement (i) 6,070 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 6,070 shares of
Common Stock on the same terms as the Common Warrants issued to the Purchasers in the Offerings to Spiro Rombotis, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, and (ii) 1,886 shares of Common Stock and
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warrants to purchase 1,886 shares of Common Stock on the same terms as the Common Warrants issued to the Purchasers in the Offerings to Paul McBarron, the Company’s Executive Vice President-
Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer. Each such share of Common Stock and accompanying warrant was sold at a purchase price of $3.315, which was the same purchase price for
the Shares sold in the Registered Direct Offering.

Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. (the “Placement Agent”) acted as the exclusive placement agent for the Offerings, pursuant to a placement agency agreement (the “Placement Agency Agreement”),
dated December 21, 2023, by and between the Company and the Placement Agent.

Pursuant to the Placement Agency Agreement, the Company paid the Placement Agent a cash placement fee equal to 8.0% of the aggregate gross proceeds raised in the Offerings from sales arranged for
by the Placement Agent. Subject to certain conditions, the Company also agreed to reimburse all reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket expenses of the Placement Agent in connection with the Offerings,
including but not limited to legal fees, up to a maximum of $85,000. In addition, the Placement Agent also received warrants that have substantially the same terms as the Warrants issued in the concurrent
private placement to the Purchasers in the Offerings to purchase that number of shares of Common Stock
equal to 6.0% of the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock and Prefunded Warrants sold in the Offerings, or an aggregate of 23,769 shares of Common Stock, at an exercise price of $4.14375 per
share (the “Placement Agent Warrants”). The Placement Agent Warrants will be exercisable immediately following the date of issuance and will expire five years from issuance. The Placement Agency
Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and agreements by the Company and customary conditions to closing. The Company has agreed to indemnify the Placement Agent against certain
liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and liabilities arising from breaches of representations and warranties contained in the Placement Agency Agreement, or to contribute to payments
that the Placement Agent may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

Each of the instruments issued in the Offerings and the Insider Private Placement have been classified and recorded as part of shareholders’ equity (deficit). The amounts allocated to each issued
security were based on their relative fair values, resulting in initial carrying values of the respective instruments as follows:
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The aggregate fair value of the Placement Agent Warrants was $47,000. These have been accounted for as a direct cost of the Offerings and Inside Private Placement, resulting in no net effect to overall
shareholders’ equity (deficit).

In determining the fair values of the Pre-Funded Warrants, Regular Warrants, and Placement Agent Warrants, the Company used a Black-Scholes Option Pricing model with the following assumptions:

Graphic

The fair value of the common shares was determined using the closing price of the Company’s common stock as of December 26, 2023, which is the date that the Offerings and the Insider Private
Placement closed.

August 2021 Controlled Equity Offering Sales Agreement

On August 12, 2021, the Company entered into a Controlled Equity Offering Sales Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. ("Cantor"), pursuant to which the Company could
issue and sell, from time to time, shares of its common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $50.0 million through Cantor as the sales agent. Cantor could sell the Company’s common stock by
any method permitted by law deemed to be an “at the market offering” as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) of the Securities Act.

On August 12, 2022, the Company became aware that the shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (file number 333-231923) (the “Registration Statement”) associated with this Sales Agreement had
expired on June 21, 2022. Prior to becoming aware of the expiration, the Company sold an aggregate of 132,473 shares of its common stock at the market price, following the expiration of the Registration
Statement and through August 12, 2022, for aggregate proceeds of approximately $2,721,187. There was no sale of shares post August 12, 2022. The sale of these shares was subject to potential rescission
rights by certain shareholders. As a result of these potential rescission rights, the Company reclassified 207,807 shares (including 75,333 shares sold for which the Company did not receive any proceeds),
with an aggregate purchase price of $4,494,496 of its common as stock outside stockholders’ equity (deficit) through the expiration date of those rescission rights in August 2023. These shares were treated
as issued and outstanding for purposes of calculating basic and diluted loss per share in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023. The
rescission rights for these shares have lapsed and the shares were reclassified back to permanent equity. There have been no claims or demands to exercise such rights.

On August 15, 2022, due to expiry of the Registration Statement, the Sales Agreement was mutually terminated. A total of 218,738 shares, for gross proceeds of approximately $7.6 million, had been sold
pursuant to the Sales Agreement.

Warrants
April 2024 Warrants

As of September 30, 2024, warrants to purchase a total of 14,718,027 shares of common stock issued pursuant to a securities purchase agreement in a April 2024 financing transaction (the “April
2024 Securities Purchase Agreement”) remained outstanding. A total of 15,059,972 warrants were issued in pursuant to the April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement. This consisted of i) pre-funded
warrants to purchase 4,823,945 of common stock, exercisable immediately from the date of issuance, and with no expiry date, at an exercise price of $0.0001 per warrant share, ii) series A warrants to
purchase up to 4,968,945 shares of common stock, exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of five and a half years after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $1.36 per warrant
share, iii) series B warrants to purchase up to 4,968,945 shares of common stock, exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of eighteen months after the date of issuance, at an exercise
price of $1.36 per warrant share. A further 298,137 warrants issued in a concurrent placement agency agreement, are exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of five and a half years
after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $2.0125 per warrant share.

A total of 688,945 pre-funded warrants were exercised during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.
December 2023 Warrants

As of September 30, 2024, warrants to purchase a total of 419,925 shares of common stock issued pursuant to a securities purchase agreement in a December 2023 financing transaction remained
outstanding. A total of 396,156 warrants, including 7,956 warrants issued in a concurrent private placement, are exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a period of seven years after the date
of issuance, at an exercise price of $3.19 per warrant share. A further 23,769 warrants issued in a concurrent placement agency agreement, are exercisable immediately from the date of issuance for a
period of five years after the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $4.14375 per warrant share.

There were no exercises of these warrants during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.
December 2020 Warrants

As of September 30, 2024, warrants to purchase 44,657 shares of common stock issued pursuant to a securities purchase agreement in a December 2020 financing transaction remained outstanding
(the “December 2020 Securities Purchase Agreement”). Each warrant shall be exercisable beginning on the 12-month anniversary of the date of issuance for a period of five years after the date of issuance,
at an exercise price of $61.95 per warrant share. The exercise price of the warrants will be subject to adjustment in the event of any stock dividends and splits, reverse stock split, recapitalization,
reorganization or similar transaction, as described in the warrants. The warrants may be exercised on a “cashless” basis.

There were no exercises of these warrants during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 or September 30, 2023.

April 2020 Warrants

As of September 30, 2024, 146,000 warrants issued pursuant to a securities purchase agreement in connection with an April 2020 equity financing remained outstanding, each with an exercise price of
$75.00. The common warrants are immediately exercisable and will expire on the fifth anniversary of the original issuance date. The exercise price and number of shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise is subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of
stock dividends, stock splits, reorganizations or similar events affecting the Company’s common stock. The common warrants were issued separately from the common stock and were eligible for
transfer immediately after issuance. A common warrant to purchase one share of common stock was issued for every share of common stock purchased in this offering.

The common warrants are exercisable, at the option of each holder, in whole or in part, by delivering to the Company a duly executed exercise notice accompanied by payment in full for the
number of shares of the Company’s common stock purchased upon such exercise (except in the case of a cashless exercise). A holder (together with its affiliates) may not exercise any portion of the
common warrant to the extent that the holder would own more than 4.99% of the outstanding common stock immediately after exercise, except that upon at least 61 days prior notice from the holder
to the Company, the holder may increase the amount of ownership of outstanding stock after exercising the holder’s common warrants up to 9.99% of the number of shares of the Company’s common
stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the exercise, as such percentage ownership is determined in accordance with the terms of the common warrants. No fractional shares of common
stock will be issued in connection with the exercise of a common warrant. In lieu of fractional shares, the Company will round down to the next whole share.

There were no exercises of these warrants during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 or September 30, 2023.
Series B Preferred Stock

A total of 237,745 shares of the Company’s Series B Preferred Stock were issued pursuant to a December 2020 Securities Purchase Agreement. Each share of Series B Preferred Stock was initially
convertible into one third (1/3) share of common stock (the “Conversion Shares”), subject to adjustment in accordance with the Certificate of Designation.

Holders of Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive dividends on shares of Series B Preferred Stock equal, on an as-if-converted-to-common-stock basis, and in the same form as dividends
actually paid on shares of the common stock. Except as otherwise required by law, the Series B Preferred Stock does not have voting rights. However, as long as any shares of Series B Preferred Stock are
outstanding, the Company will not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of the Series B Preferred Stock, (a) alter or change adversely the powers,
preferences or rights given to the Series B Preferred Stock, (b) alter or amend the Certificate of Designation, (c) amend its certificate of incorporation or other charter documents in any manner that
adversely affects any rights of the holders of Series B Preferred Stock, (d) increase the number of authorized shares of Series B Preferred Stock, (e) pay certain dividends or (f) enter into any agreement with
respect to any of the foregoing. The Series B Preferred Stock does not have a preference upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company. The Purchaser may convert shares of Series B
Preferred Stock through a conversion into shares of common stock if and solely to the extent that such conversion would not result in the Purchaser beneficially owning in excess of 9.99% of then-
outstanding common stock or aggregate voting power of the Company (such limitation, the “Ownership Limitation”) and any portion in excess of such limitation will remain outstanding as Series B Preferred
Stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, 118,745 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were converted, at the option of the holder, into 39,582 shares of common stock. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2024, the remaining 119,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were converted, at the option of the holder, into 39,667 shares of common stock.

Series A Preferred Stock

A total of 8,872 shares of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock were issued in a July 2017 Underwritten Public Offering. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is convertible at any time at the
option of the holder thereof, into a number of shares of common stock determined by dividing $1,000 by the initial conversion price of $600.00 per share, subject to a 4.99% blocker provision, or, upon
election by a holder prior to the issuance of shares of Series A Preferred Stock, 9.99%, and is subject to adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, distributions, subdivisions and combinations.

As of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 264 shares of the Series A Preferred Stock remain issued and outstanding. The 264 shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2024, are convertible into 440 shares of common stock.

In the event of a liquidation, the holders of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock may participate on an as-converted-to-common-stock basis in any distribution of assets of the Company. The
Company shall not pay any dividends on shares of common stock (other than dividends in the form of common stock) unless and until such time as dividends on each share of Series A Preferred Stock are
paid on an as-converted basis. There is no restriction on the Company’s ability to repurchase shares of Series A Preferred Stock while there is any arrearage in the payment of dividends on such shares, and



there are no sinking fund provisions applicable to Series A Preferred Stock.

Subject to certain conditions, at any time following the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock, the Company has the right to cause each holder of the Series A Preferred Stock to convert all or part
of such holder’s Series A Preferred Stock in the event that (i) the volume weighted average price of our common stock for 30 consecutive trading days, or Measurement Period exceeds 300% of the initial
conversion price of the Series A Preferred Stock (subject to adjustment for forward and reverse stock splits, recapitalizations, stock dividends and similar transactions), (ii) the daily trading volume on each
Trading Day during such Measurement Period exceeds $500,000 per trading day and (iii) the holder is not in possession of any information that constitutes or might constitute, material non-public
information which was provided by the Company. The right to cause each holder of Series A Preferred Stock to convert all or part of such holder’s Series A Preferred Stock shall be exercised ratably among
the holders of the then outstanding preferred stock.

The Series A Preferred Stock has no maturity date, will carry the same dividend rights as the common stock, and with certain exceptions contains no voting rights. In the event of any liquidation or
dissolution of the Company, the Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to the common stock in the distribution of assets, to the extent legally available for distribution.

6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock

As of September 30, 2024, there were 335,273 shares of the Company’s 6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock (the “6% Preferred Stock”) issued and outstanding at an issue price of $10.00
per share. Dividends on the 6% Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of original issuance at the annual rate of 6% of the liquidation preference of the 6% Preferred Stock, payable quarterly on the
first day of February, May, August and November, commencing February 1, 2005. Any dividends must be declared by the Company’s board of directors and must come from funds that are legally available
for dividend payments. The 6% Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $10.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends. As of September 30, 2024, there were no accrued and unpaid dividends.

The Company may automatically convert the 6% Preferred Stock into common stock if the per share closing price of the Company’s common stock has exceeded $888,300, which is 150% of the
conversion price of the 6% Preferred Stock, for at least 20 trading days during any 30 day trading period, ending within five trading days prior to notice of automatic conversion.

The 6% Preferred Stock has no maturity date and no voting rights prior to conversion into common stock, except under limited circumstances.
The Company may, at its option, redeem the 6% Preferred Stock in whole or in part, out of funds legally available at the redemption price of $10.00 per share.

The 6% Preferred Stock is exchangeable, in whole but not in part, at the option of the Company on any dividend payment date beginning on November 1, 2005 (the “Exchange Date”) for the

Company’s 6% Convertible Subordinated Debentures (the “Debentures”) at the rate of $10.00 principal amount of Debentures for each share of 6% Preferred Stock. The Debentures, if issued, will mature 25
years after the Exchange Date and have substantially similar terms to those of the 6% Preferred Stock. No such exchanges have taken place to date.
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Subsequent Events 9 Months Ended
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Sep. 30, 2024
Subsequent Events
Subsequent Events 11. Subsequent Events

Dividends on 6% Preferred Stock

On September 4, 2024, the board of directors of the Company passed a resolution to suspend payment of the quarterly cash dividend on the Company’s 6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock
scheduled for November 1, 2024. The Board of Directors will continue to evaluate the payment of a quarterly cash dividend on a quarterly basis.

On October 15, 2024, 200,000 shares of the Company’s 6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock was converted into 3 shares of common stock.
As of October 23, 2024, all of the remaining 4,135,000 pre-funded warrants pursuant to the April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement were fully exercised.
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Pay vs Performance 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
Disclosure - USD ($)
$ in Thousands Sep. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2024 Mar. 31, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Jun. 30, 2023 Mar. 31, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
Pay vs Performance Disclosure
Net Income (Loss) $(1,957) $(3,257) $(2,946) $ (6,032) $ (5,448) $ (5,804) $(8,160) $(17,284)
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Insider Trading 3 Months Ended
Arrangements Sep. 30, 2024
Trading Arrangements, by Individual
Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted false
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted  false
Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated false
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated false
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Significant
Accounting Policies Sep. 30, 2024
(Policies)
Summary of
Significant
Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation Basis of Presentation

The consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024, the consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, and stockholders’ equity (deficit) for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023 and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, and all related disclosures contained in the accompanying notes, are
unaudited. The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 is derived from the audited cc idated financial statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 21, 2024. The consolidated financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles that are
generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and
footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for a complete set of financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, which include only normal
recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024, and the results of operations, comprehensive loss, and changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit) for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, have been made. The interim results for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024 or for any other reporting period. The consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes for the year ended December 31, 2023 that are included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with
the SEC on March 21, 2024.

Going Concern Going Concern

Pursuant to the requirements of Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 205-40, Pr ion of Financial -Going Concern, management is required at each reporting period to evaluate
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued. This evaluation initially does not take into consideration the potential mitigating effect of management’s plans that have not been fully implemented as of the date the financial
statements are issued. When substantial doubt exists under this methodology, management evaluates whether the mitigating effects of its plans sufficiently alleviate the substantial doubt about the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. The mitigating effect of management’s plans, however, is only considered if both (1) it is probable that the plans will be effectively implemented within one
year after the date that the financial statements are issued, and (2) it is probable that the plans, when implemented, will mitigate the relevant conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that these financial
statements are issued. In performing its analysis, management excluded certain elements of its operating plan that cannot be considered probable. Under ASC 205-40, the future receipts of potential funding
from future equity or debt issuances or by entering into partnership agreements cannot be considered probable at this time because these plans are not entirely within the Company’s control nor have they
been approved by the Board of Directors as of the date of these consolidated financial statements.

Based on the Company’s current operating plan, it is anticipated that cash and cash equivalents of $3.0 million as of September 30, 2024, will allow it to meet its liquidity requirements into the fourth
quarter of 2024. The Company’s history of losses, negative cash flows from operations, liquidity resources currently on hand, and its dependence on the ability to obtain additional financing to fund its
operations after the current resources are exhausted, about which there can be no certainty, have resulted in the assessment that there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the issuance date of these financial statements. While the Company has plans in place to mitigate this risk, which primarily consist of raising
additional capital through equity financing or by entering into a strategic transaction, there is no guarantee that it will be successful in these mitigation efforts. In the event that we are not able to secure
funding, we may be forced to curtail operations, delay or stop ongoing development activities, cease operations altogether, and/or file for bankruptcy.

On August 26, 2024, the Listing Qualifications Staff (the “Staff”) of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”) determined that the Company was not in compliance with the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)
(1) (the “Equity Rule”) because the Company reported stockholders’ equity of less than $2.5 million as of June 30, 2024. The notice from the Staff further stated that unless the Company timely requested a
hearing before a Nasdaq Hearings Panel (the “Panel”), the Company’s securities would be subject to delisting. As of September 30, 2024, the Company has a stockholders equity deficit of approximately
$0.97 million which is not in compliance with the Equity Rule. On October 15, 2024, the Company met with the Panel regarding the Company’s potential delisting from Nasdaq as a result of its violation of
the Equity Rule. On October 22, 2024, the Company received the Panel’s decision which granted the Company until December 24, 2024 to regain compliance with the Equity Rule and all applicable criteria
for continued listing on Nasdagq. If the Company is unable to regain compliance with the listing standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market by December 24, 2024, the Company’s securities may be delisted from

Nasdagq.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of
business.
Recently Issued Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting . . 5 . . . . . . . .
Pronouncements The FASB has issued ASU 2023-07, “Segment Reporting (Topic 280)”. This standard will require all public entities - even those like the Company that have a single reportable segment - to disclose

additional information about the title and position of the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), the measure or measures of segment profit and loss used by the CODM in assessing segment
performance and deciding how to allocate resources, an explanation of how the CODM uses the reported measure(s) in assessing segment performance, significant segment expenses that are regularly
provided to the CODM, and a reconciliation of segment profit and loss to the closest consolidated totals prepared under United States GAAP. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. ASU 2023-07 will not change the way in which reportable segments are determined.
However, the Company is currently evaluating the effects of ASU 2023-07 on its financial statement presentation and disclosures.

The FASB has issued ASU 2023-09, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures”. This standard will require all entities to include specified captions when reconciling the
statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rate, on both a percentage and absolute dollar basis. ASU 2023-09 will also require entities to disclose the amount of income taxes paid (net of refunds received)
disaggregated by federal (national), state, and foreign for each annual reporting period, with separate disclosure of individual jurisdictions for which tax payments to, or receipts from, exceed a defined
threshold. The guidance in ASU 2023-09 becomes effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company does not anticipate that ASU 2023-09 will require significant adjustments to
the presentation of that information.
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Fair Value of Financial
Instruments

Comprehensive Income
Loss

Foreign Currency and
Currency Translation

Leases

Revenue Recognition

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist of cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their
respective fair values due to the nature of the accounts and their short maturities.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

All components of comprehensive income (loss), including net income (loss), are reported in the financial statements in the period in which they are recognized. Comprehensive income (loss) is
defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss), including foreign
currency translation adjustments, are reported, net of any related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income (loss). No taxes were recorded on items of other comprehensive income (loss). There were no
reclassifications out of other comprehensive income (loss) during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.

Foreign Currency and Currency Translation

Transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency are remeasured into the functional currency at the current exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Any foreign currency-denominated
monetary assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured at current exchange rates, with gains or losses recognized as foreign exchange (losses) gains in the statement of operations. This accounting
policy is also applied to foreign currency denominated intercompany payables or receivables for which settlement is planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future.

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s international subsidiary are translated from its functional currency into United States dollars at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Average
rates of exchange during the period are used to translate the statement of operations, while historical rates of exchange are used to translate any equity transactions. Translation adjustments arising on
consolidation due to differences between average rates and balance sheet rates, as well as unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses arising from translation of intercompany loans for which
settlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future and that are of a long-term-investment nature, are recorded in other comprehensive loss.

Leases
The Company accounts for lease contracts in accordance with ASC 842. As of September 30, 2024, the Company’s outstanding leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company recognizes an asset for the right to use an underlying leased asset for the lease term and records lease liabilities based on the present value of the Company’s obligation to make lease
payments under the lease. As the Company’s leases do not indicate an implicit rate, the Company uses a best estimate of its incremental borrowing rate to discount the future lease payments. The Company
estimates its incremental borrowing rate based on observable information about risk-free interest rates that are the same tenure as the lease term, adjusted for various factors, including the effects of
assumed collateral, the nature of how the loan is repaid (e.g., amortizing versus bullet), and the Company’s credit risk.

The Company evaluates lessee-controlled options included in its lease agreements to extend or terminate the lease. The Company will reflect the effects of exercising those options in the lease term
when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option. In assessing whether it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise an option, the Company considers factors such as:

The lease payments due in any optional period;

Penalties for failure to exercise (or not exercise) the option;

Market factors, such as the availability of similar assets and current rental rates for such assets;
The nature of the underlying leased asset and its importance to the Company’s operations; and
The remaining useful lives of any related leasehold improvements.

Lease expense for operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments, if any, are recognized in the period when the obligation to make those payments
is incurred. Lease incentives received prior to lease commencement are recorded as a reduction in the right-of-use asset. Fixed lease incentives received after lease commencement reduce both the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected an accounting policy to account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.
Revenue Recognition
When the Company enters into contracts with customers, the Company recognizes revenue using the five step-model provided in ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”):

(1) identify the contract with a customer;

(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract;

(3) determine the transaction price;

(4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
(5) recognize revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The transaction price includes fixed payments and an estimate of variable consideration, including milestone payments. The Company determines the variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price by estimating the most likely amount that will be received and then applies a constraint to reduce the consideration to the amount which is probable of being received. When applying the
constraint, the Company considers:

@® Whether achievement of a development milestone is highly susceptible to factors outside the entity’s influence, such as milestones involving the judgment or actions of third parties, including
regulatory bodies;

@® Whether the uncertainty about the achievement of the milestone is not expected to be resolved for a long period of time;

@ Whether the Company can reasonably predict that a milestone will be achieved based on previous experience; and

@® The complexity and inherent uncertainty underlying the achievement of the milestone.

The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the relative selling price of each performance obligation. The best estimate of the selling price is determined after
considering all reasonably available information, including market data and conditions, entity-specific factors such as the cost structure of the deliverable and internal profit and pricing objectives.

The revenue allocated to each performance obligation is recognized as or when the Company satisfies the performance obligation.
The Company recognizes a contract asset, when the value of satisfied (or part satisfied) performance obligations is in excess of the payment due to the Company, and deferred revenue when the
amount of unconditional consideration is in excess of the value of satisfied (or part satisfied) performance obligations. Once a right to receive consideration is unconditional, that amount is presented as a

receivable.

Grant revenue received from organizations that are not the Company’s customers, such as charitable foundations or government agencies, is presented as a reduction against the related research
and development expenses.
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Net Loss per Common
Share (Tables)

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Net Loss per Common Share

hedule of Basic and Dil Loss Per Shar September 30, September 30,
2024 2023
Stock options 118,989 145,446
Restricted Stock Units 39,747 34,798
6% convertible exchangeable preferred stock 6 6
Series A preferred stock 440 440
Series B preferred stock — 79,248
Common stock warrants 10,871,577 215,625
Total shares excluded from calculation 11,030,759 475,563
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Prepaid Expenses and
Other Current Assets

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

(Tables)
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Schedule of prepaid expenses and other current assets Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following (in $000s):
September 30, December 31,
2024 2023
Research and development tax credit receivable $ 1,248 $ 2,933
Prepayments and VAT receivable 374 792
Other current assets 309 341
§ 193t 5 4006
Accrued and Other 9 Months Ended
Liabilities (Tables) Sep. 30, 2024
Accrued and Other Liabilities
Schedule of Accrued and Other Liabilities Accrued and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in $000s):
September 30, December 31,
2024 2023
Accrued research and development $ 1,616 $ 3,668
Accrued legal and professional fees 277 570
Other current liabilities 332 380
§ 20205 § 4618
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Leases (Tables)

Leases

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Remaining lease payments for both facilities are as follows (in $000s):

2024 $ 16
2025 38
Thereafter =

Total future minimum lease obligation $ 54
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Less discount 3)
Total $ 51
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Stock-Based
Compensation
(Tables)
Stock-Based Compensation
Schedule of Stock Based Compensation Expense

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Three Months Ended  Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

T2024 2023 2024 _ 2023 _
General and administrative $ 101 $ 279 $ 421 $ 801
Research and development 6 $ 111 78 350
Stock-based compensation costs $ 107 $ 390 $ 499 $ 1,151

Schedule of Fair Value of the Stock Options Granted

Nine months ended
September 30, 2024

Nine months ended
September 30, 2023

Expected term (years) 6 5-6

Risk free interest rate 3.995% 3.660% -4.050%
Volatility 93% 89%-92%
Expected dividend yield over expected term 0.00% 0.00%
Resulting weighted average grant date fair value $1.77 $6.63

Schedule of Share Option Activity A summary of the share option activity and related information is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Remaining Aggregate
Options Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Outstanding Price Per Share Term (Years) Value ($000)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2023 142,796 $ 50.20 796 $ —
Granted 12,500 $ 2.28 — $ —
Exercised —  $ = - 8 =
Cancelled/forfeited (36,307) $ 51.78 — % —
Options outstanding at September 30, 2024 118,989 $ 44.31 7.46 $ —
Unvested at September 30, 2024 20,273 $ 14.00 8.53 $ —
Vested and exercisable at
September 30, 2024 98,716  $ 50.54 724 $ —
Schedule of Restricted Stock Units Activity Weighted
Average
Restricted ~ Remaining
Stock Units __Term _
Restricted Stock Units outstanding at December 31, 2023 34,498 8.96 years
Granted 12,500
Cancelled/forfeited (7,251)
Restricted Stock Units outstanding at September 30, 2024 39,747  8.55 years
Unvested at September 30, 2024 10,278 8.31 years
Vested at September 30, 2024 29,469 8.64 years
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Stockholders Equity
(Tables)
April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Schedule of fair values of instruments issued in an offering

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Allocated Amount

Common shares $72,108
Prefunded warrants 2,398,831
Common warrants 3,819,274

Net proceeds $6,290,213

Schedule of fair value of warrants valuation assumption

Pre-Funded Warrants Common Warrants Placement Agent
Warrants

Expected volatility 100% 103% - 121% 103%
Contractual term 1 year 1% - 5% years 5% years
Risk-free interest rate 5.51% 4.57% - 5.51% 4.57%
Expected dividend 0% 0% 0%
yield

December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Schedule of fair values of instruments issued in an offering

Graphic

Schedule of fair value of warrants valuation assumption
Graphic
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Summary of
Significant
Accounting Policies
(Narrative) (Details) -

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Jun. 30, 2024 Mar. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 Jun. 30, 2023 Mar. 31, 2023 Dec. 31, 2022

USD ($)
$ in Thousands
mim. f Significant A nting Polici
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,982 $ 3,378
Substantial Doubt about Going Concern, within One Year true
Stockholder's Equity Deficit $ 970 $ (4,297) $(999) $ 2,206 $ (607) $(6,671) $(10,578) $(15,939)
Tax on other comprehensive income (loss 0
Reclassifications out of other comprehensive income (loss) $ 0 $0
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Revenue (Narrative) 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Details) - USD ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Revenue
Revenue $ 10,000 $ 16,000 $ 43,000 $ 389,000
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Net Loss Per Common 9 Months Ended
Share - Schedule of
Company's Potential
Anti Dilutive Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
Securities (Details) -
shares
Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items]
Total shares excl from calculation 11,030,759 475,563
Preferred stock, dividend rate (in percent 6.00%
Empl k ion [Mem)
Antidilutive rities Excl from Com ion of Earnings Per Share [Line Item:
Total shares excluded from calculation 118,989 145,446

Restri k Units (R
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Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items]

Total shares excluded from calculation 39,747
6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock
Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items]

Total shares excluded from calculation 6
Preferred stock, dividend rate (in percent 6.00%

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items]
Total shares excluded from calculation 440
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items]
Total shares excluded from calculation 0
Common Stock Warrants
Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items]
Total shares excluded from calculation 10,871,577
XME-44-R3htm IDEA:- XBRE-DOCUMENT
Prepaid Expenses and
Other Current Assets
- Schedule of Prepaid
Expenses and Other Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
Current Assets
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets [Abstract]

Research and development tax credit receivable $1,248 $ 2,933
Prepayments and VAT receivable 374 792
Other current assets 309 341
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 1,931 $ 4,066
XMEA45-R32-htmIDEA-XBREDOCUMENT
N°n'(i‘]‘)‘:tea‘i‘lts‘)‘ssets Sep. 30, 2024
USD ($)

$ in Millions
Non-Current Assets
Clinical trial deposits held by a contract research organization $ 0.4
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Accrued and Other
Liabilities - Schedule
of accrued and other
current liabilities
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Accrued and Other Liabilities

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Accrued research and development $ 1,616 $ 3,668
Accrued legal and professional fees 277 570
Other current liabilities 332 380
Accrued and other current liabilities $ 2,225 $ 4,618
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Leases - Narrative 9 Months Ended

(Details) - USD ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
Operating lease expense $ 57,178 $ 55,982
Operating lease, payments $ 38,058 55,245

Discount rate lease liability 12.00%
Berkeley Heights facility

Remaining lease term 1 month 6 days
Dundee facility

Operating lease expense $ 9,097 $ 7,902
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Leases - Future
Minimum Lease Sep. 30, 2024
Payments (Details) USD ($)
$ in Thousands

Operating Lease Obligation

2024 $16
2025 38
Thereafter 0
Total future minimum lease obligation 54
Less discount 3)
Total $51
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Stock-Based

Compensation -

Schedule of Stock

Based Compensation
Expense (Details) -
USD (%)

$ in Thousands

Employee Service Share-based Compensation, Allocation of Recognized Period Costs [Line Items]

34,798

440

79,248

215,625

3 Months Ended

Stock-based compensation costs before income taxes $ 107

General and administrative

Employee Service Share-based Compensation, Allocation of Recognized Period Costs [Line Items]

Stock-based compensation costs before income taxes 101

Research and development
Employee Service Share-based Compensation, Allocation of Recognized Period Costs [Line Items

Stock-based compensation costs before income taxes $6
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Stock-Based 1 Months
Compensation Ended
(Narrative) (Details) -
USD ($) Jun. 21, Jun.13, Jan. 31,
$ / shares in Units, $ 2024 2023 2023

in Millions
Stock-based compensation
Remaining unrecognized compensation cost of non-vested stock options
Weighted-average remaining requisite service period of recognition of
unrecognized compensation cost
Stock options
Stock-based compensation
Stock awards vesting period
Options granted (in shares
Options granted, grant date fair value
Options exercised (in shares
Vesting period

6 Months
Ended

Jun. 30,
2024

9 Months Ended

$ 390 $ 499
279 421
$ 111 $78
9 Months Ended
Sep. 30,

Sep. 30, 2024 2023
$0.2
1 year 5 months
12 days
6 months
12,500 43,342
$1.77

3 years

$ 1,151

801

$ 350

12 Months
Ended

Dec. 31,
2023

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

21 Months
Ended

Sep. 30,
2024

$0.2

Oct. 31,
2020
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Stock options | Minimum
Stock-based compensation
Options granted, grant date fair value
Stock options | Maximum
Stock-based compensation
Options granted, grant date fair value

Stock options | Options Vesting On Third Anniversary Of Grant

Stock-based compensation
Options granted (in shares)
Restricted Stock Units (RSUs)
Stock-based compensation
Stock awards vesting period
Restricted Stock Units, Granted
Restricted stock units, grant date fair value
Vesting period
Shares forfeited
Additional shares forfeited
Granted
2018 Plan
Stock-based compensation
Number of additional shares authorized
Number of shares reserved for issuance
Life of stock option awards granted
2018 Plan | Minimum
Stock-based compensation
Stock awards vesting period
2018 Plan | Maximum
Stock-based compensation
Stock awards vesting period
Inducement Plan
Stock-based compensation
Number of authorized shares
Number of shares reserved for issuance
XMLE-51-R38-htm-IDEA: XBRE-DOCUMENT
Stock-Based
Compensation -
Schedule of Fair
Value of the Stock
Options Granted
(Details) - Stock
options - $ / shares

Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Pa

Expected term (years

Risk free interest rate

Volatility

Expected dividend yield over expected term

Resulting weighted average grant date fair value
Minimum

Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Pa;

Expected term (years
Risk free interest rate
Volatility
Maximum

160,000

$6.32
$10.98
25,633
3 years
17,133 12,500
$13.50
6 months
7,251 300
7,077
$2.28
60,000
204,000
10 years
1 year
4 years
8,000 8,000
5,333 5,333

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Fair Value Assumptions and Methodology [Abstract]

Expected term (years
Risk free interest rate
Volatility
XME-52-R39-htmIDEA- XBRE-DOCUMENT
Stock-Based
Compensation -
Schedule of Share
Option Activity
(Details) - $ / shares
Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)
Options outstanding
Stock options
Number of Options Outstanding
Options outstanding
Granted
Cancelled/forfeited
Options outstanding
Unvested
Vested and exercisable
Weighted Average Exercise Price Per Share
Options outstanding
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled/forfeited (in dollars per share)
Options outstanding
Unvested
Vested and exercisable
Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)
Options outstanding
Unvested
Vested and exercisable
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Stock-Based
Compensation -
Schedule of
Restricted Stock
Units Activity
(Details) - Restricted
Stock Units (RSUs) -
$ / shares
Number of Options Outstanding
Restricted Stock Units outstanding, Beginning balance
Granted
Cancelled/forfeited
Restricted Stock Units outstanding, Ending balance
Unvested
Vested

ent Award, Fair Value Assumptions and Methodolo Abstract
6 years
3.995%
93.00%
0.00% 0.00%
$1.77 $6.63
ent Award, Fair Value Assumptions and Methodolo Abstract
5 years
3.66%
89.00%
6 years
4.05%
92.00%

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024

Sep. 30, 2023

7 years 11 months 15 days

142,796
12,500
(36,307)
118,989
20,273
98,716

$50.20
2.28

0

51.78
44.31
14.00

$ 50.54

43,342

1 Months Ended

Jan. 31, 2023

17,133

7 years 5 months 15 days
8 years 6 months 10 days
7 years 2 months 26 days

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024

34,498
12,500
(7,251)
39,747
10,278
29,469

12 Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2023

(300)
34,498

13,333
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Weighted Average Grant Date Value Per Share
Restricted stock units, grant date fair value

Granted

Weighted Average Remaining Term

Restricted stock units, Weighted average remaining term
Unvested

Vested
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Stockholders Equity
(Narrative) (Details)

Apr. 30,
2024
$/
shares
shares

Sep. May 02,
04, 2024
2024 USD (%)

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Common stock, par value (in
dollars per share shares
Gross proceeds | $ $
8,000,000.0
Dividend rate on convertible
exchangeable preferred stock (in
percent.

Common stock, shares authorized
Cash placement fee, percentage of
gross proceeds raised
Management fee percentage
December 2023 Private Placement
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares
Exercisable warrants

Warrant outstanding Term
Warrants, exercise price per share
| $ / shares

December 2020 Warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares
Warrant outstanding Term
Warrants, exercise price per share
| $ / shares

Warrants exercised

April 2024 Warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares
Exercisable warrants

December 2023 Insider Private
Placement

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Share issue price per share | $ /
shares

December 2023 Placement Agency
Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Exercisable warrants

Warrant outstanding Term
Warrants, exercise price per share
|.$ / shares

Warrants exercised

Cash placement fee, percentage of
gross proceeds raised

April 2024 Securities Purchase
Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Number of shares issued (in
shares)

Common Stock Warrants

December 2023 Private Placement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrants to purchase shares

Warrant outstanding Term

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares

Total gross proceeds received | $

Common Stock Warrants

December 2023 Insider Private

Placement | Chief Executive
Officer

145,000

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares
Common Stock Warrants
December 2023 Insider Private
Placement | Chief Financial

Officer and Chief Operating
Officer

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrants to purchase shares

Common Stock Warrants | April

2024 Securities Purchase

Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares

Pre-Funded Warrants | December

2023 Securities Purchase
Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares
Warrants, exercise price per share

$ / shares

$1.36

$13.50

$2.28

8 years 6 months 18 days 8 years 11 months 15 days

8 years 3 months 21 days
8 years 7 months 20 days

Dec.
21,
2023 Aug. 15, Aug. 12,
USD 2022 2022
($) USD ($) USD ($)
$/ shares shares
shares
shares

Aug. 12,
2021
USD ($)

$3.315

8.00%

388,200
7 years

$3.19

6,070

1,886

219,700
$0.001

1
Months
Ended

12 Months

9 Months Ended Ended

Apr.
29,
2024
$/
shares
shares

Jul. 31,
2017
$/
shares
shares

Dec. 31,
30, 2023

2023 $ /shares

shares shares

Mar. Dec. 26,
14, 2023
2024 USD (%)

USD ($)
$ / shares
shares

$0.001 $0.001

6.00%

100,000,000 100,000,000
7.00%

1.00%

419,925
396,156
7 years

$3.19

44,657
5 years

$61.95
0 0

14,718,027
15,059,972

23,769
5 years

$4.14375
0

$
1,000,000.0
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Share issue price per share | $ /

shares

Pre-Funded Warrants | April 2024

Warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Exercisable warrants

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares

Warrants exercised

Pre-Funded Warrants | April 2024

Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrants to purchase shares

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares

Placement Agent Warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrants to purchase shares

Warrant outstanding Term

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares
Placement Agent Warrants

December 2023 Securities
Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Aggregate fair value Warrants | $
Placement Agent Warrants
December 2023 Private Placement
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Exercisable warrants

Placement Agent Warrants | April
2024 Warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Exercisable warrants
Warrant outstanding Term

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares

Placement Agent Warrants

December 2023 Placement Agency

Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrants to purchase shares

Warrant outstanding Term

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares

Percentage of outstanding

common stock

Placement Agent Warrants | April

2024 Securities Purchase

Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Aggregate fair value Warrants | $

Pre-funded warrants and common

warrants | April 2024 Securities

Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Share issue price per share | $ /

shares

Series A warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrant outstanding Term

Series A warrants | April 2024
Warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrants to purchase shares
Warrant outstanding Term

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares
Series A warrants | April 2024
Securities Purchase Agreement
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares
Series B Warrants | April 2024
Warrants
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares
Warrant outstanding Term
Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares
Series B Warrants | April 2024
Securities Purchase Agreement
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Warrants to purchase shares

Warrant outstanding Term

Maximum | December 2023
Placement Agency Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Placement agent fees | $

Cantor Fitzgerald & Co.
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Aggregate offering price

Number of share sold under the
sales agreement

Proceeds from issuance of
common stock, gross | $

Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. | August
2021 Controlled Equity Offering

$3.314
4,823,945
$ 0.0001
688,945
4,823,945
$ 0.0001
298,137
5 years
6
months
$
2.0125
$ 47,000
7,956
298,137
5 years 6
months
$2.0125
23,769
5 years
$
4.14375
6.00%
$ 609,179
$ 1.6099
5 years 6
months
4,968,945
5 years 6
months
$1.36
4,968,945
4,968,945
18 months
$1.36
4,968,945
18
months
$
85,000
$
50,000,000.0
218,738
$
7,600,000
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Sales Agreement
Class of Stock [Line Items]

Number of share sold under the

sales agreement 132,473
Aggregate purchase price | $ $
4,494,496
Total gross proceeds received | $ $
2,721,187
Reclassified shares 207,807
Reclassified shares for which no 75,333

proceeds were received

Co-Placement Agents

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Warrant Exercises (in shares)

Warrants, exercise price per share
$ / shares

Number of warrant to purchase

each share of our common stock

Warrants outstanding

Fractional shares issued

Co-Placement Agents | Common

Stock Warrants

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Percentage of outstanding
common stock

Outstanding common stock at
election of purchaser

Notice period from the holder to
increase the percentage of
ownership of outstanding common
stock after exercise of warrants
Co-Placement Agents | Common
Stock Warrants | April 2024
Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Percentage of outstanding o
common stock 4.99%
Outstanding common stock at

Outstanding common stock at 9.99%

election of purchaser
Roth Capital Partners, LLC
Class of Stock [Line Items]

Percentage of compensation
raised

Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc
Class of Stock [Line Items]

Percentage of compensation
raised

6% Convertible Exchangeable
Preferred Stock

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Preferred stock, shares issued
Preferred stock, shares

outstanding

Share issue price per share | $ /
shares

Share Price shares

Dividend rate on convertible
exchangeable preferred stock (in 6.00%
percent

Liquidation preference (in dollars
per share) | $ / shares

Accrued and unpaid dividends | $
Percentage of closing sales price
of common stock that conversion
price must exceed in order for
preferred stock to be convertible
Number of trading days within 30
trading days in which the closing
price of common stock must
exceed conversion price for
preferred stock to be convertible
Number of trading days during
which closing price of common
stock must exceed conversion
price for at least 20 days in order
for the preferred stock to be
convertible

Number of trading days prior to
notice of automatic conversion

Redemption price per share (in
dollars per share) | $ / shares
Debt principal amount per share
basis for exchange (in dollars per
share) | $ / shares

Debt instrument, term

Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Preferred stock, shares issued
Preferred stock, shares
outstanding

Conversion of Stock, Shares
Converted

Price per share used to determine
number of shares of common
stock | $ / shares

Conversion price of convertible
preferred stock | $ / shares
Conversion percentage
Measurement period of
consecutive trading days used in

determining whether specified
triggers are met which would
allow the entity to require the
conversion of all or part of
outstanding preferred stock

8,872

$ 1,000

$
600.00
9.99%

$ 75.00

146,000

4.99%

9.99%

61 days

335,273
335,273

$10.00
$ 888,300

6.00%

$10.00
$0

150.00%

20 days

30 days

5 days

$10.00

$10.00

25 years

264
264

440

30 days

7.00%

335,273
335,273

6.00%

264
264

8.00%
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Percentage of blocker provision
Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock | Minimum

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Percentage by which the weighted
average price of common stock
during the measurement period
exceeds the initial conversion
price which triggers the right of
the entity to cause all or part of
the outstanding preferred stock to
be converted

Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock | Maximum

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Threshold amount of daily trading
volume on each trading day
during the measurement period

which triggers the right of the
entity to cause all or part of the

outstanding preferred stock to be
converted | §

Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock

Class of Stock [Line Items]
Preferred stock, shares issued
Preferred stock, shares
outstanding

Outstanding common stock at
election of purchaser

Preferred stock conversion ratio
Number of common shares issued
upon conversion

Conversion of Stock, Shares
Converted

Shares reserved for future
issuance upon conversion
Common Stock | December 2023
Securities Purchase Agreement
Class of Stock [Line Items]

Common stock, par value (in

dollars per share shares $0.001
Share issue price per share | $ / $3.315
shares

Common stock, shares authorized 168,500

Common Stock | December 2023

Insider Private Placement | Chief

Executive Officer

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Common stock, shares authorized 6,070
Common Stock | December 2023

Insider Private Placement | Chief

Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Common stock, shares authorized 1,886
Common Stock | April 2024
Securities Purchase Agreement
Class of Stock [Line Items]
Share issue price per share | $ /
shares
XMLE-55-R42-htm-IDEA:- XBRE-DOCUMENT
Stockholders Equity -
Amounts allocated to
each instruments
(Details) - USD ($)
Class of Stock [Line Items]

$1.61

4.99%

300.00%
$ 500,000
0 119,000
0 119,000
9.99%
0.33

39,582
119,000 118,745
39,667

3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended

Mar. 31, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering $ (80,000)

April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
Common Stock Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
Regular Warrants [Member] | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
Pre-Funded Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
Pre-Funded Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
Common Stock | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
Common Stock | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Issue costs on issuance of common stock upon conversion of pre-funded warrants in underwritten offering
XME-56-R43-htmIDEA-XBRE-DOCUMENT

$ 6,290,213

1,049,000

3,819,274

470,000

2,398,831

321,000

72,108

$ 258,000

Stockholders Equity - Sep. 30, 2024

Valuation
assumptions (Details)
Expected volatility | Pre-Funded Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]
Warrants and rights outstanding 1
Expected volatility | Pre-Funded Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding 1.34

Expected volatility | Regular Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Y Dec. 31, 2023
M

237,745
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Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected volatility | Placement Agent Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected volatility | Placement Agent Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected volatility | Minimum

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected volatility | Minimum | Common Stock Warrants

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected volatility | Maximum

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected volatility | Maximum | Common Stock Warrants

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Contractual term | Pre-Funded Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Contractual term | Pre-Funded Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items

Warrants and rights outstanding | M

Contractual term | Reqular Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Contractual term | Placement Agent Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Contractual term | Placement Agent Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Contractual term | Minimum | Common Stock Warrants

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Contractual term | Maximum | Common Stock Warrants

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Pre-Funded Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Pre-Funded Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Regular Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Placement Agent Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Placement Agent Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Minimum

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Minimum | Common Stock Warrants

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Maximum

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Risk-free interest rate | Maximum | Common Stock Warrants

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected dividend yield | Common Stock Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items

Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected dividend yield | Pre-Funded Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement
Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding
Expected dividend yield | Pre-Funded Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding
Expected dividend yield | Regular Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding
Expected dividend yield | Placement Agent Warrants | April 2024 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]
Warrants and rights outstanding

Expected dividend yield | Placement Agent Warrants | December 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement

Fair Value Measurement Inputs and Valuation Techniques [Line Items]

Warrants and rights outstanding
XMLE-57-R44-htm- 1DEA:- XBRE-DOCUMENT

0.96

1.03

0.99

89

1.03

92

1.21

5.5

15

5.5

0.0551

0.0553

0.0391

0.0457

0.0389

3.660

0.0457

4.050

0.0551

0.00

0.00

0

0.00

87

93

1.370

3.605

Subsequent Events -
Narrative (Details)

Subsequent Event [Line Items]

Preferred stock, dividend rate (in percent)
Subsequent event | Pre-Funded Warrants
Subsequent Event [Line Items]

Warrants exercised

6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock
Subsequent Event [Line Items]

Preferred stock, dividend rate (in percent)

9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

Oct. 23, 2024 Oct. 15, 2024

shares shares Sep. 04, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024

Dec. 31, 2023

6.00%

4,135,000

6.00%

6.00% 6.00%
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6% Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock | Subsequent event

Subsequent Event [Line Items]

Number of shares converted 200,000
Preferred stock, dividend rate (in percent) 6.00%
Preferred stock conversion ratio 3
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